
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

CABINET 
 

Tuesday, 23 July 2013 - 5:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor L A Smith (Chair); Councillor R Gill (Deputy Chair); Councillor J L 
Alexander, Councillor H J Collins, Councillor C Geddes, Councillor M A McCarthy, 
Councillor L A Reason, Councillor P T Waker, Councillor J R White and Councillor M M 
Worby 
 
 
Date of publication: 15 July 2013      Graham Farrant 
          Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer: Alan Dawson 
Tel. 020 8227 2348 

E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declaration of Members' Interests   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare any 

interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting.  
 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 
2013 (Pages 3 - 6)  

 
4. Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - April to May 2013 (Pages 7 - 34)  
 
5. Future Management Arrangements for the Library Service (Pages 35 - 44)  
 
6. A Library Strategy for Barking and Dagenham (Pages 45 - 83)  
 
7. "Creative Barking and Dagenham": An Arts Strategy for the Borough 2013-16 

(Pages 85 - 120)  
 
8. Children's Social Care Review 2012/13 (Pages 121 - 138)  
 
9. Community Safety Partnership Annual Report 2012-13 (Pages 139 - 150)  
 
10. Disposal of Former Mayesbrook Nursing Home, Bevan Avenue, Barking 

(Pages 151 - 155)  
 



 

 

11. Barking Abbey and Robert Clack Comprehensive Schools: Acceptance of 
Football Foundation Grants for Artificial Grass Pitches   

 
 This report will follow.  

 
12. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
13. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to exclude 

the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to the nature of 
the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Cabinet, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the private 
part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant paragraph of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).    

 
14. Disposal of Former Mayesbrook Nursing Home, Bevan Avenue, Barking - 

Appendix 2 (Pages 157 - 158)  
 
 Contains commercially sensitive information (paragraph 3)  

 
15. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 



 

 
 
Barking and Dagenham’s Vision 
 
Encourage growth and unlock the potential of Barking and Dagenham and its 
residents. 

 
Priorities 
 
To achieve the vision for Barking and Dagenham there are five priorities that underpin its 
delivery: 

 
1. Ensure every child is valued so that they can succeed 
 

• Ensure children and young people are safe, healthy and well educated 

• Improve support and fully integrate services for vulnerable children, young people 
and families  

• Challenge child poverty and narrow the gap in attainment and aspiration  

 
2. Reduce crime and the fear of crime  
 

• Tackle crime priorities set via engagement and the annual strategic assessment 

• Build community cohesion 

• Increase confidence in the community safety services provided 

 
3. Improve health and wellbeing through all stages of life 
 

• Improving care and support for local people including acute services 

• Protecting and safeguarding local people from ill health and disease 

• Preventing future disease and ill health 

 
4. Create thriving communities by maintaining and investing in new and high 

quality homes 
 

• Invest in Council housing to meet need 

• Widen the housing choice 

• Invest in new and innovative ways to deliver affordable housing 

 
5. Maximise growth opportunities and increase the household income of borough 

residents  
 

• Attract Investment 

• Build business  

• Create a higher skilled workforce 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF 

CABINET 

 
Tuesday, 25 June 2013 

(5:00  - 5:05 pm)  
  

Present: Councillor L A Smith (Chair), Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor H J 
Collins, Councillor C Geddes, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor P T Waker, 
Councillor J R White and Councillor M M Worby 
 
Apologies: Councillor R Gill and Councillor L A Reason 
 

8. Declaration of Members' Interests 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
9. Minutes (21 May 2013) 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 21 May 2013 were confirmed as correct. 

 
10. Revenue and Capital Final Outturn 2012/13 
 
 The Leader introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To note the final outturn position for 2012/13 of the Council’s revenue 

budget as detailed in paragraphs 2.3 to 2.10 and Appendix A of the report; 
 
(ii) To note the final outturn position for the Housing Revenue Account as 

detailed in paragraph 2.7 and Appendix B of the report; 
 
(iii) To note the final outturn position for 2012/13 of the Council’s capital budget 

as detailed in paragraph 2.12 of the report; 
 
(iv) To approve the revised capital budget roll forward requests detailed in 

Appendix C to the report; and 
 
(v) To note the increased contribution to capital expenditure of £0.6m in the 

agreed Central Expenses figure as detailed in paragraph 2.10 of the report. 
 

11. Treasury Management Annual Report 2012/13 
 
 The Leader introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved to recommend the Assembly:  
 
(i) To note the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2012/13; 
 
(ii) To note that the Council complied with all 2012/13 treasury management 

indicators;  
 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 3



(iii) To note that the Council did not borrow to finance its capital programme in 
2012/13 but utilised internal cash in line with its strategy;  

 
(iv) To note the amendment in the 2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement to the wording for the counterparty limit for Lloyds TSB, as 
outlined in section 6.3 of the report; and 

 
(v) To approve the actual Prudential and Treasury Indicators for 2012/13 as set 

out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

12. Performance House for Quarter 4 of 2012/13 and Priority Performance 
Indicators for 2013/14 

 
 The Leader introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To note the corporate performance information for the final quarter of the 

2012/13 financial year; and 
 
(ii) To approve the new set of corporate priority performance indicators for 

2013/14 as set out at Appendix E to the report.  
 

13. ICT Strategy 2013 - 2017 
 
 Further to Minute 81 (22 January 2013), the Cabinet Member for Customer 

Services introduced the proposed ICT Strategy covering the period 2013 to 2017. 
 
The Cabinet Member confirmed that the financial and other issues raised at the 
meeting in January had been reviewed and the Strategy updated accordingly. 
 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To approve the ICT Strategy for 2013-2017 attached at Appendix 1 to the 

report; 
 
(ii) To endorse the business case approval process set out in the report; and 
 
(iii) To delegate authority to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the 

Cabinet Member for Customer Services, to allocate the remaining ICT 
capital fund. 

 
14. Modernisation of Cashiering Services 
 
 The Leader introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved to approve the implementation of Phase 2 of the Cashiers 
Modernisation Strategy, namely the withdrawal of face-to-face cashiering services 
at the Civic Centre and the internal cash-van collections / deliveries, for completion 
by the end of September 2013. 
 
 

Page 4



15. School Capital Programme Basic Need Allocation 2013 - 2015 
 
 The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To approve the allocation of £10,850,000 to the projects detailed in 

paragraphs 2.2 to 2.7 of the report, to ensure that the projects were 
progressed to conclusion; 

 
(ii) That the sum of £17,255,818 be retained at the present time pending the 

outcome of the funding bids submitted to the Department for Education / 
Education Funding Agency and further detailed work in respect of the 
Gascoigne Primary (Abbey Depot) site; and 

 
(iii) To approve the transfer of Arden House, 198 Longbridge Road, Barking, to 

Children’s Services with effect from 1 October 2013 to facilitate the 
development of early education places with a particular focus on the 
statutory two year old offer. 

 
16. Proposed Expansion of Godwin Primary School and John Perry Primary 

School from September 2013 
 
 The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved to approve the formal expansion of John Perry Primary School 
and Godwin Primary School from two to three forms of entry from 1 September 
2013. 
 

17. Establishing a Furniture Bank and Providing Accommodation for the 
Territorial Army 

 
 The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced the report and advised that the 

feedback that he had received from local residents on the proposals had been very 
positive. 
 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 

Services to establish a partnership with the Disablement Association of 
Barking and Dagenham (DABD) to set up a furniture bank in the Borough; 
and 

 
(ii) To delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the 

Divisional Director of Finance and the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services, to agree terms and legal and contractual arrangements for: 

 
(a) Woodward Road Library to be used for a furniture bank; and 
(b) Rectory Library to be used as a Territorial Army Centre. 

 
 
 

Page 5



18. Disposal of 89 Axe Street, Barking 
 
 Further to Minute 131 (16 April 2013), the Leader introduced the report and 

advised that negotiations had taken place with the preferred bidder in respect of a 
restrictive covenant against the future development of the site. 
 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To approve the disposal of the site at 89 Axe Street, Barking, as shown 

hatched on the plan at Appendix 1 to the report, to Elim Trust Corporation in 
the sum of £275,000 on the terms set out in the report; and 

 
(ii) To agree that the property be sold with the Council having the benefit of an 

in perpetuity restrictive covenant against future development. 
 

19. Procurement of Highways Maintenance Services via East London Solutions 
 
 The Leader advised that the report had been withdrawn and the matter deferred to 

the next meeting of Cabinet to enable officers to carry out a further assessment of 
the options for the future provision of highway maintenance services. 
 

20. Community Development Activity at Dagenham and Redbridge Football Club 
 
 The Leader introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved to note the report. 
 

21. Debt Management Performance and Write-Offs 2012/13 (Quarter 4) 
 
 The Leader introduced the report. 

 
Cabinet resolved: 
 
(i) To note the performance of the debt management function carried out by 

the Revenues and Benefits service operated by Elevate East London, 
including the performance of bailiffs; and 

 
(ii) To note the debt write-offs for the fourth quarter of 2012/13 and that a 

number of the debts would be publicised in accordance with the policy 
agreed by Cabinet (Minute 52, 18 October 2011).   

 

Page 6



CABINET 
 

23 JULY 2013 
 

Title: Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - April to May 2013 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance 
 
Open Report For Decision 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author:  Steve Pearson, Group 
Accountant, Corporate Finance 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 5215 
E-mail: steve.pearson@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director of Finance 
 

Accountable Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 
 

Summary:  
 
This report provides Cabinet with an update of the Council’s revenue and capital position 
for the two months to the end of May 2013 projected to the year end.   
  
The Council began the current financial year in a better financial position than the previous 
year with a General Fund (GF) balance of £17.5m. 
 
At the end of May 2013 (Month 2), total service expenditure for the full year is projected to 
be £171.7m against the approved budget of £178.1m, a projected surplus of £6.4m.  This 
compares to the planned surplus of £5.2m agreed at Assembly in February 2013, which 
arose due to late grant determination (Education Support grant (ESG)) and the decision to 
use a two year strategic approach to addressing funding issues in 2015/16.  Explanatory 
summaries are contained in section 2 of this report.  
 
The current projected surplus of £6.4m would result in the General Fund balance 
increasing to £23.9m. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is projected to breakeven, maintaining the HRA 
reserve at £8.5m.  The HRA is a ring-fenced account and cannot make contributions to the 
General Fund. 
 
The Capital Programme has been updated to reflect project roll forward requests, changes 
approved at Cabinet, and further adjustments requested.  The budget at the end of May 
stands at £178.6m. Capital budgets cannot contribute to the General Fund revenue 
position although officers ensure that all appropriate capitalisations occur.  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
(i) Note the projected outturn position for 2013/14 of the Council’s revenue budget at 31 

May 2013, as detailed in paragraphs 2.3 to 2.11 and Appendix A of the report; 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 7



 
(ii) Note the progress against the 2013/14 savings targets at 31 May 2013, as detailed in 

paragraph 2.12 and Appendix B of the report; 
 
(iii) Note the position for the HRA at 31 May 2013, as detailed in paragraph 2.13 and 

Appendix C of the report; 
 
(iv) Note the projected outturn position for 2013/14 of the Council’s capital budget at 31 

May 2013, as detailed in paragraph 2.14 and Appendix D; and 
 

(v) Approve the reprofiled capital programme as detailed in Appendix D, plus adjustments 
detailed in paragraph 2.12. 

 

Reason(s) 
 
As a matter of good financial practice, the Cabinet should be regularly updated with the 
position on spend against the Council’s budget.  In particular, this paper alerts Members to 
particular efforts to reduce in-year expenditure in order to manage the financial position 
effectively. 
 

 
1 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary of the Council’s General Fund and HRA revenue 

and capital positions.  It also provides an update on progress made to date in the 
delivery of the agreed savings targets built into the 2013/14 budget setting out risks 
to anticipated savings and action plans to mitigate these risks. 

 
1.2 It is important that the Council regularly monitors its revenue and capital budgets to 

ensure good financial management.  This is achieved within the Council by 
monitoring the financial results on a monthly basis through briefings to the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and reports to Cabinet.  This ensures Members are regularly 
updated on the Council’s overall financial position and enables the Cabinet to make 
relevant financial and operational decisions to meet its budgets. 
 

1.3 The Budget report to Assembly in February 2013 provided for a target of £15m of 
General Fund balance, plus a planned surplus of £5.234m to be generated in 
2013/14 and carried forward into 2014/15.  The Outturn for 2012/13 led to a 
General Fund balance of £17.456m.  The current projected position keeps the 
Council on track to deliver a balanced budget and maintain the minimum general 
fund balance of £15m. 
 

 
2 Current Overall Position 
 
2.1 The following tables summarise the spend position and the forecast position of the 

General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) balances. 
 

  

Page 8



Council Summary 
Net 

Budget 

Full year 
forecast 
at end May 
2013 

Over/(under) 
spend 
Forecast 

 £000 £000 £000 
Directorate Expenditure    
Adult and Community Services 57,202 57,202 - 
Children’s Services 67,954 67,954 - 
Housing and Environment 22,658 22,658 - 
Chief Executive 19,705 19,508 (197) 
Central Expenses 5,359 4,359 (1,000) 

 172,878 171,681 (1,197) 
Budget Surplus (Agreed MTFS) 5,234               - (5,234) 

Total Service Expenditure 178,112 171,681 (6,431) 
 
 

  
 

Balance at  
1 April  
2013 

 
Forecast 
Balance at  
31 March 
2014 

Budgeted 
Combined 
Balance at  
31 March 
2014* 

 £000 
 

£000 £000 

General Fund 17,456 23,887 20,234 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
(including Rent Reserve) 

8,461 8,461 8,461 

 
*Budget Combined Balance for General Fund comprises a target balance of £15m 
plus budgeted surplus of £5.2m 
 

2.2 The current Directorate revenue projections indicate a surplus of £6.4m for the end 
of the financial year, made up as follows:  

 
• £0.2m underspend in the Chief Executive department as a result of shared 

arrangements with Thurrock Council and vacancies within Legal and 
Democratic services; 

• £1m surplus in Central Expenses arising from interest budgets; and  
• £5.2m surplus as planned and agreed in the MTFS 2013/14. 

•  
The initial forecast of a £6.4m underspend would result in the Council’s General 
Fund balance remaining above the budgeted target of £15.0m.  The Chief Finance 
Officer has a responsibility under statute to ensure that the Council maintains 
appropriate balances. 

  
The Chief Finance Officer, after consideration of the factors outlined in the CIPFA 
guidance on Local Authority Reserves and Balances 2003 and the other financial 
provisions and contingency budgets held by the Council, set a target GF reserves 
level of £15.0m.  The General Fund balance at 31 March 2013 was £17.5m and the 
current forecast combined balance for the end of the financial year is £23.9m.  If 
maintained, this position will provide added flexibility for the Council in addressing 
the forthcoming significant further reductions in funding from the government.  This 

Page 9



compares with a budgeted combined General Fund balance of £15m plus a 
planned surplus of £5.2m within the two year 2013-15 strategy.   

 
 At the end of May 2013, the HRA is forecasting to break even, and maintain the 

HRA reserve at £8.5m. 
 

2.3 Directorate Performance Summaries 
 

The key areas of risk which might lead to a potential overspend are outlined in the 
paragraphs below.  
 

2.4 Adult and Community Services 
 

Directorate Summary 
2012/13 
Outturn 

2013/14 
Budget 

2013/14 
Forecast 

 £000 £000 £000 

Net Expenditure 60,701 57,202 57,202 

Projected over/(under)spend    - 

 
The Adult and Community Services forecasted position at period 2 is to break-even.  
There are a number of pressures within the services particularly for Mental Health 
placements and personal budgets, and direct payments for all client groups.  These 
pressures are either being managed within the service or funding will be drawn 
down from the ACS reserve created in 2012/13. 

 
A challenging savings target of £4.324m is built into the 2013/14 budget.  There are 
pressures on some of the savings targets, and these are being reviewed and 
addressed in order to ensure their delivery. 
 

2.5 Children’s Services 
 

Directorate Summary 
2012/13 
Outturn 

2013/14 
Budget 

2013/14 
Forecast 

 £000 £000 £000 

Net Expenditure 69,448 67,954 67,954 

Projected over/(under)spend    - 

 
The Children’s Service still experiences significant demand pressures within the 
Complex Needs and Social Care division.  Referral activity had increased 
consistently since the end of 2012 and shows no sign of reducing which suggests 
more of a trend rather than a ‘spike’ in demand.  In 2012/13 the number of core 
assessments was double the level of 2011/12 and section 47 child protection 
investigations increased by 37% over 2012/13.   
 
The OFSTED Safeguarding and Looked After Children inspection of June 2012 
reported that caseloads were high but manageable.  However, the persistent 
increases in demand since then have required additional resourcing to ensure risks 
are managed.  This brings an increased pressure on the revenue account.  
Although the service is forecasting a balanced budget position for 2013/14 this is 
masking £4m of management actions, a number of which are one-off and will not 
continue into 2014/15.   
 

Page 10



The change from LACSEG (Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant) to 
Education Support Grant, and the changes to the funding of statutory services to 
two year olds from General Fund to the Dedicated Schools Grant have released 
£2.7m of ongoing funding to invest in social care demand pressures.  Grant income  
of £604k is available in 2013/14 to manage pressures but, at present, there is no 
indication this will continue into 2014/15.   
 
The Targeted Support Division is forecasting an underspend in 2013/14 of £1.060m 
but this is largely as a result of the early achievement of approved savings for 
2014/15 which means this is unlikely to continue into 2014/15.  Finally, a drawdown 
of £0.754m will be required from the Children’s Services Reserve to achieve a 
balanced budget position for 2013/14. 
 

2.6 Dedicated School Grant (DSG) 
 
The DSG is a ring fenced grant to support the education of school aged pupils 
within the borough.  The grant is allocated between the Schools and Centrally 
Retained budget in agreement with the Schools Forum.  The indicative 2012/13 
DSG allocation is £218m which is inclusive of pupil premium and sixth form funding. 
 

2.7 Housing and Environment 
 

Directorate Summary 
2012/13 
Outturn 

2013/14 
Budget 

2013/14 
Forecast 

 £000 £000 £000 

Net Expenditure 24,040 22,658 22,658 

Projected over/(under)spend    - 

 
The Housing and Environment General Fund budget is currently forecast to 
breakeven.  Whilst it is relatively early in the year, there are potential pressures 
which have been identified within these budgets.  It is expected that these 
pressures will be managed within the service.  

 
The pressures relate mainly to the achievement of Parking Income budget, where 
early indications show lower than normal issues of PCNs.  The service is also 
undergoing significant system upgrades and structural changes designed to make 
the service more efficient.  The benefits of these changes should start to be realised 
towards the latter part of the year. The Parking Service is in the process of bidding 
for additional capital funding which will be invested in schemes to deliver additional 
income.  This would also contribute to mitigating the risk of net spends over budget.      

 
There is potential risk in the Housing General Fund, particularly in relation to the 
high numbers of homeless placements in Bed and Breakfast accommodation.  
These placements are a significant cost to the Council due to the cap on benefits on 
this type of accommodation.  

 
Members agreed a growth of £0.5m as part of 2013/14 budget setting.  This has 
helped the Housing Service mitigate some of this pressure.  The pressure is also 
being mitigated with a number of in-year actions, and there are a number of risks in 
the deliverability of these which are being monitored closely.   

 
The department started the year with a savings target of £1.67m.  A high proportion 
of the savings will be fully delivered but there is currently an overall pressure of 

Page 11



around £0.044m.  This is mainly due to the pressures facing the Environmental 
Services budget. 

 
The main risks to the forecast position are parking income and temporary 
accommodation.  Both will be monitored closely during the year with forecasts 
updated as necessary.   

 
There is additional risk within Housing & Environment and the Housing Revenue 
Account due to the potential impact of Welfare Reform.  It is difficult to project the 
extent of the financial impact at this stage.  However, the combination of the 
bedroom tax, benefit cap and Universal Credit are expected to impact income levels 
within the HRA as well as possibly leading to more homelessness cases within the 
General Fund.  Particular attention will be given to monitoring income in view of 
these changes. 
 

2.8 Chief Executive Department 
 

Directorate Summary 
2012/13 
Outturn 

2013/14 
Budget 

2013/14 
Forecast 

 £000 £000 £000 

Net Expenditure 19,059 19,705 19,508 

Projected (under)spend    (197) 

  
The Chief Executive department has been expanded, to include the former Finance 
and Resources department.  
 
At this early stage in the financial year, the department is currently projecting a 
£0.197m underspend.  This position is mainly as a result of underspends in the 
Legal and Democratic Services division and savings arising from the interim shared 
Chief Executive arrangement with Thurrock Council.   
 
The performance of each division, including potential issues arising and actions 
being undertaken, are highlighted below. 

 
2.9 Central Expenses 
 

Directorate Summary 
2012/13 
Outturn 

2013/14 
Budget 

2013/14 
Forecast 

 £000 £000 £000 

Net Expenditure 1,021 5,359 4,359 

Projected over/(under)spend    (1,000) 

    

Budget Surplus (Agreed MTFS)  5,234 - 

Projected Surplus   (5,234) 

 
There is a (£1m) surplus expected due to the management of our cash balances 
enabling a lower than budgeted cost to be charged to the General Fund in 2013/14.  
As planned within the MTFS a budget surplus of £5.2m has been built into the base 
budget and the current position is projected to meet this target.  
 

  

Page 12



2.10 In Year Savings Targets 
 

The delivery of the 2013/14 budget is dependent on meeting a savings target of 
£19.0m.  Directorate Management Teams are monitoring their targets and providing 
a monthly update of progress which is summarised in the table below.  A detailed 
breakdown of savings and explanations for variances is provided in Appendix B. 
 

Directorate Summary of 
Savings Targets 

Target 
£000 

Forecast 
£000 

Shortfall 
£000 

Adult and Community Services 4,324 3,846 478 

Children’s Services 2,708 2,708 - 

Housing and Environment 1,665 1,621 44 

Chief Executive 2,740 2,583 157 

Central Expenses 5,192 5,192 - 

Total 16,629 15,950 679 

 
2.11 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
  
 The HRA is currently forecast to breakeven in 2013/14.   

 
The breakdowns of the main offsetting income and expenditure variances are listed 
below: 
 
Income 

 

There is a favourable net rental surplus of £0.47m forecast, mainly arising from the 
short term renting of decanted properties for temporary accommodation that would 
have otherwise remained void pending demolition/refurbishment.  This has also 
improved the void figures.   
 
However, increased voids on garages (£0.147m) as well as the bringing the 
demolition forward of some estate renewal blocks means that there is a pressure on 
service charge recovery (£0.487m) more than offsetting the favourable rental 
income variances above. 
 
The introduction of Welfare Reform this year is expected to increase pressure on 
the HRA, although it is difficult to project the extent at this stage.  The combination 
of the bedroom tax, benefit cap and Universal Credit are expected to impact income 
levels.  Whilst some provision has been made within the budget through increased 
bad debt provision, and the availability of discretionary housing payments, the 
actual position is being monitored closely.    
 
Adding all items together, the net pressure in the income budgets is £0.164m. 

 
Expenditure 
 

It is not possible to provide a full projection on the R&M in-house function for May 
due to ongoing systems issues.  The issues are being resolved by the Service and 
reporting is anticipated to start from June.  The system issues impact the transfer of 
financial data into Oracle through interface, which means that Oracle does not 
currently show completed job costs or an accurate position.  However, early 

Page 13



indications are that there may be pressures relating to the set up of the DLO in the 
region of £0.2m (this is currently not in the projection).  
 
There are further pressures in Supervision & Management (S&M) relating to staffing 
and transport costs.  Current projections indicate that expenditure pressures will be 
managed through underspends on other budgets.   
 
The main risks to the HRA expenditure position are within locality spend and 
savings delivery.  Whilst the service has been aligning itself to provide its services 
through the locality structures, it has been required to hire additional agency staff 
and vehicles to cover estate services.  Current costs show a possible pressure in 
the region of £1.3m which will be managed through expenditure savings within the 
HRA.  
 
As part of the 2013/14 budget agreed by February Cabinet, the service made 
commitment to deliver value for money savings to the tune of £1.4m from its S&M 
budget.  Of the savings options identified and currently going through validation 
process, approximately £1m is non-staff related and forecast to be achievable.  The 
remaining £0.4m is subject to staffing restructures and if not delivered will create a 
pressure. 
 
Other surpluses and underspends, added to the above total gives a net surplus of 
£164m on expenditure. 

 

HRA Balance 

 
Overall, the HRA is forecasting to breakeven.    
 
The HRA maintains revenue reserves balance of £8.5m.  Currently it is anticipated 
that this will be maintained at £8.5m by the end of 2013/14.  
 
There is a substantial budgeted contribution to capital resources of £35.5m in 
2013/14.  This may be reviewed to accommodate expenditure pressures.  

 
2.12 Capital Programme 
 

Cabinet approved a budget of £157.818m in Feb 2013.  In May and June Cabinet 
agreed year end roll-forwards and adjustments for 2012/13 of £20.807m resulting in 
a total budget of £178.625m for 2013/14.   
 
At the end of period 2 budget holders have forecast a number of potential under 
and overspends in 2013/14 against the revised budget of £178.625m.  This is 
mainly due to a revision in the timescales of capital schemes after a comprehensive 
exercise was carried out reprofiling some schemes into future years whilst 
accelerating others in 2013/14.  Budgets will be reprofiled accordingly in order to 
establish and reinforce a robust and deliverable capital programme in future years.  
The current forecasts are shown below 

  

Page 14



 

Directorate Summary 
of Capital Expenditure 

Budget 
£000 

Actual Year 
to Date 
£000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
£000 

Projected 
Variance 
£000 

Adult & Community 
Services 

7,926 178 8,482 556 

Children’s Services 60,532 1,832 53,192 (7,340) 

Housing & Environment 
(non HRA) 

3,174 434 3,361 187 

HRA 92,392 1,422 74,455 (17,397) 

Finance & Resources 14,601 (380) 14,393 (208) 

Total 178,625 3,486 153,883 (24,742) 

 
Cabinet is requested to approve a reprofiling of capital budgets as outlined in 
Appendix D.  This will enable the capital programme to forecast against a 
deliverable budget in 2013/14 in line with expected project timetables.  The revised 
budget for each Directorate is summarised in the table below: 
 

Directorate Summary 
of Capital Expenditure 

Current 
Budget 
£000 

Revised  
Budget 
£000 

Change 
£000 

Adult & Community 
Services 

7,926 8,482 556 

Children’s Services 60,532 53,192 (7,340) 

Housing & Environment 
(non HRA) 

3,174 3,361 187 

HRA 92,392 74,455 (17,937) 

Finance & Resources 14,601 14,393 (208) 

Total 178,625 153,883 (24,742) 

 
Additionally, £0.4m is needed for the Direct Payments Adaptations scheme, to be 
funded from Corporate Contingency.  This will create a base budget enabling 
people who are not eligible for help via other schemes to arrange basic adaptations 
for themselves with a maximum grant of £4,000. 

 
Complementary to this, it is proposed to add £0.575m Disabled Facilities Grant 
received from Communities Local Government for 2013/14, enabling adaptations for 
people living in privately owned and rented properties. 
 
Furthermore the Department of Health has announced a further allocation of capital 
monies to support adult social care services. The allocation for Barking and 
Dagenham is £0.491m in 2013-14 and £0.501m in 2014-15.  This new Community 
Capacity Grant can only be used to support adult social care functions and has a 
number of grant conditions. It is proposed that these monies are used to improve 
the social care offer to older people in the borough and the allocation should now be 
added to the Council’s Capital programme. Officers will bring back specific 
proposals for Member approval in future meetings  

Page 15



2.13 Financial Control 
 

At the end of May all key reconciliations have been prepared and reviewed, and 
there are no major reconciling items unexplained. 

 
3 Options Appraisal 

 
3.1 The report provides a summary of the financial position at the relevant year end and 

as such no other option is applicable for appraisal or review. 
 

4 Consultation 
 
4.1 The relevant elements of the report has been circulated to appropriate Divisional 

Directors for review and comment.   
 

4.2 Individual Directorate elements have been subject to scrutiny and discussion at 
their respective Directorate Management Team meetings. 

 
5 Financial Implications  

 
5.1 This report details the financial position of the Council. 

 
6 Legal Issues 

 
6.1 Local authorities are required by law to set a balanced budget for each financial 

year.  During the year there is an ongoing responsibility to monitor spending and 
ensure the finances continue to be sound.  This does mean as a legal requirement 
there must be frequent reviews of spending and obligation trends so that timely 
intervention can be made ensuring the annual budgeting targets are met. 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report 
 

• Final Revenue and Capital Outturn 2012/13; Cabinet 25 June 2013; 

• Budget Framework 2013/14; Cabinet 12 February 2013. 
 

Appendices  
 

A – General Fund expenditure by Directorate 
B – Savings Targets by Directorate 
C – Housing Revenue Account Expenditure 
D – Capital Programme 
 

Page 16



Appendix A

Directorate
 Outturn 

2012/13 

 Original 

Budget 

 Revised 

Budget 

 Forecast 

Outturn 

 Forecast 

Variance 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adult & Community Services

Adult Care & Commissioning 43,122          39,149          39,149          39,149          -                

Mental Health 3,583            3,197            3,197            3,197            -                

Community Safety & Neighbourhood Services 3,665            2,772            2,772            2,772            -                

Culture & Sport 9,112            5,966            5,966            5,966            -                

Public Health -                -                -                -                -                

Management 1,219            6,145            6,118            6,118            -                

60,701          57,229          57,202          57,202          -                

Children’s Services

Education 4,645            1,781            1,781            1,809            28                 

Targeted Support 11,958          7,987            7,987            6,927            (1,060)

Complex Needs and Social Care 35,312          29,151          29,151          30,087          936               

Commissioning and Safeguarding 4,531            3,559            3,586            3,579            (7)

Other Management Costs                      13,002          25,449          25,449          25,552          103               

69,448          67,927          67,954          67,954          -                

Children's Services - DSG

Schools 195,018        171,315        171,315        171,315        -                

Early Years 4,621            16,285          16,285          16,285          -                

High Needs 12,489          24,407          24,407          24,407          -                

Non Delegated 2,508            2,850            2,850            2,850            -                

Growth Fund 688               3,070            3,070            3,070            -                

School Contingencies 1,544            -                -                

DSG/Funding (216,868) (217,927) (217,927) (217,927) -                

-                -                -                -                -                

Housing & Environment

Environment & Enforcement 21,858          20,378          20,443          20,443          -                

Housing General Fund 2,182            2,215            2,215            2,215            -                

24,040          22,593          22,658          22,658          -                

Chief Executive Services

Chief Executive Office (225) (597) (597) (682) (85)

Marketing & Communications (51) -                -                -                -                

Policy & Performance (103) -                -                -                -                

Legal & Democratic Services 305               410               410               324               (86)

Human Resources (7) -                -                -                -                

Finance (861) (124) (124) (124) -                

Corporate Management 2,956            4,352            4,352            4,326            (26)

Regeneration & Economic Development 3,853            3,145            3,145            3,145            -                

Assets & Facilities Management 1,146            1,153            1,097            1,097            -                

Customer Services, Contracts & Business 

Improvement 12,046          11,422          11,422          11,422          -                

19,059          19,761          19,705          19,508          (197)

Other

Central Expenses (7,921) (4,299) (4,261) (5,261) (1,000)

Levies 8,942            9,620            9,620            9,620            -                

Budget Surplus (Agreed MTFS) -                5,281            5,234            -                (5,234)

1,021            10,602          10,593          4,359            (6,234)

TOTAL 174,269        178,112        178,112        171,681        (6,431)

GENERAL FUND REVENUE MONITORING STATEMENT

May 2013/14

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 F
U
N
D
 S
A
V
IN
G
S
 M
O
N
IT
O
R
IN
G
 S
T
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

A
d
u
lt
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
1
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

T
e
a
m
 -
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 A
p
ri
l 
p
a
yr
o
ll 
c
o
s
ts
, 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 

h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 m

o
v
e
d
 o
r 
le
ft
 

2
2
9
 

2
1
6
 

1
3
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
2
 

S
ta
tu
to
ry
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 &
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 -
 

re
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
a
m

 
T
e
a
m
 d
e
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 
p
o
s
t 
m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

8
5
 

8
5
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
3
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T
h
e
ra
p
y 
a
n
d
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 T
e
a
m
 -
 r
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

te
a
m

 
P
o
s
ts
 d
e
le
te
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 A
p
ri
l 

1
8
6
 

1
8
6
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
4
 

D
ru
g
 &
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

u
s
e
rs

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
e
a
rm

a
rk
e
d
 f
o
r 
T
ie
r 
4
 R
e
h
a
b
, 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
fr
o
m
 N
H
S
, 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 s
ta
tu
s
 

1
6
5
 

0
 

1
6
5
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
5
 

Y
o
u
th
 O
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 d
is
o
rd
e
r 
a
n
d
 

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
6
 

W
it
h
d
ra
w
 o
r 
re
d
u
c
e
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

2
1
1
 

2
1
1
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/0
7
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
g
ra
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

1
1
0
 

1
1
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(a
) 

F
re
e
 L
e
is
u
re
 O
ff
e
r 
- 
fu
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

1
3
0
 

1
3
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(b
) 

A
c
ti
v
e
 A
g
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 -
 f
u
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t  

N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

1
5
0
 

1
5
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(c
) 
 

A
d
v
ic
e
, 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 H
IV
/A
id
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
 E
a
s
t 
- 
fu
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

 

N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 S
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

4
9
 

4
9
 

0
 

Page 19



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(d
) 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
C
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r 
- 
fu
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

4
2
 

4
2
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(e
) 

F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
 P
e
o
p
le
 -
 

re
d
u
c
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
y
 £
5
0
k
 
N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(f
) 

S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 

S
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 C
C
G
, 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

1
0
0
 

9
2
 

8
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(g
) 

D
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 6
 b
e
d
s
 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
1
6
 -
 

1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 a
t 
th
e
 V
in
e
ri
e
s
 (
a
n
d
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

4
0
 

4
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(h
)  

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

3
3
 

3
3
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(i
) 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 -
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

R
e
fu
g
e
 F
lo
a
ti
n
g
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

1
0
5
 

1
0
5
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(j
) 

D
e
le
te
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
r 
p
o
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 T
e
a
m

 
V
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
h
e
ld
, 
fo
rm

s
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 d
e
le
te
 

p
o
s
t 
fr
o
m
 H
R
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 

3
9
 

3
9
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(k
) 

D
V
 a
n
d
 H
a
te
 C
ri
m
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

re
d
u
c
e
 p
o
s
t 
to
 0
.6
 F
T
E

 
N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

2
1
 

2
1
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(l
) 

D
e
le
te
 p
o
s
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd

 
P
o
s
t 
d
e
le
te
d
 

2
8
 

2
8
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(m
) 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le

 
N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

3
0
 

3
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(n
) 

M
a
x
im
is
in
g
 G
ra
n
t 
F
le
x
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

6
4
 

6
4
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
2
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 (
re
d
u
c
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 G
M
)  

P
o
s
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
b
e
fo
re
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
to
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 h
a
lf
-y
e
a
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

4
0
 

4
0
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
7
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 t
e
a
m

 
2
 P
o
s
ts
 d
e
le
te
d
, 
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 
d
e
le
te
d
 p
o
s
ts
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 

8
4
 

8
4
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
8
 

K
a
lla
r 
L
o
d
g
e
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

A
w
a
it
in
g
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
d
e
le
te
d
 p
o
s
t 
fr
o
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

2
3
 

0
 

2
3
 

Page 20



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/1
9
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
e
 d
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
S
c
 

6
 p
o
s
t 
c
£
3
2
k
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 

1
5
 

1
5
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/2
0
 

D
e
le
te
 A
rt
s
 T
e
a
m

 
P
o
s
t 
d
e
le
te
d
 n
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 c
o
s
ts

 
2
5
 

2
5
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/2
4
 

E
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
re
a
te
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/2
7
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 C
C
T
V
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
 

1
5
3
 

0
 

1
5
3
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/2
8
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
o
s
ts

 
P
o
s
t 
d
e
le
te
d
 

2
8
 

2
8
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/2
9
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs

 
P
o
s
t 
d
e
le
te
d
 

1
9
 

1
9
 

0
 

A
C
S
/S
A
V
/3
2
 

S
u
m
m
e
rs
 S
o
rt
e
d
 H
o
lid
a
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

N
o
w
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

3
0
 

3
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

N
o
n
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 S
u
p
p
lie
s
 &
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
d
g
e
ts

 
S
a
v
in
g
 a
s
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 g
ra
n
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

9
0
 

9
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 h
o
m
e
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y 
c
h
o
ic
e
 &
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
g
ro
u
p
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 p
ri
c
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
 

H
o
m
e
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts

 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
a
c
to
re
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 c
a
re
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
re
c
a
s
t 

2
0
 

2
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
-h
o
u
s
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w
it
h
 a
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ty
  
(8
0
 G
a
s
c
o
ig
n
e
) 

8
0
 G
a
s
c
o
ig
n
e
 R
d
 w
o
rk
s
 n
e
a
rl
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 t
b
c
 

7
5
 

0
 

7
5
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

2
 p
o
s
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 h
e
ld
 v
a
c
a
n
t,
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 

d
e
le
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 H
R
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t  

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 &
 P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

2
5
0
 

2
5
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

N
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 

2
1
5
 

2
1
5
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 d
a
y
, 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

R
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

s
a
v
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 f
ro
m
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 
1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

B
ro
a
d
w
a
y 
th
e
a
tr
e
 

B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

C
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
G
o
re
s
b
ro
o
k
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

A
n
y 
c
o
s
ts
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 G
o
re
s
b
ro
o
k
 p
ri
o
r 

to
 s
a
le
 t
o
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
c
e
ip
t.
 

3
7
1
 

3
7
1
 

0
 

Page 21



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

O
ly
m
p
ic
 u
n
it
 

O
ly
m
p
ic
 U
n
it
 d
e
le
te
d
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

2
1
8
 

2
1
8
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
le
te
d
 

le
a
v
in
g
 n
o
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 l
e
a
v
e
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
S
t.
 G
e
o
rg
e
s
 

d
a
y
 a
n
d
 c
la
s
s
ic
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rt
 e
v
e
n
ts

 
9
0
 

6
0
 

3
0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

E
x
p
a
n
d
in
g
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
t 

h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 v
e
n
u
e
s
 

In
c
o
m
e
 s
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
in
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
is
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
w
a
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
t.
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 i
ts
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 t
o
 t
ry
 

a
n
d
 m

e
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts

 
1
0
 

0
 

1
0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 R
e
v
ie
w

 
C
a
s
tl
e
 G
re
e
n
 a
n
d
 M

a
rk
y
a
te
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c
lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 s
o
 n
o
 c
o
s
ts
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
s
e
 I
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
2
6
 

2
2
6
 

0
 

T
o
ta
l 
A
d
u
lt
 &
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  
  

  
  
  
4
,3
2
4
  

  
  
  
3
,8
4
6
  

4
7
8
 

  
 

Page 22



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
1
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 -
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 f
o
rm

a
t 
o
f 

P
h
a
s
e
 3
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
2
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
3
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 A
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 

a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
 w
a
g
e
 s
u
b
s
id
y
 t
o
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1
4
-1
9
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
4
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
re
ti
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
5
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
E
s
ta
te
s
 T
e
a
m
 (
c
a
p
it
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
) 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
5
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
6
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
£
1
0
0
k
 i
n
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/0
8
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 -
 T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
c
o
s
ts
 

to
 c
a
te
ri
n
g
 t
ra
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
rh
e
a
d
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(a
) 

T
a
rg
e
te
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
, 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 
O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(b
) 

T
ro
u
b
le
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 C
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 -
 F
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
 1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 1
4
/1
5
 (
n
o
n
-r
e
c
u
rr
e
n
t)

 
O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(c
) 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 -
 Y
o
u
th
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 c
a
rd
 t
o
 b
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 G
ra
n
t 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(d
) 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 -
 M
is
c
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
5
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(e
) 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
 D
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
1
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(v
a
c
a
n
t 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
) 
a
n
d
 1
 A
d
m
in
 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(f
) 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
le
x
 N
e
e
d
s
 -
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
E
P
 

in
c
o
m
e
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(g
) 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 -
 L
o
n
g
 T
e
rm

 C
a
re

 
O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

(h
) 

M
a
x
im
is
in
g
 o
f 
g
ra
n
t 
fl
e
x
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
  

0
 

Page 23



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
1
 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 u
s
e
 o
f 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
e
rs
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
2
 

C
o
m
p
le
x
 N
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
, 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
a
re
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
0
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
5
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E
s
ta
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
re
d
u
c
e
 t
o
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

o
n
ly
 p
o
s
ts
, 
a
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
le
a
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
fr
o
m
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
5
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/1
7
 

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
e
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

te
a
m
, 
w
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 D
S
G
 b
u
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

m
a
y
 f
e
e
l 
n
o
t 
e
q
u
ip
p
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 -
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
is
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 S
E
N
 c
o
s
ts

 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
5
  

0
 

C
H
S
/S
A
V
/2
0
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
o
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
n
ly

 
O

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
0
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
/C
ri
s
is
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
/ 
F
a
m
ily
 G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
in
g
 M
e
rg
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 t
h
re
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

C
A
M
H
S
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 C
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 r
e
n
e
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 

e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
te
a
m

 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

 0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 T
e
a
m
 -
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 s
h
o
rt
 

b
re
a
k
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
e
d
 i
n
to
 b
a
s
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

A
d
u
lt
 C
o
lle
g
e
 -
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
lle
g
e
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 /
 o
v
e
rh
e
a
d
s
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
/S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
0
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
In
c
o
m
e
 -
 R
a
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
L
A
 

in
c
o
m
e
 -
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
/O
th
e
r 
L
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 L
o
c
a
lit
y
 T
e
a
m
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
5
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
5
  

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

P
o
rt
a
g
e
 A
m
a
lg
a
m
a
ti
o
n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

O
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
  

0
 

T
o
ta
l 

 
 

2
,7
0
8
 

2
,7
0
8
 

0
 

Page 24



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

R
e
f 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
1
(a
) 

C
a
te
ri
n
g
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 P
a
rk
s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
to
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t,
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
u
p
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
n
in
g
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
  

2
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
1
(b
) 

P
a
rk
 R
a
n
g
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
6
0
  

2
6
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
2
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 -
 E
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
2
  

5
2
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
3
 

R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
 -
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
  
 

1
8
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
4
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
ro
a
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 /
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
 p
a
tr
o
ls

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
  

8
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
7
 

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
ig
h
t 
ti
m
e
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 

N
ig
h
t 

c
le
a
n
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
s
ti
ll 

o
n
g
o
in
g
, 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 
p
o
s
ts
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
0
  

2
1
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/0
9
 

C
o
n
s
o
lid
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 P
la
n
t 
- 
5
%
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
n
 k
it
, 
fu
e
l 
&
 v
e
h
ic
le
 u
s
e
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

a
ll 
k
it
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
0
  

1
2
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/1
1
 

L
a
n
d
 D
ra
in
a
g
e
 -
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
n
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
0
  

6
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/1
2
 

D
e
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
D
e
p
o
ts

 
L
ik
e
ly
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
c
lo
s
in
g
 
o
f 

P
a
rs
lo
e
s
 d
e
p
o
t.
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
0
  

4
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/1
5
 

R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
 G
F
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

L
in
k
e
d
 
to
 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
; 
re
p
o
rt
 
b
e
in
g
 

p
re
p
a
re
d
 
fo
r 

J
u
ly
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

to
 
a
g
re
e
 

fu
n
d
in
g
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
0
  

1
5
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/1
8
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
0
  

1
4
0
 

H
&
E
/S
A
V
/2
1
 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
 b
u
lk
y
 w
a
s
te
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
5
  

5
5
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 u
s
e
 o
f 
b
u
s
e
s
 

D
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 A
C
S
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
jo
u
rn
e
y
s
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
s
ti
ll 

re
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 s
a
m
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ro
u
te
s
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
  

1
0
0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 m

o
w
in
g
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 n
a
tu
ra
lis
e
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

fi
g

u
re

s
 

fr
o
m

 
‘c

o
n

fi
rm

’ 
a
re

 
n
o

w
 i
n

a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
s
o
 t

h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
2
  

3
2
 

Page 25



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 R
e
f 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

w
ill

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
y
. 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

M
a
k
in
g
 P
a
rk
s
 m
o
re
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le

 

P
a
rk
in
g
 
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 
in
 
P
a
rk
s
 
n
o
t 

b
e
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
(£
9
K
) 

a
s
 
p
e
r 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
 
G
ra
z
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
a
t 

M
ill
e
n
n
iu
m
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

(£
4
.5
k
),
 
o
n
ly
 
h
a
lf
 
o
f 
B
o
w
lin
g
 
G
re
e
n
s
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 

a
n
d
 

‘G
o
lf
w
is
e
’ 

a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

(i
.e
.£
2
5
k
) 

a
s
 
o
ri
g
in
a
l 

c
o
s
ti
n
g
s
 
fr
o
m
 

‘C
o
n
fi
rm

’ 
n
o
w
 
in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
, 
In
c
o
m
e
 
fr
o
m
 

L
a
k
e
s
, 

T
e
n
n
is
 

a
n
d
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 
a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
. 
N
o
n
-e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

s
p
e
n
d
 p
u
t 
o
n
 h
o
ld
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 d
e
fi
c
it
. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
6
  

7
2
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
  
P
a
rk
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
  

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
  

5
0
 

T
o
ta
l 

 
 

1
,6
6
5
 

1
,6
2
1
 

  
 

Page 26



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/0
1
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 -
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
. 
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

L
IP
 t
o
p
 s
lic
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

2
5
 

2
5
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/0
6
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
O
ra
c
le
 R
1
2
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

2
0
0
 

2
0
0
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
x
 A
s
s
e
t 
&
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
e
n
tr
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 i
.e
. 
s
u
p
p
lie
s
 &
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
, 

tr
a
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
u
n
c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
ft
e
r 
E
le
v
a
te
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

1
2
0
 

1
2
0
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
2
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 -
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

2
6
 

2
6
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
3
 

R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

3
1
 

3
1
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
4
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C
M
 U
n
it
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
5
 

D
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 P
ro
je
c
t 
&
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
p
o
s
t 
- 
P
O
4
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

4
7
 

4
7
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
6
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

G
ro
u
p
 i
n
to
 E
le
v
a
te
, 
w
it
h
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 E
le
v
a
te
, 
to
 s
o
m
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 

H
&
E
. 
A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
o
n
ly
 £
1
5
0
k
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 d
iv
is
io
n
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 

d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
t.
 T
h
e
 

d
iv
is
io
n
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
b
s
o
rb
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
h
o
rt
fa
ll.
  

3
0
0
 

1
5
0
 

1
5
0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
7
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 o
f 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
&
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 s
ta
ff
 t
im
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

1
5
3
 

1
5
3
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/1
8
 

M
e
rg
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
lie
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 

T
e
a
m
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

1
2
5
 

1
2
5
 

0
 

F
IN
&
R
E
S
/S
A
V
/2
2
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 -
 D
e
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
n
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

3
8
 

3
8
 

0
 

Page 27



A
p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 

 

R
e
f:
 

D
e
ta
il
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/0
1
 

C
E
 O
ff
ic
e
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
lie
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

3
0
 

3
0
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/0
2
 

P
o
lic
y 
&
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 -
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
lie
s
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
e
 P
O
2
 p
o
s
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 

P
o
lic
y
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

1
0
2
 

1
0
2
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/0
5
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 -
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 s
u
p
p
lie
s
 &
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/0
6
 

L
e
g
a
l 
&
 D
e
m
o
 -
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/0
8
 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 –
 S
a
v
in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 

to
 P
A
S
S
C
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 

6
2
2
 

6
2
2
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/1
0
 

P
o
lic
y 
- 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
e
n
tr
a
lis
in
g
 

P
o
lic
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

8
0
 

8
0
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/1
1
 

C
e
a
s
e
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 N
e
w
s
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 –
 P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

c
e
a
s
e
d
. 

6
0
 

6
0
 

0
 

C
E
X
/S
A
V
/1
2
 

L
e
g
a
l 
- 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 /
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 w
it
h
 T
h
u
rr
o
c
k
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

o
f 
G
M
 p
o
s
ts
 i
n
 L
e
g
a
l 

5
4
 

5
4
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
/ 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

4
0
 

4
0
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
s
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

M
o
d
e
rn
 W

a
y
s
 o
f 
W
o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 

S
o
m
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 c
lo
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 c
lo
s
e
d
 

2
2
6
 

2
2
6
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
S
e
n
io
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

6
8
 

6
8
 

0
 

F
e
b
 2
0
1
2
 

A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

M
e
rg
e
 P
a
y
ro
ll 
a
n
d
 H
R
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
w
it
h
in
 E
le
v
a
te
) 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

8
6
 

8
6
 

0
 

T
o
ta
l 

 
 
  
2
,7
4
0
  

2
,5
8
3
 

1
5
7
 

 

Page 28



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C

H
O
U
S
IN
G
 R
E
V
E
N
U
E
 A
C
C
O
U
N
T

 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

 O
ri
g
in
a
l 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

 R
e
v
is
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

 F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

 F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

 R
e
n
ts

(8
3
,9
0
1
)

(8
6
,6
2
7
)

(8
6
,6
2
7
)

(8
7
,0
9
7
)

(4
7
0
)

 N
o
n
 D
w
e
lli
n
g
 R
e
n
t

(2
,4
8
9
)

(2
,5
0
3
)

(2
,5
0
3
)

(2
,3
5
5
)

1
4
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 O
th
e
r 
In
c
o
m
e

(1
9
,7
8
5
)

(1
7
,5
3
0
)

(1
7
,5
3
0
)

(1
7
,0
4
2
)

4
8
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 C
a
p
it
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
e
p
a
ir
s

(2
,7
0
0
)

(1
,0
0
0
)

(1
,0
0
0
)

(1
,0
0
0
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 R
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

2
2
,9
6
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

3
7
,3
6
3

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
7
,0
2
5

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
7
,0
2
5

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
8
,2
8
8

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,2
6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 R
e
n
t 
R
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 O
th
e
r

4
4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 B
a
d
 D
e
b
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n

6
3
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,1
5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,1
5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,1
5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 I
n
te
re
s
t 
C
h
a
rg
e
s

9
,2
9
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
,7
5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
,7
5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
,7
5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 &
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 C
o
re

8
1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
1
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 I
n
te
re
s
t

(6
4
2
)

(3
3
6
)

(3
3
6
)

(3
3
6
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
&
 D
e
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n

1
1
,3
4
5

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
,5
4
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
5
,5
4
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
4
,1
1
3

  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
,4
2
9
)

S
e
rv
ic
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

1
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,0
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
D
e
b
t

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 M
a
jo
r 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 R
e
s
e
rv
e

2
6
,3
4
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

S
u
b
s
id
y
 L
im
it
a
ti
o
n

1
3
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 H
R
A
 R
e
s
e
rv
e

(1
9
2
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3
/1

4

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



2013/2014 CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

Project 

No.
Project Name

Budget as agreed 

at Feb 2013 

Cabinet

12/13 Roll 

Forwards Approved 

by Cabinet May 

2013

Change to Roll-

Forward Request 

(Diff May - June)

June 2013

Current Budget 

2013/14

Revised Budget 

2013/14 Reprofiled

Adult & Community Services

Adult Social Care

2872 Fews Lodge Extra Care Scheme 0

2913 80 Gascoigne Road Care Home 197,809 197,809 197,809

2888 Direct Pymt Adaptations 0

100 Disabled Adaptations (HRA) 0 582,902

106 Private Sector Households 0

105 Private Sector Households (105) 0 (26,810)

Culture & Sport

1654 Ripple Hall (St Georges/Vol Group Relocation) 1,500 1,500 1,500

191 Eastbury House 3,198 3,198 3,198

2233 Valence Site Redevelopment 18,880 18,880 18,880

2266 Barking Park Restoration & Improvement 100,247 100,247 100,247

2768 Abbey Sports Centre (Wet Side Changing Areas) 3,004 3,004

2603 Becontree Heath Leisure Centre 153,655 153,655 159,170

2815 Goresbrook Leisure Centre - Olympic Training Venue 2,511 2,511

2855 Mayesbrook Park Athletics Arena 251,465 251,465 251,465

2870 Barking Leisure Centre 12-14 5939000 1,254,859 7,193,859 7,193,859

Total For Adult & Community Services 5,939,000 1,987,128 7,926,128 8,482,220

Children's Services

Primary Schools

2365 Gascoigne Primary -169 (169)

2555 Eastbury 108,431 -75,954 32,477 32,477

2735 Cambell Inf School Expansion -438 (438)

2736 Roding Primary School - Cannington Road Annex 146,939 146,939 146,939

2745

George Carey CE Primary School (formerly Barking Riverside 

Primary) 932,700 932,700 932,700

2759 Beam Primary Expansion 81,668 81,668 81,668

2799 St Joseph's Primary - expansion 82,503 82,503 82,503

2800 St Peter's Primary - expansion 33,869 33,869 33,869

2776 Thames View Infants - London TG Agreement 39,937 39,937 39,937

2787 Cambell Junior - Expansion & Refurb 18,064 18,064 17,626

2786 Thames View Juniors - Expansion & Refurb 366,772 366,772 333,772

2784 Manor Longbridge (Former UEL Site) -29,201 (29,201) (29,201)

2789 Westbury - New Primary School -419 (419) (419)

2790 St Georges - New Primary School -7,615 (7,615) 25,385

2860 Monteagle Primary (Quadrangle Infill) 50,000 45,696 95,696 95,696

2861 Eastbury Primary (Expansion) 345,000 528,012 873,012 873,012

2862 Gascoigne Primary (Expansion) -311,037 (311,037) 988,963

2863 Parsloes Primary (Expansion) 50,000 -910 49,090 49,090

2864 Godwin Primary (Expansion) 1,150,000 524,018 1,674,018 1,674,018

2865 William Bellamy Infants/Juniors (Expansion) 1,650,000 589,190 2,239,190 2,239,190

2866 Dagenham Village Rectory Road Library (Expansion) 200,000 200,000

2867 Southwood Primary (Expansion) 50,000 -36,837 13,163 13,163

2900 Becontree Primary Expansion 41,890 41,890 41,890

2924 St Josephs Primary Extn 352,092 352,092 352,092

2918 Roding Cannington 2013-15 -498,849 (498,849) 1,511,151

2919 Richard Alibon Expansion 41,133 41,133 41,133

2920 Warren/Furze Expansion 72,825 72,825 72,825

2921 Manor Infant Jnr Expansion 65,630 65,630 65,630

2922 Valence Halbutt Expansion -100,878 (100,878) 1,649,122

2923 Rush Green Expansion 15,000 15,000 15,000

2956 Marsh Green Primary 13-15

2957 John Perry School Expansion 13-15

2958 Fanshawe Adult College Refurb 13-15

2960 Parsloes Fanshawe Primary Expansion 13-15

2967 Warren Junior School 

Other Schemes

UAC12

New Capital Allocation - Implementation of early education for 2 year 

olds 889,302 889,302 889,302

2793 SMF - School Modernisation Fund 212,416 212,416 212,416

2742 Youth Access Card

2751 School's Kitchen Extension/Refurbishment 10/11 11,556 11,556 11,556

2724 Basic Needs Projects ( formerly Additional School Places)2011/12 231,226 231,226 231,226

2581 Schools Legionella Works

Page 31



2013/2014 CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

Project 

No.
Project Name

Budget as agreed 

at Feb 2013 

Cabinet

12/13 Roll 

Forwards Approved 

by Cabinet May 

2013

Change to Roll-

Forward Request 

(Diff May - June)

June 2013

Current Budget 

2013/14

Revised Budget 

2013/14 Reprofiled

2808 Schools L8 Water Quality Remedial Works 2010/11 -1,811 (1,811) (1,811)

2809 Schools Reboiler & Repipe Fund -9,730 (9,730) (9,730)

2826 512a Heathway - Conversion to a Family Resource 46,222 46,222 38,171

2878

512a Heathway (phase 2)- Conversion to a Family Resource with 

additional teaching space 7,222 7,222 7,222

9999 Devolved Capital Formula 1,019,545 -352,174 667,371 1,019,545

2601 Renewal School Kitchens 2009/10

2753 Cross-Government Co-Location Fund

2906 School Expansion SEN Projects 700,000 162,722 862,722 862,722

2909 School Expansion Minor Projcts 650,000 -177,027 472,973 472,973

2929 SMF 2012/13 1,125,000 544,412 1,669,412 1,600,303

2968 Capital Works (Devolved Funds) -1,409,432 (1,409,432) (1,409,432)

Children Centres

2310 William Bellamy Childrens Centre 20,932 -14,474 6,458 6,458

2311 Becontree Childrens Centre 232,319 -232,319

2217 John Perry Childrens 14,698 -5,079 9,619 9,619

2651 Alibon Childrens Centre -8,812 (8,812) (8,812)

2739 Gascoigne Community Centre -8,051 (8,051)

Secondary Schools

UAC1 New Schools Places - Primary 7,395,000 503,000 7,898,000 35,898,236

UAC2 New School Places - Various Schools/New Schools 182,635 182,635

UAC3 New Schools Places - Various Schools/New Schools 11,800,000 11,800,000

UAC4 New Schools Places - Various Schools/New Schools 31,600,000 250,000 31,850,000

UAC5 Provision of School Places (Basic Needs) Contingency 752,304 752,304 752,304

2818 Sydney Russell - Schools For The Future -1,550,511 306,635 (1,243,876) (1,243,876)

2825 Dagenham Park School -36,277 (36,277) (36,277)

2859 Robert Clack Expansion 496 496

2932 Trinity 6th Form Provison -237,245 (237,245)

2952 Barking Abbey Expansion 13-15

2953 All Saints Expansion 13-15 -112,399 (112,399)

2954 Jo Richardson Expansion 13-15

2955 Barking Riverside City Farm -408,617 (408,617) 2,591,383

2959 Robert Clack Expansion 13-15

2966 Eastbrook Comprehensive School

Skills, Learning & Enterprise

2723 Advanced Skills Centre 22,585 -103,036 (80,451) (80,451)

Total For Children's Services 56,587,585 5,727,507 -1,782,797 60,532,295 53,192,278

Housing and Environment

Non-HRA Housing

2570 Housing Modernisation Programme 10,893 10,893 0

Environmental Services

2288 Land Quality Inspection Programme 17,506 17,506 0

2764 Street Light Replacing 210,869 210,869 210,869

2842 Flats recycling banks scheme -3,800 -3,800 (7,600)

2777 SNAPS 46,645 46,645

2873 Environmental Improvements and Enhancements -50,119 (50,119) 6,432

2894 Road Safety Impv Sch Year 2 (TFL) -16,800 -59,327 (76,127)

2964 Road Safety Impv 2013-14 (TFL) 98,400

2887 Frizlands Wkshp Major Wks 145,447 145,447 145,447

2886 Parking Strategy Imp -342,614 (342,614) (342,614)

2907 Leys Road Reconstruction 12-13 3,533 3,533

2908 Brown Wheeled Bins Recycling -32,423 (32,423) (32,423)

2930 Highways Improvement Programme 3,000,000 -46,506 2,953,494 2,953,494

PGSS

2421 Staff Costs 12/14 38,500 -284 38,216 38,216

2423 Pondfield Park 42 42

2567 Abbey Green Park Development 8,913 8,913 8,913

2604 Valence Park Improvements 512 512

2326 BTC Public Art Project 2,298 2,298

2817 Mayesbrook Park Improvements (Phase 1) 67,459 67,459 67,459

2911 Quaker Burial Ground 52,500 7,500 60,000 60,000

2912 Barking Park Tennis Project 40,531 40,531 40,531

2948 Abbey Green- Churchyard Wall 64,959 64,959 64,959

2925 Adizone Project 12-13 10,000 10,000 40,949

Page 32



2013/2014 CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

Project 

No.
Project Name

Budget as agreed 

at Feb 2013 

Cabinet

12/13 Roll 

Forwards Approved 

by Cabinet May 

2013

Change to Roll-

Forward Request 

(Diff May - June)

June 2013

Current Budget 

2013/14

Revised Budget 

2013/14 Reprofiled

2879 Barking Park Light Railway & Rowing Boat Equipment 28,097 28,097

Total For Housing & Environment 3,119,097 117,709 (63,085) 3,173,721 3,360,632

Resources

Asset Strategy

UAC6 Local Implementation Plan (LIP2) 2,130,000 2,130,000

UAC8 Asset  Management Plans (All Directorates) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

UAC7 Corporate Accommodation Strategy 1,559,120 1,559,120

2741 L8 Control of Legionella Remedial Works 97,898 17,841 115,739 60,000

2578 Asbestos (Public Buildings) 0 10,000

2771 Automatic Meter Reading Equipment 70,000 24,481 94,481 31,494

2587 Energy Effieciency Programme 86,173 86,173 86,173

2542 Backlog Capital Improvements 391,451 307,660 699,111 744,850

2565 Implement Corporate Accommodation Strategy -895,578 (895,578) 663,542

ICT

2623 Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 88,794 88,794 88,794

2738 Modernisation & Improvement Capital Fund 1,698,698 1,698,698 1,698,698

2877 Oracle R12 Joint Services 2,632,746 -462 2,632,284 2,632,284

Regeneration

2458 New Dagenham Library & One Stop Shop 73,666 73,666 73,666

2596 Legi Business Centres 234,370 262,250 496,620 159,978

2717 Outer London Fund (formerly Retail Premises Improvements) -11,642 (11,642)

2969 Economic Development Growth Fund 325,000

2775 BTC Public Realm - Tsq & Abbey 24,771 24,771 24,771

2625 Thames View Regen Initiative 21,499 21,499 21,499

2819 London Road/North Street Site Acquisitions -257,359 (257,359) 257,359

2831 Barking Station Forecourt - Phase 2 Implementation (TFL & S106) 0

2821 Shopping Parade Enhancements 77,341 77,341 365,341

2854 Improvements to the rear of The Mall, Dagenham Heathway 170,009 170,009 170,009

2901 Creekmouth Arts & Heritage Trail 50,000 50,000 50,000

2902 Short Blue Place (New Market Square Barkin - Phase II) 158,469 158,469 158,469

2926 Outer London Fund Round 2 119,834 119,834 119,834

2927 Chequers/Abbey Road Public Realm improvements 391,677 391,677 391,677

2928

Captain Cook Site Acquisition and Public Realm Works (Abbey 

Leisure Centre) 331,296 331,296 50,000

2840 Car Club Expansion (TFL) 0

2841 Biking Borough Initiative (TFL) 0 91,200

2891 Merry Fiddlers Jnct Imp Year 2 (TFL) 0 384,000

2892 Cycling Greenways Year 2 (TFL) 0 96,000

2895 Chadwell Heath Station Impv (TFL) 0 288,000

2898 Local Transport Plans (TFL) 0 96,000

2899 River Roding Cycle Link / Goresbrook Park Cycle Links 0 192,000

2962 Principal Road Resurfacing 2013-14 TfL 450,000                  162,457 612,457 530,137

2963 Mayesbrook Neighbourhood Improvements (DIY Streets) 2013-14 288,000

2965 Safer & Smarter Travel Plans 2013-14 (TfL) 111,360

2910 Barking Stn Parade Assessment 60,000 60,000 60,000

2914 Barking Job Shop Relocation 73,003 73,003 73,003

UAC9 Capitalisation of Redundancies 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

Total For Resources 8,932,839 5,679,728 (12,104) 14,600,463 14,393,138

Grand Total General Fund 74,578,521 13,512,072 (1,857,986) 86,232,607 79,428,268

HRA

UAC11 HRA - Business Plan to be allocated 36,724,272 963,635 37,687,907

UAC10 Boroughwide Estate Renewal - Decants and Leaseholder Buyback
6,670,018 6,670,018

104 Housing Futures 1,469,175 -1,163 1,468,012

100 HRA Disabled Adaptation 600,000 600,000

2637 DH works Framework contracts 84

2640 MAJOR WORKS (R&M) PROJ. 0 1,000,000

2641 Heating works (Thaxted, Maxey & Humphries Houses) 1,879 1,879

2645 Planning and Contingencies 1,750,000 50,084 -134,889 1,665,195 519,084

Page 33



2013/2014 CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

Project 

No.
Project Name

Budget as agreed 

at Feb 2013 

Cabinet

12/13 Roll 

Forwards Approved 

by Cabinet May 

2013

Change to Roll-

Forward Request 

(Diff May - June)

June 2013

Current Budget 

2013/14

Revised Budget 

2013/14 Reprofiled

2725 Extensions and deconve 12,917 12,917 12,917

2726 External Enveloping Work 266,239 266,239 251,244

2727 CHP Programme 24,291 24,291

2728 Electrical Switchgear Project 97,685 97,685 97,685

2729 Lifts Replacement -5,000 (5,000)

2730 Sheltered Alarms Upgrade -137,874 (137,874)

2731 Colne & Mersea Blocks -35,868 (35,868) 187,500

2734 SAMS formerly remote concierge 52,296 52,296

2757 Council Housing - New Builds 235,478 235,478 235,478

2772 King William St Qtr 77,070 77,070 97,879

2773 New Build phase 2 & 3 225,365 225,365 225,365

2811 Capitalised Improvement Works 224,000 34,742 258,742 360,000

2813 Estate Improvement Project -29,718 (29,718) 600,000

2822 Communal Lighting and Electrical Switchgear 87,930 87,930 87,930

2823 New Council Housing Phase 3 1,304,874 1,304,874 1,000,000

2824 Oldmead & Bartlett Remedial Works 19,964 19,964 5,000

2844 Door Entry Project 11/12 622,224 622,224 1,200,000

2845 External Enveloping & Fire proofing project (including walkways) 840,008 840,008 1,200,000

2846 Defective Overflow Works 14,894 14,894 7,589

2847 Central Heating Installation inc. Communal Boiler Replacement 302,739 302,739 302,739

2848 Kitchen & Bathroom Replacement Project 103,829 103,829 64,000

2849 High Rise Surveys 746,710 -58,862 687,848 392,000

2850 Capitalised Improvement Works (Estates) 250,000 208,000 458,000 158,000

2852 Adaptations - Housing 200,000 7,220 207,220 120,220

2853 Estate Improvements -205,949 (205,949)

2880 Central Heating Installation Phase 2 (Enhanced) 14,239 14,239 14,239

2881 Kitchen , Bathroom, Central Heating and Re-wiring (Enh) 73,839 73,839 73,839

2882 Electrical Rewiring (Enhanced) 233,871 233,871 12,021

2933 Voids 12-14 4,900,000 -723,750 4,176,250 1,500,000

2934 Roof Replacement Project 7,740,000 196,596 7,936,596 2,000,000

2935 Internal Works Multiple Elmnts 4,900,000 -431,868 4,468,132 8,000,000

2936 Rewiring (incl Smoke Alarms) 1,000,000 -22,376 977,624 1,000,000

2937 CCTV/SAMS Phase 2 735,000 15,000 750,000 315,000

2938 Fire Safety Works 850,000 138,060 988,060 488,060

2939 Riverside House Refurb 700,000 95,500 795,500 2,300,000

2940 Door Entry Project 12/13 Phase II 950,000 30,650 980,650 980,650

2941 Renewables (PVs) & CESPs additional External Enveloping Works 1,900,000 26,732 1,926,732 1,926,732

2942 Travellers Site Refurbishment 140,000 36,682 176,682 237,000

2943 Asbestos Removal (Communal Areas only) 970,000 30,000 1,000,000 500,000

2944 R& M Set up Costs 129,468 129,468 3,129,468

2945 Street Properties Acquisition 2,000,000 266,939 2,266,939 1,266,939

2946 Older Persons Housing Strategy Phase 1 500,000 500,000 400,000

2947 External & Internal Lobby Refurb Programme PP 32,610 32,610 32,610

2949 External Enveloping incl. Walkways Phase II 4,900,000 22,863 4,922,863 1,422,863

2950 Central Heating Installation Inc. Communal Boiler Replacement Phase II 2,940,000 2,874 2,942,874 1,942,874

2951 Electrical Switchgear inc. Communal & Emergency Lighting Phase II 950,000 33,158 983,158 483,158

2820 Boroughwide Estate Renewal - Gascoigne Decants 55,541 55,541 968,259

2828 Boroughwide Estate Renewal - Leys Decants -81,385 (81,385) 168,072

2829 Boroughwide Estate Renewal - Goresbrook Village Decants -30,287 (30,287) 50,000

2856 Boroughwide Est Renewal - Leaseholders Buybacks (all) 1,381,815 1,381,815 2,834,035

2857 Boroughwide Est Renewal - Resources/Masterplanning 281,766 281,766 1,198,160

2858 Boroughwide Est Renewal - Demolition 971,447 971,447 3,894,500

2915 Boroughwide Estate Renewal - Althorne Way 35,111 35,111 171,000

2916 Lawns & Wood Lane Dvlpmnt -941,987 (941,987) 7,003,182

2917 Abbey Road CIQ 493,250 493,250 13,493,250

2931 Leys New Build Dev (HRA) 372,788 372,788 2,654,788

2961 Goresbrook Village Housing Development 13-15 3,270,000

2970 Marks Gate Open Gateway Regen Scheme 2,600,000

HRA:TBF To be funded by

Grand Total HRA 83,240,000 9,288,413 (136,052) 92,392,361 74,455,245

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 157,818,521 22,800,485 -1,994,038 178,624,968 153,883,513

Page 34



CABINET 
 

23 July 2013 
 

Title: Future Management Arrangements for the Library Service 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
 

Open Report 
 

For Decision 

Wards affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author: Paul Hogan, Divisional 
Director of Culture and Sport 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 3576 
E mail: paul.hogan@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Paul Hogan, Divisional Director of Culture and Sport 
 

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director of Adult and Community 
Services 
 

Summary  
 
When it set the budget for 2014/15, the Council agreed a saving of £593,000 from the 
library service. 
 
Specific options for how this would be achieved were not subject to the scrutiny process 
at that time. Instead it was decided that Ward Councillors would lead a consultation 
exercise about the library service to inform the development of new ways of delivering the 
service at a lower cost.  
 
The Safer and Stronger Select Committee met on 19 June 2013 to consider the findings 
from the consultation process and different options for the future management of the 
service. This pre-decision scrutiny by Members has been used to shape the proposals for 
the library service for consideration by Cabinet. 
 
This report recommends that a mixed economy approach should be adopted for the 
service, which, if agreed, would see a library service being delivered by directly employed 
staff, as well as through a community management arrangement and by using volunteers.  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
(i) Agree the implementation of Option Two as set out in this report in respect of the 

future management arrangements for the Library Service; 
 

(ii) Authorise the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, in consultation 
with the Divisional Director of Finance and the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services, to: 
 
a. conclude the transfer of the Rush Green library building to the Housing Service 

subject to agreement by the Divisional Director of Finance of the sum required, 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 35



and  
b. approve the leasing arrangements for the Robert Jeyes library; 

 
(iii) Note that savings of £400,000 will be achieved from implementing the above 

proposals in 2014/15;  
 
(iv) Agree that the difference between the agreed budget saving of £593,000 and the 

anticipated saving of £400,000 will be managed by the application of corporate 
contingency funds in 2014/15, and that for 2015/16 the shortfall will be addressed 
as part of the budget savings requirement; and 

 
(v) Agree that where appropriate and feasible, officers will bring forward the 

implementation of these proposals into 2013/14. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
The budget savings proposals are designed to contribute to the challenging budget 
shortfall and enable the Council to achieve a balanced budget while having regard for the 
Council’s key priorities and its statutory obligations. 
 

 
1. Introduction and Background 

 
1.1 As part of the 2013/14 budget round, Cabinet agreed a saving of £593,000 from the 

library service for 2014/15. 
 
1.2 One of the ways this could potentially be achieved would be through introducing a 

three tier service delivery arrangement that combines directly managed libraries 
(Dagenham Library and Barking Learning Centre) alongside services delivered by 
volunteers and/or community organisations (Valence, Thames View, Marks Gate, 
Rush Green and Robert Jeyes). 
 

1.3 To enable Members to make an informed decision about the viability of this and 
other potential management options, relevant Ward Councillors agreed to 
undertake a series of public consultation meetings in November and December 
2012 at Robert Jeyes library, Valence library, Marks Gate library, and Thames View 
library. A consultation event for Rush Green library service users was held in April 
2013. 

 
1.4 A meeting with voluntary sector organisations was held in January 2013 to see what 

appetite there is for community management of libraries. There was a low turnout at 
the meeting and so it was difficult to gauge at that stage what interest there is from 
existing groups to pursue this type of arrangement.  

 
1.5 A pre-decision scrutiny review was undertaken by the Safer and Stronger 

Community Select Committee on 19 June 2013 about the findings from the 
consultation process. The views provided have been used to shape the 
recommendations for the future management of the library service that are set out 
in this report. 

 
  

Page 36



2. Consultation findings 

 

2.1 A summary of the key findings from the public consultation events is set out below: 

 

• There was scepticism about the likelihood of being able to recruit and retain 
enough volunteers to maintain a good level of service across several libraries; 

• There was concern about security of stock and buildings if there were only 
volunteers running the service; 

• Libraries play a key role in the development of children's literacy and provide a 
quiet place for study and research; 

• Not everyone has access to the internet at home but they can get this at the 
library; 

• Libraries are important community facilities that are safe and accessible to 
everybody; 

• Libraries are used for lots of reasons not just to take books out; 

• Library staff are valued by service users. They don't believe that volunteers will 
be able to provide the same quality of service. Staff provide training, advice and 
information in a way that volunteers won't be able to; 

• Service users would accept changes to opening hours and different uses of 
library space to bring in more income if this would save jobs; 

• The Council has a legal duty to provide libraries, so cuts should be made to 
other services before libraries; 

• Older people value libraries because they are safe and warm places where they 
can meet and socialise and because staff are friendly and helpful. Concerns 
were expressed that older people will become more isolated and lonely if the 
way libraries are being run is changed (there are 2,500 people over 60 who are 
Active Borrowers  - about 9% of the total); 

• If changes have to be made, service users would prefer it if an arrangement was 
put in place that combines volunteers with some staff; 

• Savings should be made from the book stock fund and back office costs to 
protect front line services; 

• Concerns were raised around the cost of training volunteers who might then 
leave;  

• Opportunities to lever in external funding and business sponsorship should be 
pursued as a way of reducing costs; and 

• There was scepticism about the viability of introducing community management 
because this type of arrangement is so new that there aren’t many longstanding 
examples of where this has worked in the long term. 

 

3. Options 

 
3.1 Three options have been developed for consideration by Cabinet, which are 

summarised in table one below. 
 

  

Page 37



 Table 1  savings options 

 

Option Description Saving (£) 

 
Option 1 

 
 Volunteers 

 

• Council directly manages Dagenham Library and 
Barking Learning Centre (as now).  

 

• Volunteer delivered services at the following 
libraries: Valence, Thames View, Marks Gate and 
Robert Jeyes.   

 

• Rush Green library closes. Enhanced service 
provided at Barking and Dagenham learning centre 
(Rush Green Campus) 

 

• Staffing restructure undertaken to reduce posts 
across all facilities. 

 

 
 
 

593,000 

 
Option 2 

 
Mixed 

economy 
 

 

• Council directly manages Dagenham Library, 
Barking Learning Centre, Valence Library and 
Thames View Library (as now). 
 

• Reduced opening hours at Valence library (43 
hours per week down to 36) and Thames View 
library (43 hours per week down to 30).  

 

• Community management arrangement introduced 
at Robert Jeyes Library. 

 

• Volunteer delivered service at Marks Gate Library 
but facility still managed by the Council. 

 

• Rush Green library closes. Enhanced service 
provided at Barking and Dagenham learning centre 
(Rush Green Campus) 

 

• Service restructure undertaken to produce savings.  
 

 
 

400,000 

 
Option 3 

 
‘in house’ 

management 
but reduced 
service 

 

 

• All libraries directly managed by the Council but 
with reduced service.  

 

• Staffing restructure is undertaken to produce 
savings. 

 
200,000 

 
3.2 Option 2 incorporates the responses received from the pre-decision scrutiny by the 

Safer and Stronger Community Select Committee. In addition to the options 

Page 38



prepared by officers, Members specifically asked for proposals to be included to 
provide savings by reducing opening hours at Valence and Thames View libraries.  

 
3.3 Scrutiny Members considered but did not support options to close Barking Learning 

Centre on Sunday and to close libraries to the public over lunchtime. They were 
also undecided about changing working patterns for staff to achieve savings and 
expressed concern about the impact that this would have on the workforce. 

 
3.4 Some assumptions have been made for all three options (except where specified): 
 

• Rush Green library closes; 

• Book stock budget is reduced; 

• IT software, hardware and support continues to be provided by the Council for 
any volunteer or community management arrangement; 

• Self service terminals (RFID) to be provided by the Council at each library, 
which will allow service users to borrow and return books themselves as well as 
extend loan periods;  

• Library service to provide recruitment (inc. Disclosure Barring Service checks), 
induction and training of volunteers;  

• Specialist support for specific activities, such as storytelling workshops, to be 
provided by the Library service; and 

• Library service continues to have responsibility for cleaning, building 
maintenance and other running costs except for option two in relation to Robert 
Jeyes Library. 

 
Rush Green Library 

 
3.5 A meeting was held in January 2013 between Eastbrook Ward Councillors and the 

Principal and Chief Executive of Barking and Dagenham College to discuss the 
future operation and viability of Rush Green Library in the context of the College’s 
decision to build a new library with community access, which is scheduled to open 
in September 2013. 

  
3.6 Following that meeting, officers have met with relevant managers at the College to 

make sense of how the new learning centre could benefit service users of the Rush 
Green library. The key points are outlined below: 

 

• The College has agreed that all regular events currently taking place at Rush 
Green library can be accommodated in the new facility. 

• The learning centre will offer enhanced opening hours to that of the present 
library.  This is currently open 3 days a week with one late evening until 7pm.  It 
is envisaged that the library in the learning centre will be open at least 6 days a 
week with longer opening hours but these have yet to be finalised. 

• We are exploring the best way to provide membership to residents and at this 
stage we are looking at running two library systems side by side. This will 
ensure that residents will continue to be able to access Borough library book 
stock.  

• All stock in the College library is to be available to loan by the public who join at 
Rush Green campus.  This means an improved range of stock will be available 
to users. 

• Stock purchasing – LBBD library service has offered to purchase children’s 
stock, adult fiction and spoken word materials for the College library.  This will 

Page 39



be done through our current procurement arrangement as part of the London 
Libraries Consortium. 

• Many more PCs will be available and for much longer than is currently the case 
with Rush Green library, however, the number of terminals has yet to be 
finalised. 

• When the library opens in September 2013 it is proposed that groups of local 
residents and existing library service users will be invited to have tours of the 
new facility.  These will be conducted by Barking and Dagenham library staff.  
This is to enable service users to familiarise themselves with the new building 
and layout and how they can join and use the new library.   

• The College library will offer additional services not currently available at Rush 
Green library: extensive study spaces; access to a range of journals, magazines 
and newspapers; a café; and access to a range of online resources 

 
3.7 The Ward Councillors agreed that the opportunity presented by the new College 

facility would be the key point for discussion at the consultation event for Rush 
Green library service users in April 2013. Following that meeting, the Ward 
Councillors have indicated that they would not be opposed to the closure of the 
library if this was to be considered appropriate and approved by Cabinet. 

 
4. Options appraisal 
 
4.1 Option 2 is the preferred option. This is because it has a significantly lower risk of 

failure than option 1 and is expected to realise double the level of savings 
compared to option 3.  

 
4.2 It is estimated that option 2 will achieve a full year saving of £400,000 for 2014/15. 

Where appropriate and feasible, officers will bring forward the implementation of 
these proposals into 2013/14. 

 
5. Financial implications 
 
 Prepared by Dawn Calvert, Group Manager – Finance 
 
5.1 The net budget for the library service for 2013/14 is £2,201,000, a reduction of 

£669,000 on the 2011/12 net budget of £2,870,000. 
 
5.2 It is estimated that savings of £400,000 will be achieved from the implementation of 

the proposals set out in this report; however, this is £193,000 less than the savings 
figure agreed by the Council for 2014/15.  

 
5.3 Members are asked to agree that the funding gap will be managed by the 

application of corporate contingency funds in 2014/15. For 2015/16 the shortfall will 
be addressed as part of the budget savings requirement. 

 
6. Legal implications 
 
 Prepared by Lucinda Bell, Senior Solicitor 
 
6.1 This report provides a range of options to deliver savings that are required to meet 

budget pressures. Local authorities are under an explicit duty to ensure that their 
financial management is adequate and effective and that they have a sound system 

Page 40



of internal control and management of financial risk. The duty to secure Best Value 
requires local authorities to plan, deliver and continuously improve local authority 
services. 

 
6.2 The Council has a duty under section 7 of the Public Libraries & Museums Act 1964 

to provide ‘a comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons desiring to 
make use thereof’ and this should be so evidenced by an examination of the needs 
and a suitable service plan to continue to meet the duty. 

 
6.3 Where there are proposals for the closure or discontinuance of a service or 

services, appropriate consultation will need to be carried out. The savings proposals 
that affect staff will require consultation with Unions and staff.  

 

6.4 The Council must have due regard to the duty imposed on it under s149 of the 

Equality Act 2010, that is to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 

that the Equality Act 2010 prohibits, and to: 

• Advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those 
individuals who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do 
not. 

 
6.5 To achieve this, Members will need to be sure that a relevant Equality Impact 

Assessment has been carried out before the proposals are decided by Cabinet, and 
consider the results of this in full. 

 
6.6 Decisions to reduce library services have been the subject of judicial review 

proceedings.  In order act in accordance with public law principles it is important 
that any decision taken is reasonable, rational and procedurally correct.  It is 
important that all relevant factors and considerations are taken into account, 
especially the consultation and the duty referred to above, under s149 of the 
Equality Act, and that Members retain an open mind.   

 
6.7 Members must also consider the practical impact of the proposed decision, and the 

alternative courses of action that were proposed, and whether any adverse impacts 
arising from the decision to cut or withdraw funding or services can be mitigated, 
and give proper reasons for their decision.   

 

7. Other implications 

 

7.1 Risk management 

 

Option 1 

 There is considered to be a high level of risk associated with this option because its 
success is dependent upon the recruitment and retention of a large number of 
volunteers to provide staffing cover during opening hours. The service could also be 
disrupted on a regular basis and at short notice if volunteers do not attend as 
expected. 

 
 Whilst there are about 50 volunteers currently working in LBBD libraries, many of 

whom would support the delivery of this service model, this is a low number when 

Page 41



compared to volunteering levels in other libraries in the Borough’s benchmarking 
group. 

 
 The latest figures (2011/12) for Merton and Lewisham councils, both of which are in 

Barking and Dagenham Council’s CIPFA benchmarking group, shows that Merton 
had over 500 volunteers giving nearly 25,000 hours of their time annually with the 
corresponding figures for Lewisham being over 300 volunteers giving nearly 30,000 
hours of their time each year. 

 
 It is estimated that a total of about 600 volunteer hours per week, roughly 30,000 

hours each year, will be required to maintain current opening hours and provide 
adequate cover for holidays and short term absence. The current figure is about 40 
hours per week; however, it should be noted that there has been only limited effort 
to date to actively promote volunteering in the Borough’s libraries. 

 
 There is no pattern to how volunteers currently choose to spend their time  with the 

library service: some will have a day that fits with their other commitments, others 
can be flexible or prefer a morning/afternoon to fit with childcare or other 
commitments. Saturday volunteers tend to be those without other commitments. 
The time spent volunteering tends to be either an hour or two at a time 

 It is also clear that this option was very unpopular with people who attended the 
consultation events, which may dissuade some people from volunteering. 

 It will clearly be a big challenge to actively promote, recruit, train and retain the 
number of volunteers who would be needed to make this model of service delivery 
sustainable and successful.  However, this is a challenge that other councils similar 
to Barking and Dagenham have successfully addressed over time.  It could 
therefore be anticipated that the number of volunteers could be substantially 
increased over time. 

 
 Option 2  
 There is a lower level of risk associated with this option compared to option one 

because the current ‘in house’ management arrangement for five out of six LBBD 
libraries would be maintained. 

 
 It is considered feasible to operate Marks Gate Library by volunteers but with 

oversight of the facility by Children’s Services staff who are based at the Marks 
Gate community centre. The community centre complex itself is managed by the 
Culture and Sport division. 

 
 Establishing a community management arrangement for Robert Jeyes library 

presents more of a challenge but it is considered that this could be achieved with 
adequate lead in time.  

 
 During the consultation process, this was the only library where service users 

expressed interest in investigating this type of management arrangement as a way 
of securing the future of the library. 

 
 With strong support and commitment from Whalebone Ward Councillors and the 

Barking and Dagenham CVS, several meetings have been held at the library with 
service users and a fledgling ‘friends of the Robert Jeyes library’ group has been 
formed. Although it is early days in the development of this group, it is considered 

Page 42



that over time it could develop in such a way that it could take on the management 
of the library but with continued support from the LBBD library service. However, it 
should be noted that members of the group have expressed concern about their 
capacity and capability at this time to effectively manage the library. 

 
 Exploratory meetings with the Headteacher at the nearby Warren Junior School 

have also been productive and there is initial interest in having further discussions 
about the school accessing space and services at the library as well as providing 
support with regard to governance arrangements. 

 
 There is also potential for the library to become a base for other activities for either 

children or older people. 
 
 Option 3 
 This option has the lowest level of risk. If adopted, all LBBD libraries would continue 

to be managed ‘in house’. The saving would be achieved by a service restructure of 
the library service management team, which would mean that the current number of 
libraries would be maintained but the range and quality of service would be 
reduced. 

 
7.2 Staffing issues – it is expected that there will be significant implications for staff, 

which include the deletion of about 12 full time equivalent posts (if option 2 is 
implemented). The Trade Unions have been fully briefed on the budget challenge 
facing the Council.  Staff have been briefed around the implications of the specific 
proposals set out in this report, and following this meeting formal consultation will 
start in line with the Council’s change management policies. Comments from staff 
and Trade Unions will be taken into account in the final decision making process. 

 
7.3 Customer impact - the equalities impact assessment for the library service 

indicates that women, older people and children and young people would be 
particularly affected by any reduction to the current level of library provision across 
the Borough.  

 
 At this time it is considered that a good quality and comprehensive library service 

continues to be provided across the Borough: fewer than 1,000 of the Borough’s 
residents live more than 1 mile away or further than 20 minutes travel time by public 
transport to a library. This takes into account current library provision in the 
neighbouring boroughs of Havering and Redbridge. 

 
 None of the options outlined in this report envisage a reduction in the number and 

distribution of the service across the Borough or that there will be any adverse 
impact to the core offer; however, it is recognised that the quality of service that can 
be provided by a community managed or volunteer led service is unlikely to be as 
consistently good as that provided by a wholly Council managed service. 

 
 Steps will be taken to minimise any adverse impact by the Council retaining 

responsibility for sourcing and providing book stock, maintaining IT support 
including self-service terminals, giving specialist support for activities and events, 
and support for recruitment and training of volunteers. 

 
7.4 Crime and Disorder Issues - the Council has a statutory duty to consider crime 

and disorder implications in all its decision making. The Council will  continue to 

Page 43



provide and support the delivery of quality facilities and activities, which will provide 
positive activities for all residents and, in particular, opportunities for families to 
enjoy their leisure time together.   

 
7.5 Health issues - it is recognised that libraries have huge potential to contribute to 

the health and wellbeing of local communities as well as the needs of the most 
vulnerable within communities, who need access to good quality information and 
digital literacy skills to participate effectively in an increasingly online world.  

 
Libraries provide space for people to meet and socialise and schemes like the 
Home Library Service help to reduce loneliness, which can be a particular problem 
for some older people especially those who find it difficult to get out and about. 
 

7.6 Safeguarding - libraries provide a unique resource to help improve literacy levels in 
adults and children, in particular for those residents for whom English is not their 
first language. They also offer quiet, safe and well equipped study and research 
space for residents of all ages. 
 
The service delivers the library service for a number of local schools as well as 
activities that encourage children and young people to develop a love of books and 
reading.  

 
All Council libraries operate within the Culture and Sport division’s safeguarding 
policy framework for children and vulnerable adults. The new library to be provided 
in the Barking and Dagenham learning centre (Rush Green campus) will follow the 
Barking and Dagenham College’s safeguarding arrangements. 
 
The Council will require robust safeguarding arrangements to be adopted for the 
proposed community management arrangement for the Robert Jeyes Library. To 
support this it is intended that the Council will provide recruitment (incl. Disclosure 
Barring Service checks), induction and training support for all volunteers. 
 

7.7  Property/Asset issues - this report recommends the closure of Rush Green library 
and the transfer of the Robert Jeyes library to a community management 
arrangement.  

 
 This report seeks delegated authority for the disposal of the redundant Rush Green 

library building as well as the leasing arrangements for the Robert Jeyes library.  
 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 

• Report to Cabinet – Barking and Dagenham library strategy (23 July 2013) 

• Report to Safer and Stronger Community Select Committee – future management 
arrangements for the library service (19 June 2013) 

• Equality Impact Assessment – LBBD library service 
  
 
List of appendices: None 

Page 44



CABINET 
 

23 July 2013 
 

Title: A Library Strategy for Barking and Dagenham 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council  
 

Open Report For Decision  
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 
 

Report Author: Paul Hogan, Divisional 
Director, Culture and Sport  
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 227 3576 
E-mail: paul.hogan@lbbd.gov.uk  

Accountable Divisional Director: Paul Hogan, Divisional Director, Culture and Sport  
 

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director, Adult and Community Services 
 

Summary:  
 
The purpose of the strategy is to provide a shared vision and a framework for the delivery 
and promotion of Library Services over the next three years. The strategy has been 
informed by and will support the delivery of the priorities identified in the Community 
Strategy and Council Corporate Plan. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to approve the Libraries Strategy 2013 - 2016 as attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
To assist the Council in achieving its key priorities: Ensure every child is valued so that 
they can succeed; Improve health and wellbeing through all stages of life; Maximise 
growth opportunities and increase the household income of Borough residents. 
 
It is recognised that libraries have huge potential to contribute to the health and wellbeing 
of local communities as well as the needs of the most  vulnerable within communities, who 
need access to good quality information  and digital literacy skills to participate effectively 
in an increasingly online world.  Public libraries also provide a unique resource to help 
improve literacy levels in adults and children, in particular for those residents for whom  
English is not their first language. 
 

 
1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 Barking and Dagenham libraries have played a key role over many years in helping 

to improve the quality of life of local people and supporting them to reach their full 
potential. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 45



1.2 All councils have a duty to provide a ‘comprehensive and efficient service’, which 
usually means that people who live, work or study in a local authority area should 
have access free of charge to borrow or refer to books and other printed material. 
However, our libraries do much, much more than this. 

 
1.3 We think that our libraries are at the heart of our community. Our libraries help 

people get on line and do research on the internet. We support people to look for 
jobs and help them find out about other services that the Council and its partners 
provide. Also children and adults use our libraries as safe places for quiet study and 
to learn new skills and improve their literacy. We also run a wide range of events 
and activities for families and people of all ages, which support community 
cohesion.   
 

1.4 Some of our libraries are truly exceptional: The Barking Learning Centre is an 
award winning facility in the heart of Barking and is the 16th busiest library in the 
country. The Dagenham library on the Heathway is another modern library which 
opened in October 2010 and is attracting over 40,000 visitors a month.  

 
1.5 We want to build on the good work that libraries are already doing but recognise 

that this has to be achieved in very constrained financial circumstances. 
 
2. Proposals and Issues  
 
2.1 This strategy has been prepared because we want to develop a library service that 

is more efficient and effective and better meets the current and emerging needs of 
our residents.  

 
2.2 Over the last couple of years our main focus has been on “getting the house in 

order” and along with all other council services we have had to find significant 
savings to bridge the funding gap now facing local government. 

 
2.3 We have changed the way that libraries are managed, restructured library staffing 

arrangements and reviewed and amended opening hours. Councillors have also 
had to take the difficult decision to close libraries; however, we have worked hard to 
minimise the impact of this on service users. 

 
2.4 We are now looking to the future.  The strategy aims to improve literacy levels 

amongst children and adults by increasing the use of libraries by residents, making 
them aware of the services on offer, increase partnerships and develop the joy and 
benefit of reading amongst local residents. 

 
2.5 This strategy is intended to provide a framework around which we will focus our 

efforts over the next three years to improve the quality of life of local people.  In 
order to do this, seven priority areas have been identified:  

 

• Priority One: Marketing – Tell people about it 

• Priority Two: Community Engagement and Collaboration  

• Priority Three: Improving our buildings 

• Priority Four: Staff and volunteers 

• Priority Five: Stock and reader development 

• Priority Six: Technology and innovation 

• Priority Seven: Financial Sustainability 

Page 46



 
2.6 The final version of the strategy and improvement action plan is attached at 

appendix one in a ‘plan on a page’ summary format. A more detailed version of the 
strategy, which will be used to support external funding bids, is attached at 
appendix two. 

 
Resourcing the strategy  
 

2.7 Section 8 of the draft strategy sets out clearly that Council funding for libraries will 
reduce during the life of the strategy. This reality has directly shaped the 
development of the strategy and the accompanying improvement action plan. 

 
2.8 A cornerstone of the strategy is the need to improve efficiency and effectiveness to 

deliver the same quality and range of services for less money, or to deliver more for 
the same level of expenditure.  There will also be a continued focus over the life of 
the strategy and beyond to secure funding from other sources working in 
partnership with local, sub-regional and national agencies.  

 

2.9 There also needs to be the consideration of a range of management models 
including asset transfer of libraries as well as services being delivered by the 
voluntary, private or trust sectors. These could provide a more effective way of 
maximising available resources in order to release funds for the continued 
development of library provision in these financially constrained times. 

 
3. Options appraisal  

 
3.1 The options available to Cabinet are to approve the strategy and action plan (with 

any direction on amendments to be made) or to reject it. 
 
3.2 Not to approve the strategy would mean that there is no strategic framework to 

drive improvements in the service, which would also impact on the ability to lever in 
external funding to support service delivery. 

 
3.3 Therefore, Members are recommended to adopt the strategy and improvement 

action plan with any amendments, removals, or additions as they consider 
appropriate.  

 
3.4 If approved, it is intended to make the strategy available in an electronic format 

only.   
 
 4. Consultation 
 
4.1 Consultation has been undertaken to inform the development of the strategy 

including:  a series of strategy planning workshops with staff, service users and 
non-service users; ten consultation events have been held with service users in the 
branch libraries; and a pre-decision scrutiny of the proposed themes for the strategy 
was undertaken by the Safer and Stronger Community Select Committee.  

 
4.2 The recommendations from Scrutiny Members have been incorporated into the 
 strategy, including:  
 

• increasing the use of volunteers;  

Page 47



• presenting more one off events and activities to encourage people to visit;  

• focussing services to support families with pre-school age children and children 
who have recently started school, especially those for whom English isn’t their 
first language;  

• targeting older people was also a priority through initiatives like the older 
people’s zone at Valence library and through supporting people who find it 
difficult to get out and about;  

• Members were also keen to see more use of technology to improve services, 
such as through the roll out of  self service machines across the libraries. 
 

5. Financial Implications  
Implications completed by: Dawn Calvert – GM Finance 

 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
5.2 However, Members should note that the net budget for the library service for 

2013/14 is £2,201,000, a reduction of £669,000 on the 2011/12 net budget of 
£2,870,000. Also there are proposals being presented to Members in another report 
to the same meeting of Cabinet (23/07/13) that will recommend a series of actions 
to achieve a further saving of £400,000 from the library budget for 2014/15. 

 
6. Legal Implications  

 
Prepared by Lucinda Bell, for Fiona Taylor, Head of Legal and Democratic 

 Services 
 

6.1 The Council has a duty under section 7 of the Public Libraries & Museums Act 1964 
to provide ‘a comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons desiring to 
make use thereof’ and this should be so evidenced by an examination of the needs 
and a suitable service plan to continue to meet the duty. 

 
6.2 Where there are proposals for the closure or discontinuance of a service or 

services, appropriate consultation will need to be carried out. The savings proposals 
that affect staff will require consultation with Unions and staff.  

 
6.3 The Council must have due regard to the duty imposed on it under s149 of the 

Equality Act 2010, that is to:  

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that the Equality Act 2010 prohibits, and to: 

• Advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those 
individuals who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do 
not. 

 
6.4 To achieve this, Members will need to be sure that a relevant Equality Impact 

Assessment has been carried out before the proposals are decided by Cabinet, and 
consider the results of this in full. 

 
6.5 Decisions to reduce library services have been the subject of judicial review 

proceedings.  In order act in accordance with public law principles it is important 
that any decision taken is reasonable, rational and procedurally correct.  It is 
important that all relevant factors and considerations are taken into account, 

Page 48



especially the consultation and the duty referred to above, under s149 of the 
Equality Act, and that Members retain an open mind.   

 
6.6 Members must also consider the practical impact of the proposed decision, and the 

alternative courses of action that were proposed, and whether any adverse impacts 
arising from the decision to cut or withdraw funding or services can be mitigated, 
and give proper reasons for their decision.   

 
7. Other Implications 
 
7.1 Risk Management - The action plan for the strategy will be incorporated into the 

Culture and Sport annual service plan. Any risks associated with the successful 
implementation of the service plan are set out in the divisional risk register, which is 
reviewed by the Adult and Community Services Departmental Management Team 
on a quarterly basis. 

 
7.2 Customer impact - the equalities impact assessment for the library service 

indicates that women, older people and children and young people would be 
particularly affected by any reduction to the current level of library provision across 
the Borough.  

 
 At this time it is considered that a good quality and comprehensive library service 

continues to be provided across the Borough: fewer than1,000 of the Borough’s 
residents live more than 1 mile away or further than 20 minutes  travel time by 
public transport to a library. This takes into account current library provision in the 
neighbouring boroughs of Havering and Redbridge. 

 
 None of the proposed actions outlined in the library strategy envisage a reduction in 

the number and distribution of libraries across the Borough or that there will be any 
adverse impact on the core universal offer; however, it is recognised that the quality 
of service that can be provided by a community managed or volunteer led service is 
unlikely to be as consistently good as that provided by a wholly Council managed 
service. 

 
 Steps will be taken to minimise any adverse impact by the Council retaining 

responsibility for sourcing and providing book stock, IT support including self-
service terminals, specialist support for activities and events, and support for 
recruitment and training of volunteers. 

 
7.3 Crime and Disorder Issues - the Council has a statutory duty to consider crime 

and disorder implications in all its decision making. In delivering this strategy and 
action plan, the Council will be providing quality facilities and activities, which will 
provide positive activities for all residents and, in particular, opportunities for 
families to enjoy their leisure time together.   

 
7.4 Health issues - it is recognised that libraries have huge potential to contribute to 

the health and wellbeing of local communities as well as the needs of the most 
vulnerable within communities, who need access to good quality information and 
digital literacy skills to participate effectively in an increasingly online world.  

 

Page 49



 Libraries provide space for people to meet and socialise and schemes like the 
Home Library Service help to reduce loneliness, which can be a particular problem 
for some older people especially those who find it difficult to get out and about. 
 

7.5 Safeguarding - libraries provide a unique resource to help improve literacy levels in 
adults and children, in particular for those residents for whom English is not their 
first language. They also offer quiet, safe and well equipped study and research 
space for residents of all ages. 
 
The service delivers the library service for a number of local schools as well as 
activities that encourage children and young people to develop a love of books and 
reading.  

 
All Council libraries operate within the Culture and Sport division’s safeguarding 
policy framework for children and vulnerable adults. The new library to be provided 
in the Barking and Dagenham learning centre (Rush Green campus) will follow the 
Barking and Dagenham College’s safeguarding arrangements.  
 
The Council will require robust safeguarding arrangements to be adopted for the 
proposed community management arrangement for the Robert Jeyes Library. To 
support this it is intended that the Council will provide recruitment (including 
Disclosure Barring Service checks), induction and training support for all volunteers. 

   
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
The links to other strategies and plans that have informed the development of this report 
are set out in section 5 of the draft strategy. 
 
List of appendices: 

 
Appendix 1 – Plan on a page - A Library Strategy for Barking and Dagenham 2013-16 
Appendix 2 – Let’s Get Barking and Dagenham reading – A library strategy for Barking  
  and Dagenham 2013-16 

Page 50



“Let’s Get Barking and Dagenham Reading” 
A Library Strategy for Barking and Dagenham, 2013 – 2016 

 

Aim: The aim of the strategy is to provide the highest quality, affordable and accessible library service for 
all those living, working and studying in Barking and Dagenham in order to improve literacy levels in the 
Borough, enrich people’s lives and enable them to achieve their full potential. 

Priorities: 
1. Marketing – Tell people about it – making residents aware of the services on offer through a 

marketing and engagement strategy 
2. Community Engagement and Collaboration – we want more residents engaged in helping to shape 

and participate in the delivery of library services 
3. Improving our buildings – review library buildings, staff, volunteers, stock, technology and innovation 
4. Staff and volunteers – ensuring staff have the right skills to deliver the service effectively and  

exploring how the roles of volunteers in supporting the service can be expanded and encouraged 
5. Stock and reader development – consult with customers and staff on what they want and make the 

best use of available evidence to meet these needs in the most cost-effective way. 
6. Technology and innovation – taking a strategic approach to the development of new services and to 

explore offers that will enable the service to respond to changing demands over the next few years.  
7. Financial sustainability – looking at innovative and creative ways to achieve best value services for 

the community.  This includes considering a variety of different service delivery models and income 
generation plans. 

Facts and figures about libraries in 
Barking & Dagenham in 2012/13 
 

 There were 1.406 million visits to our 
libraries last year 

 684,957 items of stock were issued 
 There were 3,531 e-book issues 
 Volunteers donated 2,575 hours  
 Barking and Dagenham libraries hold 

420,958 items in stock 
 Residents have access to over 6 

million items through the London 
Libraries consortium libraries 

 

Resourcing the Strategy  
As well as aiming to drive improvements in the library service, the strategy will inform the budget setting 
process of the Council and its partners.  It will also help to provide a compelling strategic rationale to 
support external funding bids for new projects, programmes and facilities. 
 

A cornerstone of the strategy is the need to improve efficiency and effectiveness to deliver the same 
quality and range of services for less money, or to deliver more for the same level of expenditure.  There 
will also be a continued focus over the life of the strategy and beyond to secure funding from other 
sources working in partnership with local, sub-regional and national agencies. 
 

There also needs to be the consideration of a range of management models including asset transfer of 
libraries as well as services being delivered by the voluntary, private or trust sectors. These could provide 
a more effective way of maximising available resources in order to release funds for the continued 
development of library provision in these financially constrained times. 

Monitoring & Evaluation  
Throughout the life of this strategy the monitoring, evaluation and review will be undertaken by the Senior 
Management Team of the Library Service. There will be regular updates to the Get Barking and 
Dagenham Reading Network who will monitor the progress of the service action plan. 
 

Governance 

 The Barking and Dagenham Library Service will work 
with colleagues throughout the borough including other 
council officers, the third sector, private sector, and local 
health providers to drive forward the strategy.  

 The Get Barking and Dagenham Reading Network will 
play an integral part in promoting the service’s three 
year reading campaign and overseeing the delivery of 
this strategy.  

 The library service will also continue to work with 
Barking & Dagenham College, University of East 
London and Adult College to encourage take up of 
courses. 

old 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



                     

  
“
L

e
t’

s
 G

e
t 

B
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 R
e
a
d

in
g

”
  

 
 

A
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

B
ar

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 D
ag

en
h

am
  

2
0
1

3
 –

 2
0
1

6
   

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
 V

E
R

S
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
C

A
B

IN
E

T
 

 V
4

.0
  

1
0

/0
7
/1

3
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 53



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

  

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
 

 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 

P
A

G
E

 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
1

 
2

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 
2

 
3

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

3
 

4
 

W
h

y
 l

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

re
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

4
 

5
 

L
in

k
s

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s

 
5

 
7

 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
n

te
x

t 
6

 
8

 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y

 
7

 
1

0
 

R
e
s

o
u

rc
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

8
 

1
2
 

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

9
 

1
3
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 O
n

e
: 

M
a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 –
 T

e
ll
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
b

o
u

t 
it

 
1

0
 

1
4
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 T
w

o
: 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

  
1

1
 

1
6
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 T
h

re
e

: 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

1
2
 

1
9
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 F
o

u
r:

 S
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 

1
3
 

2
1
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 F
iv

e
: 

S
to

c
k

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

d
e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

1
4
 

2
3
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 S
ix

: 
T

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 

1
5
 

2
5
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 S
e

v
e

n
: 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y

 
1

6
 

2
7
 

 

Page 54



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

  

 F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
1
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 p
la

y
e

d
 a

 k
e

y
 r

o
le

 o
v
e

r 
m

a
n

y
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 r

e
a

c
h

 t
h
e

ir
 f

u
ll 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l.
 

 A
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 h
a

v
e

 a
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 ‘
c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
’,
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 o
r 

s
tu

d
y
 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 f

re
e

 o
f 

c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 b

o
rr

o
w

 o
r 

re
fe

r 
to

 b
o

o
k
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
p
ri
n
te

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 o

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 d

o
 m

u
c
h

, 
m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 

th
a

n
 t

h
is

.  
 W

e
 t
h

in
k
 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

O
u

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 h

e
lp

 p
e

o
p

le
 g

e
t 
o

n
 l
in

e
 a

n
d

 d
o

 r
e
s
e
a

rc
h
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
rn

e
t.
 W

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 f
o

r 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 t
h

e
m

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 
a

b
o
u

t 
o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 p

ro
v
id

e
. 
A

ls
o
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 u

s
e
 o

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

s
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

e
q
u

ip
p

e
d

 p
la

c
e

s
 f
o

r 
q
u

ie
t 

s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d

 t
o

 l
e

a
rn

 n
e

w
 s

k
ill

s
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 r

u
n

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

a
n

d
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
. 
  

 S
o

m
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

re
 t

ru
ly

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l:
 T

h
e

 B
a

rk
in

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e
 i
s
 a

n
 a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t

h
e

 1
6

th
 b

u
s
ie

s
t 

lib
ra

ry
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

tr
y

1
. 

T
h
e

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 l
ib

ra
ry

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

th
w

a
y
 i
s
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
m

o
d

e
rn

 l
ib

ra
ry

 w
h

ic
h
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 o

v
e

r 
3

5
,0

0
0

 v
is

it
o

rs
 a

 m
o

n
th

. 
 

 

 
W

e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t

h
e

 g
o

o
d

 w
o

rk
 t

h
a
t 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 d

o
in

g
 b

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
b

e
tt
e

r 
m

e
e
ts

 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
o
f 

o
u

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 v
is

io
n

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

“e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d

 u
n

lo
c
k
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a

m
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
”,

 a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 f

iv
e

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
: 

 
 

1
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 i
s
 v

a
lu

e
d
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 s

u
c
c
e

e
d

  
2

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
  

3
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
ll 

s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
lif

e
  

4
. 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
ri
v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 b

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 h

o
m

e
s
  

5
. 

M
a

x
im

is
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
  

 A
b

o
v
e

 a
ll 

e
ls

e
, 

w
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 r
e

a
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 s

k
ill

s
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 b
e

tt
e

r 
re

a
c
h

 t
h

e
ir
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a
n

d
 l
e

a
d
 m

o
re

 f
u

lf
ill

e
d
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
h

o
w

 w
e

 p
la

n
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
. 

 C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
r 

L
ia

m
 S

m
it

h
 

L
e
a

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
  

B
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a

m
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 
 

 

Page 55



P
a

g
e

 |
 3

  

 In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 
2
 

 T
h

is
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 w
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t  
is

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
a

n
d

 b
e

tt
e

r 
m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 

 O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

 o
u

r 
m

a
in

 f
o

c
u

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 o

n
 

“g
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
e
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r”

 a
n
d

 a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 t
o

 f
in

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

ri
d

g
e

 
th

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 g

a
p

 n
o

w
 f

a
c
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n

d
e
d

 l
ib

ra
ry

 o
p

e
n

in
g
 h

o
u

rs
. 

C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 h
a

v
e

 a
ls

o
 h

a
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
 

c
lo

s
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
, 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 m

in
im

is
e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 u

s
e

rs
.  

 W
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f
u

tu
re

. 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

im
s
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

r,
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 j
o

y
 a

n
d

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
o
f 

re
a
d

in
g
 a

m
o

n
g
s
t 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 T
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

. 
It
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 a

re
a

s
 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

th
e

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a

rs
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 h

ig
h

-q
u

a
lit

y
, 

m
o

d
e

rn
, 
c
o

s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

D
a
g
e

n
h
a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
  

 

Page 56



P
a

g
e

 |
 4

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 
3
 

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
li

v
e
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 o
f 

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
.  

T
h

e
 k

e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i

n
 

2
0

1
6

 (
w

h
a
t 

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 w
il

l 
d

ir
e

c
tl

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

) 
w

il
l 
b

e
: 

In
 c

o
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

, 
L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 w
il
l 

a
c

h
ie

v
e

:  
 

ü
 

2
3

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
g
u

la
r 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
lib

ra
ri
e
s
 

(u
p

 b
y
 8

%
) 

ü
 

V
is

it
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 1

0
%

 t
o

 
1

.4
m

  
ü

 
A

 c
o

re
 o

ff
e

r 
is

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
a

ll 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
n

 a
 c

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

a
y
 (

b
o

o
k
s
, 

in
te

rn
e

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
, 

s
tu

d
y
 

s
p

a
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
) 

ü
 

A
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

s
o

 t
h
a

t 
m

o
re

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 
k
n

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
a

n
d

 a
re

 u
s
in

g
 

th
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
  

ü
 

A
 b

e
tt
e

r 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 

o
n

lin
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

ü
 

M
o

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t,
 m

o
re

 e
v
e

n
ts

, 
m

o
re

 f
u

n
 

ü
 

A
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e
a
d

in
g
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 m
o
re

 t
h
a

n
 t
h

e
y
 

w
o

u
ld

 w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 
ü

 
A

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
fe

s
ti
v
a

l 
w

ill
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 f
e

a
tu

ri
n

g
 

in
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 r

e
n

o
w

n
e

d
 

a
n

d
 m

o
re

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

h
o

w
c
a

s
e

 t
h
e

 
w

o
rk

 o
f 

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
g
e

s
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 r
e
a

d
in

g
 

a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 w
ri
ti
n

g
 

ü
 

S
to

c
k
 w

ill
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

’s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

a
n

d
 n

e
e

d
s
  

 

ü
 

A
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e

re
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
e
o

p
le

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 m
a

k
e
 i
t 

a
 b

e
tt
e

r 
p

la
c
e
 

ü
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 s
o

 t
h
a

t 
m

o
re

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h

o
 f

in
d

 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 g

e
t 

o
u

t 
a
n

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
re

 a
b

le
 

to
 s

o
c
ia

lis
e
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
 o

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 

ü
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 V
a

le
n

c
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
s
 a

 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

ü
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 p
la

c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

o
re

 
th

in
g
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 d
o

  
        T

h
e
s

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 l
in

k
 d

ir
e

c
tl

y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

: 
 

 
E

n
s
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
il

d
 i

s
 v

a
lu

e
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 s
u

c
c

e
e

d
; 

 

 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c

ri
m

e
; 

 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

ll
 s

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 
li
fe

; 

 
M

a
x

im
is

e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 t

h
e
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 

in
c

o
m

e
 o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

. 
 

Page 57



P
a

g
e

 |
 5

  

 W
h

y
 l

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

re
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
 

4
 

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 a

re
 a

 h
ig

h
ly

 v
is

ib
le

 s
y
m

b
o

l 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

, 
m

u
c
h

 v
a
lu

e
d

 b
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 
  

 T
h
e

y
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 a

 l
o
n

g
 l
is

t 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,
 

th
e

 s
k
ill

s
 a

g
e

n
d

a
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
. 

T
h
e

 
lib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
d
e

a
lly

 s
u

it
e

d
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 a

re
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 v
a

lu
a

b
le

 a
s
s
e

ts
, 
n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 h

u
b
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 p

o
in

ts
, 

b
u

t 
a

ls
o
 a

s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
, 

d
ig

it
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.  

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 c
a
n

 m
ix

 
fr

e
e

ly
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

e
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r;
 t

h
e

y
 o

ff
e

r 
a
 s

a
fe

 
a

n
d

 w
e

lc
o
m

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

. 
 

 T
h
e

y
 h

o
ld

 e
n

o
rm

o
u

s
 s

to
c
k
s
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
w

it
h

 a
 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

b
o

o
k
s
, 

D
V

D
s
, 

C
D

s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lic
 

in
te

rn
e

t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
. 

 
 A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l
e

n
d

in
g
 b

o
o
k
s
, 

th
e

y
 o

ff
e

r 
a
 w

id
e

 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 a

s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 f
o

r 
fo

rm
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
g
e

s
.  

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

 
 

Page 58



P
a

g
e

 |
 6

  

 T
ra

d
it

io
n

a
ll

y
 l

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lw
a

y
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
la

c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 g
o

 t
o

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 
to

 s
o

c
ia

li
s
e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 l
e
a
rn

. 
T

h
e

y
 

h
a
v
e
 a

lw
a

y
s
 h

a
d

 a
n

 a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b

s
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 w

e
ll
 

p
la

c
e
d

 t
o

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
n

s
ta

n
tl

y
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

g
o

a
ls

, 
a
n

d
 c

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 
1

. 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 p

o
in

t,
 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

re
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
, 

e
n

te
rt

a
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 a
 s

a
fe

 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.
 

 
2

. 
T

h
e

y
 b

ri
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
w

a
lk

s
 o

f 
lif

e
 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
u

n
d
e

r 
o
n
e

 r
o
o
f.

 
 

3
. 

T
h
e

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
e

n
ts

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 
p

a
rt

 i
n
 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
. 

 
4

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

ft
e

n
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
h

o
p

s
 o

r 
a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
5

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 v
e

n
u

e
s
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 
o
f 

th
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

re
e

 t
o

 u
s
e

 
o

r 
a
t 

a
 v

e
ry

 l
o

w
 c

o
s
t.

 
 

6
. 

T
h
e

y
 a

re
 w

a
rm

, 
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n
 

fo
r 

a
ll,

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 b
ro

w
s
e

 a
t 

le
is

u
re

. 
 

 7
. 

T
h
e

y
 a

re
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 p

la
c
e
s
 w

h
e

re
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 m

e
t 

in
 a

 
h

e
lp

fu
l 
a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 m

a
n
n

e
r.

 
 

8
. 

T
h
e

y
 o

ff
e

r 
o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 m
a
y
 b

e
 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

s
te

p
s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 s

ig
n

in
g
 u

p
 t

o
 m

o
re

 f
o

rm
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g
. 

 
9

. 
T

h
e

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

tu
d

y
 s

p
a

c
e

s
, 
h

e
lp

fu
l 
s
ta

ff
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

. 
 

 
1

0
. 

T
h
e

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
a

g
e

 
ra

n
g
e

s
, 

ta
s
te

s
 a

n
d

 a
b

ili
ti
e
s
. 

 
 

1
1

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 w

id
e

-r
a
n

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 
in

te
re

s
ti
n
g
 s

to
c
k
 w

it
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

n
 e

v
e

r 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
. 

 
 

1
2

. 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 s

h
a

re
 v

e
n

u
e

s
 w

it
h

 
o

th
e

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 

o
n

e
 s

to
p
 s

h
o
p

s
, 

d
o

c
to

rs
’ 
s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
. 

 A
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 w

it
h

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ile

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 o

th
e

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

 

 
R

o
b
e
rt

 J
e

y
e
s
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 

 
S

to
ry

ti
m

e
 

  
 

Page 59



P
a

g
e

 |
 7

  

 L
in

k
s
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s

 
5
 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
k
e

y
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l,

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
o

li
c

ie
s

 t
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e

 b
o

th
 i

n
fl

u
e

n
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

d
 a

n
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a
m

’s
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

th
e
s

e
 a

re
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
s

 f
o

ll
o

w
s
: 

  

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 

R
e
g

io
n

a
l 

P
o

li
c
ie

s
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
s

 
L

o
c
a
l 

P
o

li
c
ie

s
, 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
s

 

 P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 &

 M
u
s
e

u
m

s
 A

c
t 
1

9
6

4
 

 A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 g

re
a

t 
a

rt
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 –
 A

rt
s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

2
0
1

1
-2

0
2

1
 

 E
v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 m
a

tt
e

rs
; 

c
h
a

n
g
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

2
0

0
4
 

 B
u

ild
in

g
 a

 s
o

c
ie

ty
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
g
e

s
 2

0
0
9

 
 C

u
lt
u

re
, 

K
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
; 

g
re

a
t 

m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 a

n
d

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 –
 

a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 c
o

o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
, 

A
rt

s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

2
0
1

1
-2

0
1

5
 

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
, 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 –
 A

rt
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il,

 2
0
1

3
 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
: 

p
u

b
lic

 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 –

 C
IP

F
A

, 
2

0
1
2

 

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 C

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

0
9

 –
 2

0
1
2
 

 C
u
lt
u

ra
l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o

lis
; 
T

h
e

 M
a
y
o

r’
s
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

2
0

1
0

) 
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

’s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

 
2

0
1
3

 –
 1

6
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

’s
  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
 

 A
 C

a
ll 

fo
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e

, 
A

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
: 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
1

 –
 2

0
1

6
 (

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

) 
 

 H
e
lp

in
g
 Y

o
u

 L
iv

e
 t

h
e

 L
if
e
 Y

o
u

 W
a
n

t:
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

0
 -

 2
0
1

3
 (

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a
rk

in
g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

) 
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

3
 –

 1
6
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 A
rt

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

3
 –

 1
6
 

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

2
 –

 1
5
 

 E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
3

 -
 1

6
  

 L
ig

h
t 

to
u

c
h

 p
e

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 –

 M
L

A
 2

0
1
0
 

 J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e

d
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 2

0
1

2
 

 

 
 

Page 60



P
a

g
e

 |
 8

  

L
o

c
a
l 

C
o

n
te

x
t 

  
6
 

T
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 
is

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

 
T

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 s
e
e

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
e

s
t 

g
ro

w
th

s
 i
n

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
c
o

u
n

tr
y
, 

w
it
h

 a
 h

ig
h

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

g
ro

w
th

 b
e

in
g
 a

c
c
o
u

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

b
y
 p

re
- s

c
h
o

o
l 

a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

 

 
T

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 2

2
,0

0
0
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
1
 a

n
d

 
2

0
1
1

 C
e

n
s
u

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 1
3
.4

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

. 

 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

lm
o

s
t 
a

 5
0

%
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 0
-

4
 y

e
a

r 
o
ld

s
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

g
ro

w
th

 f
o

r 
th

is
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

a
n

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 W

a
le

s
. 

 
T

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 a
g
e

d
 0

 t
o

 1
9

 a
t 
3

1
%

 i
n
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 W

a
le

s
. 

 

 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

r 
6
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f
o

r 
o
n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
m

a
lle

s
t 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 i
n

 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 W

a
le

s
. 

  

 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 2
0

%
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 6

5
+

 
a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

h
e

 
b

ig
g
e

s
t 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

r 
8
5

’s
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
to

p
 1

0
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

in
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 b

y
 2

0
2

1
. 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
s

 
  

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 

ri
s
e

 t
o

 1
8

3
,3

0
0
 i
n

 2
0

1
0
 t

o
 2

0
6

,6
0
0

 b
y
 2

0
1
6

 
a

n
d

 2
2

4
,9

0
0

 b
y
 2

0
1

2
1

, 
th

e
 t
h

ir
d

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
m

o
n

g
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

(O
N

S
 S

u
b

 N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ti
o
n

s
 

2
0

1
0

).
 

 T
h

e
 E

th
n

ic
 D

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

s
 a

ls
o

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
  

  
In

 2
0

0
1
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 W

h
it
e

 
B

ri
ti
s
h

/I
ri
s
h

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
a

s
 

8
2

.5
%

: 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 d

ro
p

p
e

d
 t
o

 5
0

.4
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
1
. 

 
M

o
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
is

e
n

 i
n

 b
o

th
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
0

1
 a

n
d

 
2

0
1
2

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
fo

r 
B

la
c
k
: 

A
fr

ic
a

n
, 

A
s
ia

n
 a

n
d
 W

h
it
e

: 
O

th
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s
. 

 

B
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a

m
 i

s
 a

ls
o

 a
m

o
n

g
 t

h
e
 

m
o

s
t 

d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 

b
a
s

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 I
n

d
e

x
 o

f 
M

u
lt

ip
le

 D
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
 

  
T

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
s
 r

a
n

k
e

d
 7

th
 w

it
h

in
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

o
u

t 
o
f 

3
3

 (
w

h
e

re
 1

s
t  i

s
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
).

 

 
L

if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
s
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 
b

e
lo

w
 t

h
a

t 
o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 f
o

r 
m

e
n

 
a

n
d

 w
o

m
e

n
, 

w
it
h

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

fo
r 

m
e

n
 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 7
7

 
y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 f
o

r 
w

o
m

e
n

 8
1

 y
e

a
rs

. 
(O

N
S

 
2

0
1
1

) 
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

’s
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 h
a
s

 a
 l

o
w

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s

k
il

ls
 w

h
e
n

 
c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 

 

 
1

3
.8

%
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

9
.3

%
. 

(A
n

n
u

a
l 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 J

a
n

 -
 

D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

).
 

 
2

7
%

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 a

 
d

e
g
re

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t,
 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 m

u
c
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

4
5

%
. 

(A
n
n

u
a

l 
P

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 
S

u
rv

e
y
 J

a
n

-D
e
c
 2

0
1

1
) 

 
L

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt
 b

a
s
ic

 s
k
ill

s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 l
o

w
 b

u
t 

a
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
. 

 
F

a
m

ily
 f

u
n
 d

a
y
 

 

Page 61



P
a

g
e

 |
 9

  

H
o

w
 o

u
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s
 s

ta
c
k
 u

p
  
 

T
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 b

e
lo

w
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t 
o
f 

 
lib

ra
ry

 u
s
e
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1

2
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

 

1
.4

0
6

 m
ill

io
n

 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 o

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 

��     
 

6
8

4
,9

5
7

 
s
to

c
k
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

5
8
1
,7

9
8

 v
is

it
s
 t
o
  

B
a
rk

in
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

 

4
1
7
,9

9
4

 v
is

it
s
 t
o
 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
  

2
7
,3

4
2

 a
c
ti
v
e
 b

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

 

=
 1

5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

3
,5

3
1

 
e
-b

o
o
k
  

is
s
u
e
s
 

2
,5

7
5

 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

 
h
o
u
rs

 

1
. 

J
a

m
e

s
 P

a
tt

e
rs

o
n

  
2

. 
N

o
ra

 R
o

b
e

rt
s
  

3
. 

A
g
a

th
a

 C
h

ri
s
ti
e
 

4
. 

J
o

h
n

 G
ri
s
h

a
m

 
5

. 
D

a
n

ie
lle

 S
te

e
l 

 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

, 
S

m
a
rt

S
M

 d
a
ta

  

 
 

T
o

p
 5

 a
u

th
o

rs
 b

o
o

k
s
 b

o
rr

o
w

e
d

: 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o

v
e
r 

6
 m

ill
io

n
 i
te

m
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 
lib

ra
ri
e
s
 h

o
ld

 

4
2
0
,9

5
8

 
it
e
m

s
 i
n
 s

to
c
k
 

::
    

§   ��
�

  
�
�

�
  

¨̈
  

¹¹
  

Page 62



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

0
  

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y

 
7
 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
re

 o
ff

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 b

o
o

k
s
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 
in

te
rn

e
t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
, 

a
n

d
 s

tu
d

y
 s

p
a

c
e
. 

 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

it
s
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 

a
n

d
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
n

e
e
d

. 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
le

x
ib

le
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
o

 
re

s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 m

a
k
e
u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 t
o

 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e

r 
m

e
e

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
. 

T
h
e

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 o

n
e

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

. 
T

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
t 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
. 
T

h
e

 b
o

o
k
 s

to
c
k
 

is
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
a
d

in
g
 a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 ‘
ta

lk
in

g
’ 

b
o

o
k
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

o
o

k
s
 i
n

 l
a

rg
e

 p
ri
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
.  

 T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

  
a

re
 f

re
e

 o
r 

m
o

d
e

s
tl
y
 

p
ri
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
s
a

g
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

re
 h

ig
h

: 
 

 
F

e
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 1

,0
0
0

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 l
iv

e
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 1

 m
ile

 
a

w
a

y
 o

r 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
th

a
n

 2
0

 m
in

u
te

s
 t

ra
v
e

l 
ti
m

e
 b

y
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

 
lib

ra
ry

. 
T

h
is

 t
a

k
e

s
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 o

f 
H

a
v
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 R
e

d
b
ri
d

g
e

. 

 
U

s
a
g
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
o

u
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 1
6

 L
o

n
d

o
n
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

lib
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 h
ig

h
. 

 

 
It

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 
a

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 m
a

n
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 b
u

y
in

g
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l’s
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 

 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 f

re
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 b
o

o
k
s
, 

s
tu

d
y
 s

p
a

c
e

, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

a
n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 s

p
a

c
e

. 
A

 
m

o
d
e

s
t 

c
h

a
rg

e
 w

a
s
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 f
o

r 
in

te
rn

e
t 

u
s
e

 i
n

 2
0

1
2
 b

u
t 

th
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
is

 w
a

s
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 f

re
e

 u
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 H
o
m

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
liv

e
rs

 b
o

o
k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
h

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 c
a

n
n
o

t 
tr

a
v
e

l 
to

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

. 
 A

 g
ro

u
n

d
b

re
a

k
in

g
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 H
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 H
o
m

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

ru
n

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
. 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n
to

 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n

th
ly

 b
a

s
is

 t
o
 c

h
o

o
s
e

 b
o

o
k
s
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
, 

s
o

c
ia

lis
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 

Page 63



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

1
  

 T
h
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s
 t
h
a

t 
w

o
m

e
n
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

n
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 N
o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 s
e

e
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 s

p
re

a
d

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
re

 
o
ff

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
. 

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
it
e

ra
c
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e
a
d

in
g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
a

d
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i
n

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
 a

n
d

 m
e
d

ia
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

L
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

fo
c
u

s
s
e
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
5
’s

 a
n

d
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 u
s
e

 b
e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h
o

o
l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e

r.
 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 

is
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
c
a
n

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 o

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
le

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 a

s
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 g

o
o

d
 a

s
 t
h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

 w
h

o
lly

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

S
te

p
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e

 a
n

y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
fr

o
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
ta

in
in

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
s
o
u

rc
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 b

o
o

k
 s

to
c
k
, 

IT
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e
 

te
rm

in
a

ls
, 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

, 
a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

f 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

. 
 

 
W

in
n
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 F

a
ir
c
h

ild
 A

w
a
rd

 2
0

1
3

 
 

 

Page 64



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

2
  

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

 
8
 

 A
s

 w
e
ll
 a

s
 d

ri
v
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
th

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

s
e
tt

in
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 i

ts
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 I

t 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

e
ll
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 b
id

s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 
p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
il
it

ie
s
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 

m
u

s
t 
b

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 
v
e

ry
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

im
e

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

th
a

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
p
e

n
d

in
g
 o

n
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
.  

T
h

is
 s

ta
rk

 r
e
a

lit
y
 

h
a

s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 s

h
a
p

e
d
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

. 

It
 a

ls
o
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
o
m

e
 t

o
u

g
h

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 

b
e

in
g
 m

a
d

e
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 a

ff
o

rd
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
. 
W

h
ils

t 
e

v
e

ry
 

e
ff

o
rt

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e

 t
o
 t
ry

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

p
ri
c
e

 
d

o
e

s
n

’t
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 b
a

rr
ie

r 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

, 
o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e

 w
a

y
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 
it
s
 b

o
o

k
s
 i
s
 b

y
 r

a
is

in
g
 m

o
re

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 i
ts

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.  

 A
 c

o
rn

e
rs

to
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

le
s
s
 

m
o

n
e

y
, 

o
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

m
o

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
. 

T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
d

 
fo

c
u

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d
 

to
 s

e
c
u

re
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
rs

 s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a
l,
 s

u
b

-r
e
g
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t
o
w

a
rd

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
. 

B
id

d
in

g
 f

o
r,

 a
n

d
 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a
n
d
 

o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
t e

g
y
 i
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

re
 a

ls
o

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
m

o
d
e

ls
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
s
e

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

, 
p

ri
v
a

te
 o

r 
tr

u
s
t 

s
e

c
to

rs
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 c
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
w

a
y
 o

f 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 r
e
le

a
s
e

 f
u

n
d

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

lly
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

e
d

 t
im

e
s
. 

     
 

Page 65



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

3
  

 T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

 
9
 

 T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

q
u

a
li

ty
, 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 t

h
o

s
e
 

li
v
in

g
, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

tu
d

y
in

g
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 l

it
e
ra

c
y
 l

e
v
e
ls

, 
e
n

ri
c
h

 p
e
o

p
le

’s
 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 
e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e
m

  
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
e
ir

 f
u

ll
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l.
 

 In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
is

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 s
e
v
e
n

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t,
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

. 
 

1
. 

M
a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 –
 T

e
ll
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
b

o
u

t 
it

 
2
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

o
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

3
. 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

u
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
  

4
. 

S
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e
rs

 
5
. 

S
to

c
k
 a

n
d

 r
e
a
d

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
6
. 

T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

n
o

v
a
ti

o
n

 
7
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y
 

  

 
B

a
rk

in
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

  
 

Page 66



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

4
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 O

n
e
: 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 –

 T
e
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
b
o
u
t 

it
 

1
0

 
  

     
   

 

T
h
e

 c
le

a
re

s
t 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e
s
 t

o
 e

m
e

rg
e

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 s

tr
o
n

g
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

lib
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

m
o

n
g
 t
h

e
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
, 

e
v
e

n
 

a
m

o
n

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 B
u

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
it
tl
e

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n
d

 d
e

p
th

 o
f 

th
e

 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

r,
 e

v
e

n
 a

m
o

n
g
 

th
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 d
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
m

. 
 

 It
 i
s
 v

it
a

l 
w

e
 l
e
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 k

n
o

w
 w

h
a

t 
a

 l
ib

ra
ry

 
o
ff

e
rs

 a
n

d
 b

e
 r

e
a

lis
ti
c
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
r,

 t
e

lli
n
g
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a

s
e
d

 o
n

 
th

e
ir
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
. 

G
o

o
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 c

a
n
 l
e
a

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

u
s
e

, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
e

r 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
o
f 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
. 

 
 A

 d
is

c
ip

lin
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
 t

o
 

m
a

rk
e
ti
n

g
 i
s
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
to

 o
v
e

rc
o
m

e
 t

h
e

 
o

n
g
o

in
g
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 a

b
o

u
t 

la
c
k
 o

f 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 
o
ff

e
r.

 T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
t 
m

o
re

 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
o

rt
 i
n
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
, 

e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 

u
s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
, 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
u

s
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

is
 o

n
 

o
ff

e
r.

  
 

Page 67



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

5
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 O

n
e
: 

M
a

rk
e
ti
n
g

 –
 T

e
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
b
o
u
t 
it
 

N
o

. 
F

O
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

S
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 

W
h

e
n

 
W

h
o

 
1

.1
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
e

ls
e
w

h
e

re
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 

 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 a
n
d

 
it
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

, 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
a

c
ti
v
e

 b
o

rr
o

w
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 1
5

%
 t
o

 1
7

%
 

 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

3
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

1
.2

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 b

ra
n

d
 i
d
e

n
ti
ty

 f
o

r 
B

a
rk

in
g
 

&
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a

m
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 t
o

 u
s
e

 i
n

 
fu

tu
re

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 e

tc
 

 
C

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

c
is

e
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
  

o
 

B
ra

n
d

 t
e
m

p
la

te
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 

o
 

S
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

e
d

 i
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 b

ra
n

d
 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

M
a

rk
e
ti
n
g
 &

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

1
.3

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
o
o

k
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
l 
o
f 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 

b
y
 r

o
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 
 

A
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
b

ra
n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 a
n

d
 a

 c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
 

a
n

d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a

ll 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
. 

o
 

T
w

o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 r

e
s
ty

le
d

 w
it
h

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti
ty

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

5
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

1
.4

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n
e

w
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 m

e
th

o
d

s
; 
T

w
it
te

r,
 

F
a
c
e

b
o
o

k
 

 
B

e
tt

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

 t
o

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 –

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

ta
k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 
P

ro
d

u
c
e

 m
o
n

th
ly

 e
-n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

r 
a
n

d
 s

e
n

d
 o

u
t 
to

 
lib

ra
ry

 u
s
e

r 
e
m

a
il 

g
ro

u
p

 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
a

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 –
 2

3
%

 o
f 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 u
s
e

rs
 b

y
 2

0
1

6
 –

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

4
%

 
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

4
 

 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 o
n

w
a

rd
s
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

 
G

ro
u

p
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

 

Page 68



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

6
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

w
o

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 
1
1

 

 
 

 
 

A
 m

o
d

e
rn

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
h

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p
u

b
lic

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

th
ri
v
e

 a
n

d
 g

ro
w

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
e

ls
e
w

h
e

re
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 m
o

s
t 
o

p
e

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
, 

a
n

d
 

d
e

s
ig

n
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 A
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
tr

u
c
k
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 b

e
in

g
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
s
u

rr
e

n
d
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
u
n

d
a
m

e
n

ta
l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 

a
n

d
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
S

e
v
e

ra
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 m
o
v
e

d
 t

o
 a

 m
u

c
h
 

m
o

re
 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

fo
rm

a
l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

a
 m

o
re

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
 

 It
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 a

d
o
p

t 
a

 m
o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

A
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
it
h

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
a

rk
e
ti
n
g
 t

o
 b

a
c
k
 i
t 
u

p
, 

w
o

u
ld

 
e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 w

id
e

n
 i
ts

 a
p

p
e

a
l 
to

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
a

 m
o

re
 d

iv
e

rs
e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
.  

 

Ir
o
k
o

 S
h
o

w
c
a
s
e
 e

v
e

n
t 

V
a

le
n
c
e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

 

Page 69



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

7
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

w
o

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 
N

o
 

F
O

C
U

S
 A

R
E

A
S

 
S

U
C

C
E

S
S

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 
W

h
e
n

 
W

h
o

 
2

.1
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 E

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 

 
P

u
b

lic
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n
d

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
a

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 R

o
b

e
rt

 
J
e

y
e

s
 l
ib

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 a

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
le

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
M

a
rk

s
 

G
a

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
  

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 &

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

2
.2

 
S

ta
rt

 t
h

e
 G

e
t 
B

a
rk

in
g
 &

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
 

R
e
a

d
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 

y
e

a
r 

re
a

d
in

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

 
E

ig
h

t 
to

 t
e

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
/i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 

 
F

ir
s
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 

 
L

a
u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 R
e
a

d
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

 
Q

u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

  
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
  

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 

 

2
.3

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 “

fr
ie

n
d

s
” 

g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

in
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 

 
F

ri
e
n

d
s
 g

ro
u

p
 a

t 
R

o
b

e
rt

 J
e

y
e

s
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

rm
a

lis
e
d

 

 
F

ri
e
n

d
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

 
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
, 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

2
.4

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 p

la
n

s
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 p

la
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

  

 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 p

la
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d
 

 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 &

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

2
.5

 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 p

la
y
in

g
 a

 k
e

y
 r

o
le

 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 ‘
c
u

lt
u
ra

l 
p

a
s
s
p
o

rt
’ 
fo

r 
e
v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 
in

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

 
E

v
e

ry
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a
g
e

 c
h

ild
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h
 

w
ill

 g
o

 t
o

 a
 l
ib

ra
ry

 i
n

 a
n
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
v
is

it
 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 t
e

a
m

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 
c
o

m
m

e
m

o
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

o
rl
d

 W
a
r 

O
n

e
 c

e
n

te
n
a

ry
 

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 ‘
d
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 s
o
n

s
’ 
p

ilo
t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 b
o

y
s
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 u
p
 r

e
a

d
in

g
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

3
 

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

  
2

0
1
4

 –
 2

0
1
8
 

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

C
u
lt
u

re
 &

 S
p

o
rt

, 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 
lo

c
a

l 
a

rt
s
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
. 

Page 70



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

8
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

w
o

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 
N

o
 

F
O

C
U

S
 A

R
E

A
S

 
S

U
C

C
E

S
S

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 
W

h
e
n

 
W

h
o

 
2

.6
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d
 

P
la

c
e

s
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 
 

P
re

p
a

re
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 b

id
 f
o

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
w

ri
te

rs
 

 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 k

e
y
 v

e
n

u
e

s
 f

o
r 

o
n

e
 o

ff
 

a
n

d
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
, 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 A
rt

s
 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 

2
.7

 
P

re
s
e

n
t 
a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
‘L

e
t’
s
 G

e
t 
B

a
rk

in
g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 R
e
a

d
in

g
’ 
F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
to

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
g
re

a
te

r 
p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o

n
. 

 
F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 2

0
1
3

 t
o

 2
0
1

6
 

 
1

5
 t
o

 2
0

 a
u

th
o

rs
 b

o
o

k
e
d

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

 
1

0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e

, 
y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

3
 t
o

 
2

0
1
6
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 

T
h
e

a
tr

e
 

2
.8

 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
a

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 b
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

C
u
rr

e
n

t 
ta

k
e

 u
p

 b
y
 7

6
%

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
a

rg
e

t 
o
f 

8
0

%
 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 b
y
 2

0
1

4
, 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 

2
0

1
6
 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

S
u
m

m
e

r 
R

e
a
d

in
g
 C

h
a

lle
n
g
e

 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

, 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 5

0
%

. 
o

 
Y

e
a

r 
1
  

  
  
  

  
  

 5
5

%
 

o
 

Y
e

a
r 

2
  

  
  
  

  
  

 6
0

%
 

o
 

Y
e

a
r 

3
  

  
  
  

  
  

 6
5

%
 

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
B

ro
c
k
le

b
a

n
k
 a

n
d

 F
e

ld
 A

w
a

rd
s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d
. 

C
u
rr

e
n

t 
a

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 3

0
 c

h
ild

re
n

. 
o

 
Y

e
a

r 
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

 3
5
 

o
 

Y
e

a
r 

2
  

  
  
  

  
  

 4
0
 

o
 

Y
e

a
r 

3
  

  
  
  

  
  

 4
5
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4

 t
o
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

2
.9

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 o
u

tr
e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 e

v
e

n
ts

 p
o

lic
y
 

to
 r

e
a

c
h

 o
u

t 
to

 n
o

n
-u

s
e

rs
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

. 

 
P

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
2

3
%

 a
c
ti
v
e

 
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 2

0
1

6
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

3
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

Page 71



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

9
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

h
re

e
: 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
r 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 

1
2

 
 

 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 

o
r 

d
e

s
ir
a

b
le

, 
to

 t
ry

 t
o

 d
o

 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 t

h
in

g
s
 o

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

e
x
a

c
tl
y
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 l
ib

ra
ry

. 
A

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

re
 

o
ff

e
r 

(b
o

o
k
s
, 

in
te

rn
e

t 
a
c
c
e

s
s
, 

s
tu

d
y
 s

p
a

c
e

 
a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

) 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

s
h

a
p
e

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 l
ib

ra
ry

. 
It

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 r
e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

w
h

ic
h
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 h

a
p

p
y
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
lib

ra
ry

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
. 

 
 T

h
is

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
 k

e
y
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 

a
re

 a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

it
s
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
s
 a

n
d
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
, 

 
 M

e
a

n
w

h
ile

, 
a

lt
h
o

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
n
e

w
 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 t

o
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 a

s
 y

e
t 

n
o

t 
fu

lly
 

u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

, 
it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 g

ro
w

in
g
 

im
p

a
c
t 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

n
 

h
o

w
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 –
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 

o
f 

la
y
o

u
t,

 p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
, 
s
ta

ff
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 e

tc
. 

a
n

d
 t
h

is
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 
a

n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

s
a

g
e

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 

 
D

a
g
e

n
h
a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 

Page 72



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

0
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

h
re

e
: 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

N
o

 
F

O
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

S
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 

W
h

e
n

 
W

h
o

 
3

.1
 

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
n

d
 i
n
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
lib

ra
ry

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 o

f 
n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 

a
n

d
 b

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

 

 
A

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 n
o

w
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 
fi
n
d

in
g
s
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
5

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

 
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 &

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

3
.2

 
W

h
e
re

 t
h
e

re
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
o

in
ts

, 
s
u

c
h
 a

s
 s

h
a

re
d
 s

p
a

c
e
 w

it
h

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 
re

ta
il 

u
n

it
s
 e

tc
 

 
In

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il’

s
 a

s
s
e

t 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 p

la
n

s
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

6
 

 
G

ro
u

p
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
; 

A
s
s
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

3
.3

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 l
a

y
o

u
t 

o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
e

tt
e

r 
z
o

n
in

g
 o

f 
n

o
is

y
 a

n
d

 q
u

ie
t 

a
re

a
s
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

 
G

ro
u

p
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

3
.4

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
o
f 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 
B

a
rk

in
g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 ‘
fu

tu
re

 p
ro

o
fe

d
’ 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c
u

ts
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
a

l 
b

y
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
. 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4

 
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
; 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 
C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 U

E
L

 

3
.5

 
Z

o
n

in
g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
r 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
m

e
d

 b
ra

n
c
h

e
s
 

 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 

a
re

 l
o

c
a

te
d

. 

 
E

x
p

e
ri
a

n
 d

a
ta

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 l
ik

e
ly

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
m

e
d

 b
ra

n
c
h
e

s
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

4
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

 

Page 73



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

1
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 F

o
u

r:
 S

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 
1
3

 
 

 
 

 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

re
 t

h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 
e

x
p

e
rt

is
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 
 B

o
th

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 s
t a

ff
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

v
o

lv
e

, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 

th
o

s
e
 d

ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 n

e
w

 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
,  

n
e

w
 s

k
ill

s
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 
 M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
re

 v
e

ry
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

is
, 

a
n

d
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 i
n

te
re

s
te

d
 i
n

 
e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

s
 o

f 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 i
n

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
e

x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 a
n

d
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 n

e
e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
u
tu

a
lly

 
b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 i
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 
  

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

D
a

g
e
n

h
a
m

 

Page 74



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

2
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 F

o
u

r:
 S

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 
N

o
 

F
O

C
U

S
 A

R
E

A
S

 
S

U
C

C
E

S
S

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 
W

h
e
n

 
W

h
o

 
4

.1
 

M
a

k
e

 a
 l
is

t 
o
f 

s
k
ill

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

  
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
  

 
A

u
d

it
 s

k
ill

 s
e

ts
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

s
k
ill

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

4
.2

 
L

o
o

k
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
w

a
y
 t

o
 t

ra
in

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

e
c
to

r 

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

 
S

ta
ff

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 a

n
d

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

 
S

ta
ff

 s
k
ill

e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
e
tt

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

4
.3

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
le

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
P

re
p

a
re

 S
L

A
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 k

e
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 

 
M

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 G

ro
u

p
s
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

4
.4

 
G

e
tt

in
g
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

th
e

ir
 

ti
m

e
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 
N

e
w

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
o

 
Y

e
a

r 
1
 –

 2
,5

0
0

 h
o

u
rs

 
o

 
Y

e
a

r 
2
 –

 5
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
rs

 
o

 
Y

e
a

r 
3
 –

 6
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
rs

  

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

  
   

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

5
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

Page 75



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

3
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 F

iv
e
: 

S
to

c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

1
4

 
 

 

S
to

c
k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fo

rm
a
ts

 (
m

a
in

ly
 p

ri
n

t)
 a

n
d

 i
n

 n
e

w
 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
-d

ri
v
e

n
 w

a
y
s
 

c
o

n
s
ta

n
tl
y
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 l
a

tt
e

r 
a
re

 “
th

e
 w

a
y
 

fo
rw

a
rd

”,
 b

u
t 

n
e

v
e

rt
h
e

le
s
s
 t

h
e

re
 

is
 s

ti
ll,

 f
o

r 
n
o

w
, 

a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 r

e
a

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 b

o
o

k
s
. 
 

 In
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e

d
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 s
to

c
k
 

(p
ri
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 d

ig
it
a

l)
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

s
tu

d
y
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
-i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  
 T

h
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 w

a
n

t 
a

n
d
 m

a
k
e

 t
h
e

 b
e

s
t 

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 
to

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
s
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

c
o

s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
. 

  

P
a
m

 A
y
re

s
 a

t 
th

e
 “

G
e
t 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 R
e
a
d
in

g
” 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

Page 76



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

4
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 F

iv
e
: 

S
to

c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

N
o

 
F

O
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

S
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 

W
h

e
n

 
W

h
o

 
5

.1
 

L
o

o
k
 a

t 
s
to

c
k
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 b
y
 n

e
w

 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
. 

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 s

to
c
k
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

 i
d
e

a
l 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
s
to

c
k
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
. 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 n

e
w

 f
o

rm
a
ts

 f
o

r 
s
to

c
k
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 e

-b
o

o
k
s
 a

n
d
 e

-m
a

g
a

z
in

e
s
 

 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

5
.2

 
L

o
o

k
 a

t 
s
to

c
k
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 

th
e

 r
e
a

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
tu

d
y
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

 
R

e
a

lig
n

e
d

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

o
 

C
o
lle

c
t 

d
a
ta

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 
s
to

c
k
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
o

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

lie
r 

a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

  

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

5
.3

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

 
c
le

a
r 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
u

b
lic

 w
a

n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 s

to
c
k
 

 
S

to
c
k
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 m

a
tc

h
e
d

 t
o

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
n

e
e
d

s
  

o
 

U
p
d

a
te

 d
a
ta

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 

o
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 s
to

c
k
 

s
e

le
c
ti
o
n
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4
 

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

5
.4

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

b
o

o
k
 c

lu
b

s
 

 
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

fo
u

r 
b

o
o

k
 c

lu
b

s
, 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
  

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

5
.5

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

w
ri
te

rs
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
E

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 l
o
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 
g
e

t 
p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
. 

 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
w

o
 w

ri
te

rs
 g

ro
u

p
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i
n

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 

 
P

re
p

a
re

 a
n
d

 s
u
b

m
it
 b

id
 t

o
 G

ra
n

ts
 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 f

u
n

d
 

 
P

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

 s
c
h

e
d
u

le
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 a

n
d

 
w

ri
ti
n
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o

 p
u

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
ir
 w

o
rk

s
. 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

5
.6

 
H

e
lp

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o
c
a

l 
G

P
s
 b

y
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
in

g
 a

 ‘
B

o
o

k
 o

n
 

P
re

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
’ 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 r
e
la

te
d

 i
lln

e
s
s
. 

J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

 
 

Page 77



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

5
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

ix
: 

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

 
1
5

 
 

 

 
 

 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h
e

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

le
a

rl
y
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 a

n
 e

n
th

u
s
ia

s
m

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
m

a
n

y
 

u
s
e

rs
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
, 

a
n

d
 p

e
rh

a
p

s
 u

n
s
u

rp
ri
s
in

g
ly

, 
y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
o

n
e

s
, 
fo

r 
a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
n

 u
s
in

g
 m

o
re

 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 i
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

E
-b

o
o

k
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

d
ig

it
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

ff
e

r.
 I

n
 t
h

e
 f
u

tu
re

 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 n
e

w
 o

ff
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 t
h

e
y
 e

m
e

rg
e

. 
 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 w

ill
in

g
n

e
s
s
 a

m
o

n
g
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
, 

a
s
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
e

n
th

u
s
ia

s
m

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
o

rk
s
h
o

p
s
 f
o

r 
a
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
m

o
v
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 m

o
re

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 a

n
d

 f
e

w
e

r 
b
o
o

k
s
. 
T

h
is

 
n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

t 
a

 p
a

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

it
s
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

s
 p

la
c
e

d
 

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

A
s
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
p

u
b

lic
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

 f
u

tu
re

 m
o

re
 

tr
a
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fo

rm
a

ts
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 m

a
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
o

m
in

a
te

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

. 
 

 T
h
a

t 
s
a

id
, 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
to

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 o

ff
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 e
n

a
b

le
 i
t 

to
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

 t
o
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a

rs
. 

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

th
a

t 
a

s
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
 e

v
o

lv
e

s
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

th
e

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 t
o

 
e

n
a
b

le
 t

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 k

e
e
p

 u
p

 t
o
 d

a
te

 w
it
h

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
’ 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

    

S
e
lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
e
rm

in
a
l 

Page 78



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

6
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

ix
: 

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
s
 a

 t
ra

c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
in

n
o
v
a

ti
o

n
. 

 I
t 
h

a
s
 p

ilo
te

d
 a

 p
io

n
e

e
ri
n

g
 “

H
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 H
o
m

e
” 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
 t
o

 b
ri
n

g
 h

o
m

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 c

lie
n

ts
 i
n
to

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 t
a

lk
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
 M

o
re

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

e
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 c

lie
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 o

n
lin

e
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e
m

in
is

c
e
n

c
e

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 E
a

s
ts

id
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 f
o
r 

a
 M

e
m

o
ry

 G
a

m
e

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 t
h

e
 l
e

a
d
 u

p
 t

o
 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 2

0
1

2
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 

A
n

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

s
 Z

o
n
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
t 

V
a

le
n

c
e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 v
e

n
u

e
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

v
e

r 
5

0
’s

. 
 T

ra
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

 s
to

c
k
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
fo

r 
o
ld

e
r 

lib
ra

ry
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 T
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
t 

V
a

le
n

c
e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 i
s
 h

o
m

e
 

to
 t

h
e

 H
o
m

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
, 
fu

rn
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 m

a
ti
n
e

e
 f

ilm
 s

h
o

w
s
 c

ra
ft

 a
n
d

 I
T

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 
o

ld
e

r 
u
s
e

rs
. 
  

 N
o

 
F

O
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

S
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 

W
h

e
n

 
W

h
o

 
6

.1
 

E
x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e

r 
o
f 

e
-b

o
o

k
s
, 

a
n

d
 o

n
lin

e
 s

u
b

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

e
-b

o
o

k
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 5

%
 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 r

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

c
o

v
e

ra
g
e

  

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
lin

e
 s

u
b

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 u

s
a

g
e

 b
y
 5

%
 y

e
a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

6
.2

 
In

tr
o
d
u

c
e

 n
e

w
 I

T
 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 r

u
n
 

b
y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 
 

A
ll 

“N
e
w

 t
o

 C
o

m
p

u
te

r”
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 r

u
n

 b
y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 

 
C

la
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 r

u
n

 a
t 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 
fo

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 

 
6

0
0

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
h

o
u

rs
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 I

T
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

6
.3

 
P

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

w
id

e
 I

C
T

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
P

ro
d

u
c
e

 f
in

a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
L

ia
is

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
IT

 p
a

rt
n
e

r 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

u
s
in

g
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 I
T

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

 
F

u
ll 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
IC

T
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
  

 
F

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 I
T

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 G
o

o
g
le

 C
h
ro

m
e

 b
o

x
e

s
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
  

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
; 

E
le

v
a

te
 

6
.4

 
P

ilo
t 

a
n
d

 e
m

b
e

d
 n

e
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 “

 H
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 H

o
m

e
” 

 
 

E
ig

h
t 

H
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 H
o
m

e
 e

v
e

n
ts

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 
a

n
n
u

a
lly

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
6

 

C
u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

Page 79



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

7
  

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
v
e
n

: 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 

1
6

 
 

 
 

 

T
h
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 

a
lw

a
y
s
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 
w

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 b

e
s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
n

 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 i
ts

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

ls
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
. 
 

 T
h
e

 l
ib

ra
r y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 

lo
o

k
 a

t 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 t
y
p

e
 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 d

e
liv

e
rs

 
to

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

T
h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 

th
e

re
 a

re
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
to

p
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
. 

 
 O

ft
e

n
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 t
e
n

d
e
n

c
y
 

fo
r 

lib
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 

a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

s
e

 t
o

u
g
h

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 i
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
 m

o
re

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 
n

e
e
d

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

  
 

  
D

a
g
e

n
h
a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 

Page 80



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

8
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
v
e
n

: 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
  

N
o

 
F

O
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

S
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 

W
h

e
n

 
W

h
o

 
7

.1
 

C
o
n

s
id

e
r 

n
e

w
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
  

 
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 
fu

tu
re

 s
h

a
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 o
n

 w
a

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

 
N

e
w

 w
a

y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 
  

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4

 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

7
.2

 
B

ri
n

g
in

g
 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

. 
In

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 
In

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 

o
 

O
n

e
 G

ra
n

ts
 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 b

id
 t
o

 
A

rt
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d
 

o
 

O
n

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 b

id
 t
o

 B
ig

 L
o

tt
e

ry
 F

u
n

d
 

  
2

0
1
3
 

 
2

0
1
4
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

7
.3

 
In

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 o

th
e

r 
p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

-l
o
c
a

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
o

in
ts

 
 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
 

 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

5
 

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

7
.4

 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 E
U

’s
 E

n
e

rg
y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g
s
 D

ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 

 
E

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
5
0

0
m

2
 a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
a

g
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 s

iz
e

 a
s
 

d
e
fi
n
e

d
 b

y
 E

n
e

rg
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

B
u

ild
in

g
s
 

D
ir
e
c
ti
v
e

 
o

 
A

 D
is

p
la

y
 E

n
e

rg
y
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 d
is

p
la

y
e

d
 i
n

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 

o
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 
le

v
e

l 
fo

r 
s
iz

e
 o

b
ta

in
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
ro

m
 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

b
o
d

ie
s
 

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 C
a

rb
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

a
n

d
 E

n
e

rg
y
 S

a
v
in

g
 

T
ru

s
t 
to

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 
fo

r 
a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

o
in

ts
 

 
R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 a

t 
a

ll 
lib

ra
ri
e

s
 

 
R

e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 

w
a

te
r 

o
 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
m

e
te

rs
 a

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
; 
 

A
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 

 

Page 81



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

9
  

N
o

 
F

O
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

S
 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 

W
h

e
n

 
W

h
o

 
7

.5
 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 n
e

w
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 b
a

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

in
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 o

v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
 

O
v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

 b
y
 £

2
0
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 
a
n
n

u
m

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

7
.6

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 a
n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 

b
e

s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 i
s
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e
d

 i
n

 a
ll 

n
e

w
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 t
o

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
  

 
E

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

lie
rs

 a
re

 c
o

s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 n

e
e

d
s
 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

7
.7

 
In

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
s
h
a

re
d

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

w
it
h

 a
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

5
 

G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

 

B
a
rk

in
g

 L
e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

  

T
h
e

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

s
 t
h

e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 c
e

n
tr

e
 p

ie
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e
’s

 r
e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 C
e
n

tr
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
ro

m
 b

a
s
ic

 s
k
ill

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
a
n
d

 h
ig

h
e

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 T

h
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 a

n
d

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a
m

 C
o

lle
g
e

. 
T

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 a

ls
o
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 t
h

e
 C

e
n

tr
a
l 
lib

ra
ry

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n
d

 a
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o

p
 

fa
c
ili

ty
. 

T
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 h
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 3

0
 r

o
o
m

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 r
o
o
m

 w
it
h

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 f

o
r 

u
p
 t

o
 1

2
0

 p
e

o
p

le
. 
T

h
e

 r
o
o
m

s
 a

re
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 u
s
e

d
 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

rs
e
s
 b

u
t 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 u
s
e
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 h

ir
e
d

 o
u
t 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

 i
n

c
o
m

e
. 

  

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
ri
n

g
 i
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
. 

B
a

rk
in

g
 J

o
b

 S
h

o
p
 h

a
s
 r

e
lo

c
a

te
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 f

ro
n
t 

c
o
u

n
te

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 B

L
C

. 
T

h
e

 c
a
fé

 h
a

s
 j
u

s
t 
b

e
e

n
 

re
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

 a
n

d
 o

p
e
n

e
d

 i
n

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

 a
s
 R

e
lis

h
@

B
L

C
. 
 T

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

ru
n

 c
a
fé

 o
ff

e
rs

 a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 

to
 g

e
t 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 h
o

s
p

it
a

lit
y
 s

e
c
to

r 

S
p

it
a
lf

ie
ld

s
 M

u
s
ic

 –
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  

S
p

it
a

lf
ie

ld
s
 M

u
s
ic

 b
a

s
e
d

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

, 
s
e
c
u

re
d

 A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fu
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a
m

 L
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 3

 
y
e

a
r 

to
u

ri
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

te
ra

c
ti
v
e

 m
u

s
ic

a
l 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
. 

 E
a

c
h

 t
o
u

r 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

lib
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 

s
to

ry
 t

im
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
m

 m
o

re
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 f
o

r 
p
re

-s
c
h
o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
. 
 T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

to
u

r 
“A

 M
u
s
ic

a
l 
R

u
m

p
u

s
” 

F
a

ir
y
 Q

u
e

e
n

 i
n
 t

h
e
 F

o
re

s
t 

w
a

s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 s

ix
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

2
. 
 T

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

0
 t
o

 2
 y

e
a

r 
o
ld

s
 w

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 M

u
s
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 T
h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 p
ie

c
e

 M
u

s
ic

a
l 
R

u
m

p
u

s
: 
M

u
d

la
rk

 D
a

n
c
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

o
u

re
d

 
a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

 a
g
a

in
 p

re
c
e
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o

r 
lib

ra
ry

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 u

s
in

g
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
m

u
s
ic

a
l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
s
. 

 L
ib

ra
ry

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
e

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
h

y
m

e
 a

n
d

 s
to

ry
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 m

o
re

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

s
. 
  

 

Page 82



P
a

g
e

 |
 3

0
  

 

 
        

P
ro

d
u

c
e
d

 b
y
 C

u
lt

u
re

 &
 S

p
o

rt
 D

iv
is

io
n

, 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g

 &
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

  
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3

  

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
tr

at
eg

y  
F

o
r 

m
o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
P

a
u
l 
H

o
g
a
n
, 

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
lt
u
re

 &
 S

p
o
rt

 
p
a
u
l.
h
o
g
a
n
@

lb
b
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
   

 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 
 

23 July 2013 
 

Title: “Creative Barking and Dagenham”: An Arts Strategy for the Borough 2013-16 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council  
 

Open Report For Decision  
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: Yes 
 

Report Author: Paul Hogan, Divisional 
Director, Culture and Sport  
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 227 3576 
E-mail: paul.hogan@lbbd.gov.uk  

Accountable Divisional Director: Paul Hogan, Divisional Director, Culture and Sport  
 

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director, Adult and Community Services 
 

Summary 
 
The purpose of the strategy is to provide a shared vision and a framework for the delivery 
and promotion of arts in the Borough over the next three years. It has been informed by 
and will support the achievement of the community priorities set out in the Community 
Strategy and the Council’s Corporate Plan. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to approve the Arts Strategy 2013 - 2016 as attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

Reason(s) 
 
The creative arts can contribute to a number of council priorities: creating employment, 
supporting economic regeneration, providing opportunities for children to succeed and be 
valued as well as supporting programmes to improve health and wellbeing. 
 

 
1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 The arts are a great success story for Britain: providing nearly 1 million jobs and 

contributing £28 billion every year to the UK economy. It is estimated that every £1 
spent by councils on the arts brings in up to £4 more in additional funding.   

 
1.2 As well as helping our economy by creating jobs, the arts can support young people 

to realise their potential, enrich our lives and broaden our perspectives.  They 
strengthen the distinctive identity of our Borough.  They provide learning 
opportunities for all ages and abilities and support the delivery of health and social 
care. The arts can break down barriers between people and create a sense of 
community. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 85



1.3 Our Borough has a long history of association with artists who have gone on to 
become household names like Vera Lynn, Billy Bragg, Dudley Moore and Sandie 
Shaw as well as more contemporary artists like grime rapper, Devlin, and singer 
songwriter, Jessie J.  There is also strong tradition of arts participation in Barking 
and Dagenham and many people enjoy the varied range of arts activities which now 
abound in the Borough: whether this is watching our talented young people 
performing in school, playing in a band or youth orchestra, attending the Mela or St. 
George’s Day celebrations, taking part in a youth theatre, seeing a show at the 
Broadway theatre or a dance performance in Barking town square. 

 
1.4 However, the arts in the Borough also face a number of challenges. Some sections 

of our community rarely get involved in the arts, cuts in funding are affecting what 
we can do and there is scope for better co-ordination of the work of all partners. We 
need to be more ambitious as a Borough and better focused on what can be 
achieved by working more closely together. 

 
1.5 While the arts will not solve all the Borough’s challenges, a coordinated and 

collaborative approach to arts provision in the Borough, focussed on a shared 
agenda, should play an important part in helping to make Barking and Dagenham 
an even better place to live, work, study and visit.  

 
2. Proposals and Issues  
 
2.1 While there is an extraordinary array of arts activity happening across the Borough, 

much of it outside the realms of traditional notions of arts and culture, there is still 
evidence that not as many people as could be are benefitting from the huge range 
of individual and community benefits that the arts bring. The arts should be 
available to everyone as part of the journey they go through in life – whether 
learning an instrument at school, helping to build a sustainable career in the 
creative industries, mastering digital photography or taking part in a tea dance.  

 
2.2 In order to build on our track record and to address the challenges we have 

identified, we have set out a shared vision for everyone involved in the delivery and 
promotion of the arts in the Borough.  

 
2.3 The overarching aim of this strategy is “To increase engagement and participation 

in arts and creative activity across all Barking and Dagenham’s communities – 
ensuring all residents are given the opportunity and encouragement to take part”. 

 
2.4 We have identified five priorities where the Council and its partners will focus efforts 

over the life of the strategy: 
 

• Economic prosperity – we will support the delivery of the Borough 
regeneration strategy by creating a vibrant cultural sector so that residents have 
access to pathways into a creative job.  

• Skills, capacity and future talents – we will support the achievement of the 
community strategy priority to ensure that every child is valued so they can 
succeed by enabling our young people to benefit from a creative education and 
to have the opportunity to develop their talent. 

• Health and well being – we will use the arts to support the delivery of the 
Borough Health and Wellbeing Strategy by helping local people to lead healthy 

Page 86



lives by improving self confidence and reducing isolation as well as promoting 
fitness and good mental health. 

• Place and community – we will lead the way in introducing new ways for the 
arts to connect with people and helping to make the Borough a place all 
communities feel a part of. 

• Partnership and collaboration – we will put in place the right structures, 
networks and knowledge sharing so that the arts can play an even more 
effective role in Barking and Dagenham. 

 
2.5 The draft version of the strategy and the proposed improvement priorities is 

attached at Appendix one and has been set out in a ‘plan on a page’ type of format 
for internal use. A more detailed version of the strategy which will be used with 
partners and stakeholders as well as for external funding bids is attached at 
Appendix 2.  

  
2.6 If adopted by Cabinet, it is intended to make the strategy available in an electronic 

format only.   
 

Resourcing the strategy  
 
2.7 The draft strategy clearly sets out that the Council’s funding for the arts will reduce 

over the next three years. As part of the measures taken to enable a balanced 
budget to be set for 2014/15, the decision has been taken to cut the arts and events 
team budget and the four associated posts. However, a budget of £40,000 has 
been retained to provide the necessary match funding for the Creative People and 
Places programme.  
 

2.8 Council funding for the Broadway theatre and the Community Music Service has 
also been maintained. 
 

2.9 The reality of the Council’s reduced capacity and resources for the arts has directly 
shaped the development of the strategy and the proposed improvement priorities. 
 

2.10 Improving efficiency and effectiveness across the arts sector to deliver the same or 
greater quality and range of services for the same level of expenditure will be critical 
to the success of the strategy. To deliver the programmes and activities identified in 
the strategy, a case will be made for other funding streams to be directed towards 
the priorities.   

 
2.11 There will also be a continued focus over the life of the strategy and beyond to 

secure funding from other sources working in partnership with local, sub-regional 
and national agencies. A good example of what can be achieved in this respect is 
the aforementioned funding from Arts Council England’s Creative People and 
Places programme. The bid, led by a consortium of local arts and community 
organisations and the Council has secured funding of £840,000 to be spent over the 
next three years in getting more local people participating in the arts. 

 
  

Page 87



3. Options appraisal  
 

3.1 The options available to Cabinet are to approve the strategy and improvement 
priorities (with any direction on amendments to be made) or to reject it. 

 
3.2 Not to approve the strategy would mean that there is no strategic framework to 

drive improvements in the service, which would also impact on the ability to lever in 
external funding to support service delivery. 

 
3.3 Therefore, Members are recommended to adopt the strategy and improvement 

action plan with any amendments, removals, or additions as they consider 
appropriate.  

 
 4. Consultation 
 
4.1 The development of the strategy has been informed by consultation with various 

groups including: Barking and Dagenham College; Arc Theatre; Studio 3 Arts; 
Green Shoes; Barking and Dagenham Cultural Education Partnership; Barking and 
Dagenham Creative People and Places programme board; the Creative Industries 
Quarter steering group; and Arts Council England. 

 
5. Financial implications 
 
 Implications completed by: Dawn Calvert (Group Manager, Finance) 
 
5.1 The controllable budget for Arts Development in 2013/14 is £86,800 to support the 

councils’ art strategy. This is allocated as follows. 
 

 £ 

Staff 47,800 

Non-Staff 39,000 

Total 86,800 

 
5.2 This allocation is subject to change through the council’s annual budget process. 
 
6. Legal Implications  

 
Implications completed by: Paul Feild, Senior Governance Solicitor  
 

6.1 As with all Council services there is a legal requirement to have due regard to 
access and that an ongoing Equalities Impact Assessment is maintained pursuant 
to the Equality Act 2010 to ensure there is the widest participation and engagement 
that can be achieved by the strategy for all the community in the promotion of the 
arts. 

 
7. Other Implications 
 
7.1 Staffing Issues - The Council’s support for the delivery of the strategy has been 

shaped by a previous decision to cut the arts and events teams (four posts) and 
related operational budgets in 2014/15.  

 

Page 88



7.2 Risk Management - The action plan for the strategy will be incorporated into the 
Culture and Sport annual service plan. Any risks associated with the successful 
implementation of the service plan are set out in the divisional risk register, which is 
reviewed by the Adult and Community Services Departmental Management Team 
on a quarterly basis. 

 
7.3 Customer Impact - An equality impact assessment has been produced to inform 

the development of this strategy. It is expected that there will be a marked increase 
in the number and range of people who will be engaging with the arts over the life of 
the strategy. In particular, there will be a focus on the following: 

 

• the development of cultural events that promote mutual understanding and 
respect amongst the Borough’s different communities. 

• projects which support creative pathways for young people into work in the 
creative and cultural sector or to higher education. 

• activities that promote good mental health 

• more opportunities for older people and pre-school age children to get involved 
in the arts. 

• every primary school child in the Borough to have one visit to Valence House 
Museum or Eastbury Manor House, one visit to a local library, and one 
experience of a theatre, music or dance performance over the life of this 
strategy. 
 

7.4 Safeguarding Children - A clear focus for the strategy is to improve access to the 
arts by children and families and to support the delivery of a creative education for 
every child in the Borough. There will also be an extensive programme of positive 
and diversionary activities provided for young people. 

 
All arts provision delivered directly or commissioned by the Culture and Sport 
division will be covered by its safeguarding policy framework for children and 
vulnerable adults. 

 
7.5 Health Issues – One of the priorities identified in the strategy is to harness the as 

yet untapped potential of the arts to improve the health and well being of local 
people. The strategy proposes to develop more opportunities for people to come 
together to socialise and to take an active part in the community through 
volunteering. 

 
 Targeted programmes will also be developed to support local people to lead healthy 

lives by improving self confidence and reducing isolation as well as promoting 
fitness and good mental health. 

 
7.6 Crime and Disorder Issues - The Council has a statutory duty to consider crime 

and disorder implications in all its decision making. In delivering this strategy and 
action plan, the Council will be providing quality facilities and activities, which will 
provide positive activities for all residents and, in particular, opportunities for 
families to enjoy their leisure time together.   

 
 
  

Page 89



Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
The links to other strategies and plans that have informed the development of this report 
are set out in section six of the draft strategy. 
 
 
List of appendices: 

 
Appendix 1 – “Plan on a page” Creative Barking and Dagenham: An Arts Strategy for 

Barking and Dagenham 2013-16  
Appendix 2 – Creative Barking and Dagenham: An Arts Strategy for Barking and 

Dagenham 2013-16 
 

Page 90



“Creative Barking and Dagenham” 
An Arts Strategy for Barking and Dagenham, 2013 – 2016 

      

Aim: The overarching aim of this strategy is to increase engagement and participation in arts and creative 
activity across all Barking and Dagenham’s communities – ensuring all residents are given the 
opportunity and encouragement to take part.   

Priorities: 
1. Economic prosperity – nurturing a vibrant arts, cultural and creative sector  
2. Skills, capacity and future talent – ensuring individuals, groups and organisations can fulfil their 

potential  
3. Health and well being – ensuring all residents have access to arts activities that will support healthy 

lives and improve well being  
4. Place and community – using the arts effectively to make Barking and Dagenham a place all 

communities feel a part of  
5. Partnership and collaboration – ensuring strong and representative partnerships are in place to 

support the delivery of the strategy and that opportunities are provided to support sharing, learning, 
collaboration and showcasing  

Facts and figures about the Arts 
in Barking & Dagenham 
According to Arts Council England: 
 Barking and Dagenham has one 

of the lowest arts participation 
rates in the country.  

 Just 31% of residents attend or 
participate in arts compared to 
44% nationally and 48% in 
London. 

 38% visit museums and galleries 
compared to 52% nationally and 
59% in London. 

 Barking and Dagenham has the 
lowest number of creative industry 
businesses of all London 
boroughs. The Greater London 
Authority Creative Workforce 
study identified 195 creative 
businesses in Barking and 
Dagenham employing 518 people.  

 

Resourcing the Strategy  
As well as aiming to drive improvements in the quality and effectiveness of arts provision in the Borough, 
the strategy will inform the budget setting process of the Council and its partners.  It will also help to 
provide a compelling strategic rationale to support external funding bids for new projects, programmes 
and facilities. 
A cornerstone of the strategy is the need to improve efficiency and effectiveness to deliver the same 
quality and range of services for less money, or to deliver more for the same level of expenditure.  There 
will also be a continued focus over the life of the strategy and beyond to secure funding from other 
sources working in partnership with local, sub-regional and national agencies. 
 

Monitoring & Evaluation  
It is proposed that an annual report on the delivery of the strategy priorities will be provided to the 
Council’s Safer and Stronger Community Select Committee as well as the Children’s Trust, Health and 
Wellbeing board and the Skills, Jobs and Enterprise board. 

Governance 

 Barking & Dagenham Strategic Arts Partnership will be 
established to oversee the delivery of the strategy.  

 It will review the strategy comparing achievements against the 
priorities for improvement, taking account of changing 
circumstances and new opportunities, thereby allowing all 
partners and stakeholders to plan and identify resources with 
which to deliver key actions.  

 It will meet three times a year  

 Membership will be open to representatives from interested 
local, regional and national arts organisations, community 
groups and individuals, and stakeholders who are committed to 
the core values, aims and objectives set out in the strategy. 

 The Partnership will agree targets and a standardised format 
for monitoring and data gathering to ensure data can be shared 
and compared and full and robust reporting and analysis of 
achievement of targets can be assessed. 

 The Partnership will receive progress reports from the Creative 
People and Places management board, the Creative Industry 
Quarter stakeholder group, the Cultural Education Partnership, 
and the Barking and Dagenham Council culture network. 

 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



                     

C
re

at
iv

e 
 

B
ar

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

  
D

ag
en

h
am

  
A

n
 A

rt
s 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
 

B
ar

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 D
ag

en
h

am
  

20
13

 –
 2

01
6   

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
 V

E
R

S
IO

N
 F

O
R

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

  

 V
5
.0

 
 

1
0
/0

7
/1

3
  

 

 

 

Page 93



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

  

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
 

 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 

P
A

G
E

 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
1

 
2

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 
2

 
3

 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 m

e
a

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
  

3
 

5
 

A
im

s
 

4
 

6
 

O
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

5
 

7
 

L
in

k
s

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s

 
6

 
9

 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
n

te
x

t 
7

 
1

0
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

8
 

1
6
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

9
 

1
8
 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
  

1
0
 

1
9
 

R
e
s

o
u

rc
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

1
1
 

2
0
 

W
h

a
t 

w
il
l 

th
is

 m
e

a
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 l

iv
e

 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

?
 

1
2
 

2
1
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 O
n

e
: 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 P

ro
s

p
e
ri

ty
  

1
3
 

2
2
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 T
w

o
: 

S
k

il
ls

, 
C

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 F
u

tu
re

 T
a

le
n

t 
 

1
4
 

2
3
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 T
h

re
e

: 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 
1

5
 

2
4
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 F
o

u
r:

 P
la

c
e
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
1

6
 

2
5
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 F
iv

e
: 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 c

o
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

1
7
 

2
6
 

 

Page 94



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

  

 F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
1
 

 T
h

e
 a

rt
s
 m

a
tt

e
r 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

. 
 

 T
h
e

y
 h

e
lp

 o
u

r 
e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 b

y
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 j
o

b
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 
re

a
lis

e
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l.
 T

h
e

y
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 d

is
ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 o
f 

o
u

r 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
e

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
a
ll 

a
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h
 c

a
re

. 
T

h
e

 a
rt

s
 c

a
n

 b
re

a
k
 

d
o

w
n

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 a
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 T
h
e

 a
rt

s
 a

re
 a

 g
re

a
t 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 s

to
ry

: 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 n

e
a

rl
y
 1

 m
ill

io
n

 j
o
b

s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 £

2
8
 b

ill
io

n
 e

v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r 
to

 t
h

e
 U

K
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

th
a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 £

1
 s

p
e

n
t 
b

y
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 o
n

 t
h
e

 a
rt

s
 b

ri
n

g
s
 i
n

 u
p

 t
o

 £
4

 m
o

re
 i
n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
. 

  
 O

u
r 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 a

 l
o
n
g
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 a
rt

is
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 
g
o

n
e

 o
n
 t

o
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 n

a
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 V

e
ra

 L
y
n

n
, 

B
ill

y
 B

ra
g

g
, 

D
u
d

le
y
 M

o
o

re
 a

n
d

 S
a

n
d

ie
 S

h
a

w
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
re

 c
o

n
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

rt
is

ts
 

lik
e

 g
ri
m

e
 r

a
p

p
e

r,
 D

e
v
lin

 a
n
d

 s
in

g
e

r 
s
o
n

g
w

ri
te

r 
J
e
s
s
ie

 J
. 
 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
ls

o
 f
a

c
e
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
. 

S
o

m
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 r

a
re

ly
 g

e
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
, 

c
u

ts
 i
n
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 a

re
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 d
o

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
b
e

tt
e

r 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 
W

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

fo
c
u

s
e
d

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r.
 

O
u

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 g

e
t 

m
o

re
 o

u
t 

o
f 

liv
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 g
re

a
te

s
t 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

 t
h

e
 w

o
rl
d

. 
 

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 w

o
rl
d

 c
la

s
s
 a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 l
it
e

ra
lly

 o
n

 o
u

r 
d

o
o

rs
te

p
 b

u
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
n

’t
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
. 

 In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 o

u
r 

tr
a
c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
a

 s
h

a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 f
o

r 
e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 T
h
e

 a
rt

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 v
is

io
n

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 “

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 

u
n

lo
c
k
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

”,
 a

n
d

 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
: 

 
 

1
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 i
s
 v

a
lu

e
d
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 s

u
c
c
e

e
d

  
2

. 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
  

3
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
ll 

s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
lif

e
  

4
. 

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
ri
v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 b

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
m

e
s
  

5
. 

M
a

x
im

is
e

 g
ro

w
th

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
  

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 f
iv

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

lif
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
.  

 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
s

p
e
ri

ty
 –

 w
e

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

c
to

r 
s
o
 t
h

a
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 i
n

to
 a

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 j
o

b
. 

 S
k

il
ls

, 
c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 t
a
le

n
t 

–
 w

e
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 i
s
 v

a
lu

e
d

 s
o

 t
h
e

y
 c

a
n

 s
u

c
c
e

e
d

 b
y
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 

o
u

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 a
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
ir
 t

a
le

n
t.

 
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

 b
e

in
g

 –
 w

e
 w

ill
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 h

e
lp

in
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 l
e

a
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

e
s
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 i
s
o

la
ti
o

n
 a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
if
e

s
ty

le
 c

h
o

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

.  
 P

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 –

 w
e

 w
ill

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

n
e

c
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d
 

h
e

lp
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
 p

la
c
e

 a
ll 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

e
e

l 
a

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

n
d
 w

h
e

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

n
e

 a
n

o
th

e
r.

 
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 –

 w
e

 w
ill

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 c

a
n
 p

la
y
 

a
n

 e
v
e

n
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
o
le

. 
  

 

Page 95



P
a

g
e

 |
 3

  

 In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 
2
 

 T
h

e
 l

a
u

n
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 A
rt

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
a
 t

im
e
 o

f 
b

o
th

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

a
rt

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
.  

 F
ir
s
tl
y
, 

th
e

 s
u
m

m
e

r 
o
f 
2

0
1
2

 s
a

w
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
tr

y
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
e

le
b

ra
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 Q

u
e

e
n

’s
 D

ia
m

o
n

d
 J

u
b

ile
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 a

n
d

 P
a

ra
ly

m
p

ic
 

G
a

m
e

s
. 

 S
e

c
o

n
d

ly
, 

a
 c

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 £
8
4

0
,0

0
0
 f

ro
m

 A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

’s
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 
P

la
c
e

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
 t

o
 

d
ri
v
e

-u
p

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

 a
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 

 
 T

h
ir
d

ly
, 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
o

s
e
n

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

o
n

ly
 t

h
re

e
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 p
ilo

ts
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

s
 t

h
e

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 
L

o
tt
e

ry
, 

E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

, 
A

rt
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 F
ilm

 
in

s
ti
tu

te
. 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 b
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
s
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 s
o

 i
t 
w

ill
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

im
p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

s
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 
is

 i
n
s
p

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
n

le
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

u
lt
u

ra
l 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
. 

 

  F
in

a
lly

, 
in

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
a
u

s
te

ri
ty

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 h

a
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
o
m

e
 v

e
ry

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
. 

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d

 
e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 q

u
it
e

 r
ig

h
tl
y
 h

a
d

 t
o
 t

a
k
e

 i
ts

 s
h

a
re

 o
f 

c
u

t 
b
a

c
k
s
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

ly
 a

n
d

 i
n

 a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 w
a

y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 b
e

s
t 

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 n

e
v
e

r 
b
e

e
n

 m
o
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t.
  

  

 T
h

e
 a

rt
s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
c

iv
il
 s

o
c
ie

ty
, 
v

a
lu

e
d

 b
y

 l
o

c
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 t

h
e

 b
e

d
ro

c
k
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

re
a

ti
v

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y

, 
c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

’s
 

p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
. 

 

 S
o

m
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

a
y

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 a
rt

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

T
h

is
 

is
 n

o
t 

tr
u

e
. 

W
e

 m
u

s
t 

re
v

e
a

l 
a
ll

 t
h

e
 h

id
d

e
n

 c
re

a
ti

v
it

y
 w

e
 

h
a
v

e
 a

n
d

 c
e
le

b
ra

te
 i

t.
 

 

Page 96



P
a

g
e

 |
 4

  

 

6,
91

0 
 

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

E
S

 
C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
E

  

£2
8 

B
IL

L
IO

N
  

E
A

C
H

 Y
E

A
R

  
T

O
 T

H
E

 U
K

  
E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

 

F
U

N
D

IN
G

 T
O

 A
R

T
S

  
A

N
D

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
  

IS
 L

E
S

S
 T

H
A

N
  

0.
05

%
 O

F
 T

O
T

A
L

 
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
  

S
P

E
N

D
IN

G
 

THERE ARE OVER 

 

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 S
E

C
T

O
R

 
  

A
P

P
R

E
N

T
IC

E
S

H
IP

S
  

 

A
N

D
 IN

T
E

R
N

S
H

IP
S

  
 

IN
 E

N
G

L
A

N
D

 

A
R

T
S
 &

 C
U

L
T
U

R
E
 

C
O

S
T

S
 E

A
C

H
 P

E
R

S
O

N
 IN

 E
N

G
L

A
N

D
 J

U
S

T
 

14
p

 E
A

C
H

 W
E

E
K

 

F
O

R
 E

V
E

R
Y

 £
1 

IN
V

E
S

T
E

D
  

IN
 A

R
T

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
, 

U
P

 T
O

 £
6 

IS
 G

E
N

E
R

A
T

E
D

 F
O

R
 

T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
L

 E
C

O
N

O
M

Y
 

£
1
 

£
1
 

£
1
 

£
1
 

£
1
 

£
1
 

£
1
 

 

O
F

 A
R

T
S

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

S
’ 

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

 C
O

M
E

S
 F

R
O

M
 

  

T
IC

K
E

T
 S

A
L

E
S

, S
P

O
N

S
O

R
S

H
IP

S
, 

D
O

N
A

T
IO

N
S

 &
 P

H
IL

A
N

T
H

R
O

P
Y

 

60 % 

JO
B

S
 IN

 T
H

E
  

 

C
R

E
A

T
IV

E
 &

  
 

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

  
 

S
E

C
T

O
R

 A
R

E
  

 

E
X

P
E

C
T

E
D

 T
O

 
   

U
P

 T
O

 A
 T

H
IR

D
 

  

B
Y

 2
02

0 

 

IN
C
R

E
A
S
E
 

 

T
h

e 
cu

lt
u

ra
l 

ec
o

n
o

m
y 

cr
ea

te
s 

  

 

jo
b

s 
 

ac
ro

ss
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

6
9

4
,7

0
0

 

Page 97



P
a

g
e

 |
 5

  

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 m

e
a
n

 b
y
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
  

3
 

T
h
e

 t
e

rm
s
 ‘
a

rt
s
’,
 h

a
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

e
a
n

in
g
s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
F

o
r 

s
o

m
e
 i
t 

is
 a

b
o

u
t 

g
a

lle
ri
e

s
, 

th
e

a
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

c
e
rt

 h
a

lls
; 
fo

r 
o

th
e

rs
 i
t 

is
 

a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
a

t 
h
a

p
p
e

n
s
 a

t 
a

 m
o

re
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
- 

a
rt

, 
c
ra

ft
, 
d

ra
m

a
, 
m

u
s
ic

, 
fi
lm

, 
p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

y
 t

a
u

g
h

t 
in

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

w
it
h

 a
 p

a
s
s
io

n
 f
o

r 
a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a

rt
 f

o
rm

 c
o
m

e
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r.
 

F
o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

e
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

 b
ro

a
d

 d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

’s
 a

rt
 f

o
rm

 c
a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
: 

 

 
c
ra

ft
s
 -

 f
ro

m
 t

e
x
ti
le

s
 t

o
 p

a
p
e

r-
m

a
k
in

g
 t

o
 p

o
tt

e
ry

 

 
d

a
n

c
e

 -
 f

ro
m

 s
tr

e
e

t 
d
a
n

c
e

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 b
a

llr
o
o
m

 t
o

 b
a

lle
t 

 
d

ra
m

a
 -

 f
ro

m
 S

h
a

k
e

s
p
e

a
re

 t
o

 n
e

w
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
u
s
ic

 t
h
e

a
tr

e
 

 
lit

e
ra

tu
re

 -
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 w
ri

ti
n
g
, 

s
to

ry
te

lli
n
g

 

 
m

e
d

ia
 a

n
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 -

 p
h
o

to
g
ra

p
h

y
, 
fi
lm

, 
v
id

e
o

, 
g
ra

p
h

ic
s
, 

a
n

im
a

ti
o

n
, 

d
ig

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 m
o

v
in

g
 i
m

a
g
e

 

 
m

u
s
ic

 -
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 t

o
 c

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

in
g
in

g
, 

p
la

y
in

g
 a

 m
u

s
ic

a
l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

t,
 s

o
n

g
-w

ri
ti
n

g
, 

m
ix

in
g
, 

D
J
-i
n
g

 

 
v
is

u
a

l 
a

rt
s
 -

 d
ra

w
in

g
, 

p
a

in
ti
n
g
, 

a
n
d

 s
c
u

lp
tu

re
, 
p

u
b

lic
 a

rt
, 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
, 

p
ri
n

tm
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
u

ra
ls

 

 
c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 a

rt
s
, 
fe

s
ti
v
a

ls
 a

n
d
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
a
rt

s
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 l
e

s
s
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

rt
 f

o
rm

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

m
e

rg
in

g
 o

f 
fo

rm
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

a
s
te

n
e
d

 w
it
h

 r
a
p

id
 d

ig
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g
ic

a
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

th
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 
m

o
v
in

g
 

im
a

g
e

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

n
d

 v
is

u
a

l 
a

rt
s
, 

th
e

 s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 o

f 
liv

e
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

to
 c

in
e
m

a
s
, 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 
th

e
 n

o
rm

, 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
ro

s
s
-a

rt
 f
o

rm
 v

e
n

u
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
. 

 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 o

f 
c
o

u
rs

e
 h

u
g
e

 c
ro

s
s
-o

v
e

rs
 w

it
h

 b
ro

a
d
e

r 
c
u
lt
u

ra
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

u
c
h

 
a

s
 m

u
s
e

u
m

s
, 
a

rc
h
iv

e
s
, 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 a
n

d
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
fo

rm
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

s
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 ‘
fo

rm
s
’ 
h
e

re
 a

s
 b

o
th

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

a
re

 b
e

in
g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
re

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 A

rt
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

s
 

k
e

y
 a

s
s
e

ts
 f

o
r 

s
ti
m

u
la

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 h
o

s
ti
n

g
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 w
it
h

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 w

h
a

t 
is

 m
e
a

n
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
k
e

y
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

. 
G

e
tt

in
g
 t

h
e

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

rt
s
 a

re
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n
y
 

p
e

o
p

le
 d

o
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 i
n

 a
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

, 
b

u
t 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 

c
a

ll 
it
 a

rt
, 
a

re
 t
h

e
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 t
h

is
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

e
e

k
s
 t

o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
. 
O

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

in
 a

im
s
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 f
o

r 
s
e
e

in
g
, 

ta
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

 s
k
ill

 i
n

 o
r 

s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 

a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 o

r 
in

s
p

ir
e

d
 b

y
 a

rt
, 

w
h

a
te

v
e

r 
p
e

o
p

le
s
’ 
u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 i
s
. 
T

h
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

ls
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

s
 t
h

o
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 m

e
e

t.
 T

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
in

g
 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 s

e
c
to

r 
is

 v
it
a

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
s
 i
t 

s
e

e
k
s
 t
o

 r
e

-b
a

la
n

c
e

 i
ts

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 i
ts

 o
ld

 d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
c
e
 o

n
 s

in
g
le

 l
a
rg

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 (

s
u

c
h

 
a

s
 F

o
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

) 
to

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
o

s
e
 s

e
c
to

rs
 w

it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 g
ro

w
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
.  

 

 
 

C
la

s
s

ic
a
l 

M
u

s
ic

a
l 
C

o
n

c
e

rt
 

Page 98



P
a

g
e

 |
 6

  

 A
im

s
 

4
 

 T
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

’s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 –

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 g

iv
e
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 
e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
a
k
e
 p

a
rt

. 
  

 T
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i

s
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 a

rt
s
 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

.  
It

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

.  
 T

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

 s
e

e
n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
s
 p

ro
d
u

c
e
d

 
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e
g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 –

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

n
d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e

. 
A

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 s
im

p
le

 b
e

lie
f 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

rt
s
, 

w
h

ile
 h

u
g
e

ly
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
o
f 

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
, 

d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 h
a
p

p
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 
m

e
a
n

in
g
 t

h
e

y
 b

ri
n

g
 t

o
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
liv

e
s
, 

a
ls

o
 c

a
n

 a
n
d

 d
o

 p
la

y
 a

 m
u

c
h

 l
a

rg
e

r 
ro

le
 i
n
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

 
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
c
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
it
h

 m
u
c
h

 t
o

 s
h
o

u
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 –

 i
ts

 a
w

a
rd

-w
in

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 t
o

w
n

 s
q
u

a
re

, 
it
s
 r

ic
h

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

, 
it
s
 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
, 

it
s
 s

a
fe

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 –

 b
u

t 
lik

e
 m

o
s
t 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 

it
 f

a
c
e

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
. 

 
 T

h
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

8
0

 a
n

d
 u

n
p

re
c
e

d
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 o
u

r 
u

n
d
e

r 
1
8
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 u
rg

e
n

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 c
re

a
te

 n
e

w
, 

h
ig

h
e

r-
s
k
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 b

e
tt
e

r 
p
a

id
 j
o

b
s
 i
n

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
. 
T

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 t

a
c
k
le

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 

b
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

y
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
 m

o
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 a

 h
ig

h
-q

u
a

lit
y
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

  
 W

h
ile

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 w

o
n

’t
 s

o
lv

e
 a

ll 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
, 
a

 c
o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 a

rt
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
fo

c
u

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 s
h
a

re
d

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 s

h
o
u

ld
 p

la
y
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

ro
le

 i
n

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
n

 
e

v
e

n
 b

e
tt
e

r 
p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

s
tu

d
y
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
. 

W
h
ile

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
tr

a
o

rd
in

a
ry

 a
rr

a
y
 o

f 
a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

h
a

p
p

e
n

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
m

u
c
h

 o
f 

it
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 

re
a

lm
s
 o

f 
tr

a
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n

o
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt
u

re
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h
a

t 
n

o
t 
a

s
 m

a
n

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 c

o
u

ld
 a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
tt
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 h

u
g
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 b

ri
n

g
. 

 
 T

h
e

 a
rt

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 t

h
e

y
 g

o
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

 l
if
e

 –
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
 

in
s
tr

u
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
s
c
h

o
o

l,
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 c
a

re
e

r 
in

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

r 
th

e
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
, 
m

a
s
te

ri
n

g
 d

ig
it
a

l 
p

h
o

to
g
ra

p
h

y
 o

r 
ta

k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 a

 t
e
a

 d
a

n
c
e

. 
 

 
 

L
o

rd
s
 o

f 
L

ig
h

tn
in

g
 a

t 
S

h
o

w
ti

m
e
 F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

2
0
1
2

 
  

 

Page 99



P
a

g
e

 |
 7

  

 O
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 
5
 

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g

 a
m

b
it

io
n

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

re
 f

iv
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
rt

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 
B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

. 
 

 T
h
e

s
e

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 m
u

c
h

 i
n

te
rl
in

k
e

d
. 
T

h
e
y
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 h

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
h
o
w

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 i
n

te
ra

c
t 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 

p
u

b
lic

, 
p

ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d
 t

h
ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

s
t 

im
p
o

rt
a
n
tl
y
 o

f 
a

ll,
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 l
iv

e
 h

e
re

. 
T

h
e

s
e
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 
c
o

n
n
e

c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

h
a

re
d

 v
is

io
n

, 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 f

iv
e

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
: 

E
n

s
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
il

d
 i

s
 v

a
lu

e
d

 s
o

 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 s
u

c
c

e
e

d
; 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
e
a

r 
o

f 
c

ri
m

e
; 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
 b

e
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

ll
 s

ta
g

e
s

 o
f 

li
fe

; 
C

re
a

te
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 b

y
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 i

n
v
e

s
ti

n
g

 i
n

 n
e
w

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 
q

u
a
li

ty
 h

o
m

e
s

; 
a

n
d

 M
a

x
im

is
e

 g
ro

w
th

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 a
n

d
 i

n
c

re
a
s
e

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

 
è

 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
s

p
e
ri

ty
 –

 n
u

rt
u

ri
n

g
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
c
u
lt
u

ra
l 
a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 s
e

c
to

r.
 T

h
is

 t
h
e

m
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 
g

ro
w

th
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 i
n
c
o

m
e

 o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
h
o

w
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 p

la
y
 a

 r
o
le

 i
n

 l
if
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a
m

. 
T

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 t
h
e

 l
o

w
e

s
t 

p
e

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 o

f 
a

n
y
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 

m
a

n
y
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 –

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
a

 s
in

g
le

 l
a
rg

e
 m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r,

 w
h

ic
h
 n

o
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
ra

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 j
o
b

s
 i
t 

o
n
c
e

 
d

id
, 

lo
w

 s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
T

h
in

g
s
 a

re
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 t

h
o

u
g
h

. 
T

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
o

p
 1

0
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

 u
p

s
, 
b

u
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h
a

t 
n

o
t 
a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
tt

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
. 

A
ls

o
, 

s
te

a
d
ily

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
e

x
a

m
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 

o
u

r 
s
ix

te
e

n
 t
o

 e
ig

h
te

e
n

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 t
o

 e
n
te

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 a
rt

s
 –

 
a

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
, 

a
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

to
rs

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
, 

a
s
 a

tt
ra

c
to

rs
 o

f 
to

u
ri
s
ts

, 
a

s
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 n

ig
h

t 
ti
m

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 m
o
re

, 
c
a
n

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 s

o
 m

u
c
h

 t
o

 
th

e
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 i
n

 a
 p

la
c
e
. 

In
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 t
h

is
 t

h
e
m

e
 i

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

w
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
c

o
n

n
e
c

t 
th

e
 

a
rt

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

e
c

o
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
s

p
e
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 
 

è
 S

k
il

ls
, 
c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 t
a
le

n
t 

–
 e

n
s
u

ri
n
g
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

, 
g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

tt
e

r 
fu

lf
il 

th
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l.
 T

h
is

 t
h

e
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
e

n
s
u

re
 e

v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 i
s
 v

a
lu

e
d
 s

o
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 s
u

c
c
e

e
d

, 
is

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
to

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

 m
o
re

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d

 b
ri
g
h

te
r 

fu
tu

re
. 

M
o
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
o

d
a

y
 

a
re

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 t

h
a
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
a
 g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

fa
c
e

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 o
f 

g
a

in
in

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
in

 a
 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e
t 

th
a

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s
 e

v
e

r 
d
if
fe

re
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

. 
In

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 ‘
h
a

rd
’ 
s
k
ill

s
 i
n
 a

re
a

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 n

u
m

e
ra

c
y
, 

lit
e

ra
c
y
 a

n
d

 I
T

, 
jo

b
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 ‘
s
o
ft

’ 
s
k
ill

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 s

e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

, 
c
re

a
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

lf
-m

o
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 t

h
e
m

e
 i

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 c

a
n

 p
la

y
 a

 r
o

le
 i

n
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o

m
 a

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

v
e

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

io
n

 r
o

u
te

s
 t

o
 a

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 j
o

b
 o

r 
a

 m
e

a
n

s
 o

f 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 t
a
le

n
t 

if
 t

h
e
y

 w
is

h
, 
o

r 
h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 s

k
il

ls
 t

h
e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 j

o
in

 a
 b

u
s

in
e
s

s
 o

r 
s

ta
rt

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
. 

 

Page 100



P
a

g
e

 |
 8

  

  O
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 
 

è
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

 b
e

in
g

 –
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 

th
e
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

ll 
b
e

in
g

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 a

ll 
s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
lif

e
, 

is
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
to

 
tr

a
n

s
fo

rm
in

g
 l
iv

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
H

e
a

lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 –

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 
m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 l
e

s
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 d
ie

 
p

re
m

a
tu

re
ly

 t
h

a
n

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 –

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 f
a

c
in

g
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

. 
It
s
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 a

re
 d

e
e
p

-
ro

o
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
o

o
r 

d
ie

t 
a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
in

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

s
y
c
h

o
- s

o
c
ia

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 s

e
lf
 e

s
te

e
m

 a
n

d
 f
e

e
lin

g
s
 o

f 
w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g
. 
T

h
e

 
a

rt
s
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s
 t
h

ro
u
g
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e

 w
it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
s
s
u
e

s
, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 d

e
p

re
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
in

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

o
r 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
ir
 w

id
e

r 
ro

le
 i
n
 h

e
lp

in
g
 a

lle
v
ia

te
 i
s
o
la

ti
o

n
, 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 s

e
lf
-c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 b
o

o
s
ti
n
g
 s

k
ill

 l
e

v
e

ls
, 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
a

l 
p

a
rt

 t
o

 p
la

y
 i
n

 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 f

it
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 t

h
e
m

e
, 

th
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a

m
 w

il
l 

b
e
c

o
m

e
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
d

 a
s

 a
n

 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

a
b

le
 t

o
o

l 
to

 h
e

lp
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

e
s

. 
 

 
è

 P
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 –

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
 p

la
c
e

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

e
e

l 
a

 p
a

rt
 o

f.
 T

h
is

 c
o
n

n
e

c
ts

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

h
e

m
e

: 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f
e

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

 b
y
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 

c
a

n
 h

e
lp

 m
a

k
e

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a

m
 a

n
 e

v
e

n
 b

e
tt
e

r 
p
la

c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

, 
w

o
rk

 i
n

, 
s
tu

d
y
 i
n

 a
n

d
 v

is
it
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

r,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
ts

 r
ic

h
 m

e
d

ie
v
a

l,
 T

u
d
o

r 
a
n
d

 e
v
e

n
 o

ld
e

r 
h
is

to
ry

, 
th

e
 m

o
re

 r
e

c
e

n
t 
w

o
rl
d

 f
a
m

o
u

s
 B

e
c
o

n
tr

e
e
 e

s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 a
s
 t
h

e
 h

o
m

e
 o

f 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 
a

n
d

 n
e

w
ly

 e
m

e
rg

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e

 u
n

iq
u

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 t

o
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
, 

c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
n
d

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 b

e
tt
e

r 
h
a

rn
e

s
s
e
d

, 
in

 
w

a
y
s
 w

h
ic

h
 b

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
e

v
e

n
ts

, 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

. 
T

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 a

 r
e
l a

ti
v
e

ly
 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
a

rt
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 b
y
 i
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
o

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 t

o
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
T

h
is

 
th

e
m

e
 i

s
 v

e
ry

 m
u

c
h

 a
b

o
u

t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

B
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s

 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 i

n
 i

n
n

o
v
a

ti
n

g
 n

e
w

 w
a
y
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 t

o
 

c
o

n
n

e
c

t 
w

it
h

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

 
è

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 c

o
ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 –

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
, 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

h
o

w
c
a

s
in

g
. 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 h
a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

rt
is

ti
c
 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 –
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

ta
le

n
te

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 D

u
d

le
y
 M

o
o

re
, 

D
a
m

e
 V

e
ra

 L
y
n

n
, 

B
ill

y
 B

ra
g

g
, 

D
e

v
lin

 a
n

d
 

J
e

s
s
ie

 J
. 

It
 h

a
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

lo
n

g
s
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e
n

o
w

n
e

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

tu
d

io
 3

 A
rt

s
, 
A

rc
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 M

u
s
ic

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

ro
a

d
w

a
y
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
. 
It

 h
a

s
 a

 g
re

a
t 

tr
a
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
fe

s
ti
v
a

ls
 a

n
d
 e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

o
lt
e

n
, 

C
re

a
te

, 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 S

h
o

w
, 

E
a

s
t 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 

M
e

la
 a

n
d

 S
t.
 G

e
o

rg
e

’s
 D

a
y
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
s
 r

e
a

lly
 l
a

c
k
in

g
 w

h
e

n
 i
t 

c
o

m
e

s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
, 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 (

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 a
m

a
te

u
r)

, 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a
n

s
 t
h

a
t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
re

 m
is

s
e
d

; 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 s
m

a
lle

r 
in

 s
c
a

le
 t

h
a

n
 t
h

e
y
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 c

o
n
n

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e
s
t 
o

f 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 

th
a

n
 i
t 

c
o
u

ld
 b

e
. 

T
h

is
 t

h
e
m

e
 i
s

 a
ll
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

, 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
 s

h
a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 c

a
n

 p
la

y
 a

n
 

e
v

e
n

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 r
o

le
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a

m
. 

  
 

Page 101



P
a

g
e

 |
 9

  

 L
in

k
s
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s

 
6
 

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

k
e

y
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
o

th
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

’s
 A

rt
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
: 

 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 

R
e
g

io
n

a
l 

P
o

li
c
ie

s
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
s

 
L

o
c
a
l 

P
o

li
c
ie

s
, 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
s

 

 P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 &

 M
u
s
e

u
m

s
 A

c
t 
1

9
6

4
 

 A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 g

re
a

t 
a

rt
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 –
 A

rt
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

2
0

1
1

-2
0

2
1
 

 E
v
e

ry
 c

h
ild

 m
a

tt
e

rs
; 

c
h
a

n
g
e

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 2

0
0
4

 
 B

u
ild

in
g
 a

 s
o

c
ie

ty
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
g
e

s
 2

0
0
9
 

 C
u
lt
u

re
, 

K
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
; 

g
re

a
t 

m
u

s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

, 
A

rt
s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

2
0
1

1
-2

0
1

5
 

 A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 G

re
a

t 
A

rt
 f
o

r 
E

v
e

ry
o

n
e

, 
A

rt
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
1

-2
0
1

5
 

 C
u
lt
u

ra
l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ts
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 D

a
rr

e
n

 
H

e
n

le
y
 (

2
0

1
1

) 
  

 C
u
lt
u

ra
l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o

lis
; 
T

h
e

 M
a
y
o

r’
s
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

2
0

1
0

) 
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

’s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

1
3

 –
 1

6
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

’s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
3

/1
4
 

 A
 C

a
ll 

fo
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e

, 
A

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
: 

C
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o
p

le
’s

 P
la

n
 2

0
1

1
 –

 2
0

1
6

 
(B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

) 
 

 H
e
lp

in
g
 Y

o
u

 L
iv

e
 t

h
e

 L
if
e
 Y

o
u

 W
a
n

t:
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
0

 -
 2

0
1

3
 (

L
o

n
d
o

n
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
) 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0

1
3

 –
 1

6
 

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

3
 

–
 1

6
 

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1

2
 –

 1
5
 

 E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
3

 -
 1

6
  

 

 
 

Page 102



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

0
  

L
o

c
a
l 

C
o

n
te

x
t 

  
7
 

T
h
e

 c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 u
n

iq
u
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a
m

. 

T
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 i
s

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 

 
T

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h
 i

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

 o
n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

g
ro

w
th

s
 i
n
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h
e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
, 

w
it
h

 
a

 
h

ig
h

 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 
o
f 

th
e
 

g
ro

w
th

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
c
o

u
n
te

d
 

fo
r 

b
y
 

p
re

-
s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

 

 
T

h
e

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 
h

a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 2

2
,0

0
0

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h
e

 2
0
0

1
 

a
n

d
 

2
0

1
1

 
C

e
n

s
u

s
 

w
h

ic
h
 

is
 

a
 

1
3

.4
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

. 

 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
lm

o
s
t 

a
 5

0
%

 g
ro

w
th

 
in

 
0

-4
 
y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
. 

 
T

h
is

 
is

 
th

e
 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

g
ro

w
th

 f
o

r 
th

is
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

a
n

y
 l

o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n
d

 W
a

le
s
. 

 
T

h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
h

a
s
 

th
e

 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 p
e

rc
e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 a
g
e

d
 0

 
to

 1
9

 a
t 
3

1
%

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n
d

 W
a
le

s
. 

 

 
T

h
e

 
o

v
e

r 
6

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

fo
r 

o
n

e
 

o
f 

th
e

 
s
m

a
lle

s
t 

p
e

rc
e
n
ta

g
e

s
 

o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 W

a
le

s
. 

  

 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 2
0

%
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

6
5

+
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

th
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

r 
8
5

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 t
o
p

 1
0

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

in
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 b

y
 

2
0

2
1

.

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c

ti
o

n
s

 
  

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 r

is
e
 t
o

 
2

0
6

,6
0

0
 b

y
 2

0
1
6

 a
n

d
 2

2
4

,9
0

0
 b

y
 2

0
2

1
, 

th
e

 t
h

ir
d

 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
m

o
n

g
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

(O
N

S
 S

u
b

 N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ti
o
n

s
 2

0
1

0
).

 
 T

h
e
 E

th
n

ic
 D

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
is

 a
ls

o
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

  
  

In
 2

0
0

1
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 W

h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h
/I

ri
s
h

 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
a

s
 8

2
.5

%
: 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

d
ro

p
p
e

d
 t
o

 5
1

.1
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

. 
 

 
M

o
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
is

e
n

 i
n

 b
o

th
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
0

1
 a

n
d

 
2

0
1
2

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
fo

r 
B

la
c
k
: 

A
fr

ic
a

n
, 

A
s
ia

n
 a

n
d
 W

h
it
e

: 
O

th
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s
. 

 O
v
e

ra
ll

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

’s
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 h
a
s

 a
 l

o
w

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s

k
il

ls
 w

h
e
n

 
c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 

 

 
1

3
.8

%
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

9
.3

%
. 

(A
n

n
u

a
l 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 J

a
n

 -
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

).
 

 

 
2

7
%

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 a

 
d

e
g
re

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t,
 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 m

u
c
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

4
5

%
. 

(A
n
n

u
a

l 
P

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 
S

u
rv

e
y
 J

a
n

-D
e
c
 2

0
1

1
) 

 

 
L

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt
 b

a
s
ic

 s
k
ill

s
 a

re
 l
o

w
 b

u
t 

a
re

 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
. 

 

 

 
B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a

m
 i

s
 a

ls
o

 a
m

o
n

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 b

a
s

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

In
d

e
x

 o
f 

M
u

lt
ip

le
 D

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 

  
T

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
s
 r

a
n

k
e

d
 7

th
 w

it
h

in
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 o

u
t 
o
f 

3
3

 (
w

h
e

re
 1

s
t  i

s
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
).

 
 

 
L

if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
s
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 
b

e
lo

w
 t

h
a

t 
o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 f
o

r 
m

e
n

 a
n
d

 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
w

it
h

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f

o
r 

m
e

n
 i
n
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 i
s
 7

7
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
8
1

 y
e

a
rs

. 
(O

N
S

 2
0
1

1
) 

Y
o

u
th

 D
a
n

c
e
 G

ro
u

p
 

Page 103



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

1
  

L
o

c
a
l 
C

o
n

te
x
t 

  

K
e

y
 f

a
c

ts
 a

n
d

 f
ig

u
re

s
 o

n
 a

rt
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 

A
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 A

rt
s
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

: 

 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 h
a

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

w
e
s
t 

a
rt

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 r
a
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

 

 
J
u

s
t 

3
1

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

tt
e
n

d
 o

r 
p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n
 a

rt
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 4
4

%
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
lly

 a
n

d
 4

8
%

 i
n
 L

o
n
d

o
n

1
. 

 
3

8
%

 v
is

it
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d

 g
a

lle
ri
e

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 5
2

%
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 a

n
d

 5
9

%
 i
n
 L

o
n
d

o
n

1
. 

H
o
w

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
 w

it
h

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 i
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

2
: 

B
a
rk

in
g

 &
 

D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 
H

o
u

n
s
lo

w
 

N
e
w

h
a

m
 

H
a
v
e

ri
n

g
 

R
e
d

b
ri

d
g

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

%
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 3

 a
rt

s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 l
a

s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

3
2

%
 

3
9

%
 

2
9

%
 

4
3

%
 

4
2

%
 

4
8

%
 

%
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 v

is
it
e
d
 a

 m
u
s
e
u
m

 o
r 

g
a
lle

ry
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

3
9

%
 

5
3

%
 

4
1

%
 

4
6

%
 

5
2

%
 

5
9

%
 

K
e

y
 f

a
c

ts
 a

n
d

 f
ig

u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s

 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 h
a

s
 t

h
e

 l
o
w

e
s
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
. 

T
h
e

 G
re

a
te

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tu
d

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 1

9
5

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 5

1
8

 p
e

o
p

le
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 t
w

o
 o

th
e

r 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 b
o

tt
o
m

 t
h

re
e

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
c
re

a
ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
- 

H
a
v
e

ri
n

g
 w

it
h

 4
2

0
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
in

g
 1

2
2
1

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

N
e
w

h
a

m
 w

it
h

 4
8

0
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
in

g
 1

6
1
0

. 

H
o
w

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
’s

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 w

it
h

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
3
: 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e
s

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
c

re
a

ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 

a
c

ti
v
it

y
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
e
s

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
c

re
a

ti
v
e

 
b

u
s
in

e
s

s
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 

B
a
rk

in
g

 &
 

D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 
H

a
v
e

ri
n

g
 

N
e
w

h
a

m
 

W
e

s
tm

in
s

te
r 

C
a
m

d
e
n

 

N
o
. 

o
f 

c
re

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

y
 f

ir
m

s
 

1
9

5
 

4
2

0
 

4
8

0
 

6
9

5
5
 

4
4

0
5
 

N
o
. 

o
f 

c
re

a
ti
v
e
 s

e
c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

5
1

8
 

1
2

2
1
 

1
6

1
0
 

6
3

7
8

9
 

4
1

2
6

5
 

1
 A

c
ti
v
e

 P
e
o

p
le

 S
u

rv
e

y
 d

a
ta

 2
0
1

0
 (

It
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 a

s
 a

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 a
s
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
e

  
 

P
e

o
p

le
 s

u
rv

e
y
).

 A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n
e

w
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 o

f 
a

rt
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

. 
2
 D

C
M

S
 A

c
ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
tt
e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

. 
3
 G

L
A

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 S
e

c
to

r 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 S

tu
d

y
 2

0
1

0
 (

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
8

) 
 

Page 104



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

2
  

 L
o

c
a
l 
C

o
n

te
x
t 

  
 T

h
e
 a

rt
s
 s

e
c
to

r 
A

n
 a

rt
s
 a

u
d

it
, 

u
p

d
a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 2
0
0

8
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 A
rt

s
 A

u
d

it
, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 A
rt

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

T
h

e
 

a
u

d
it
 h

a
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

la
y
e

rs
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 s
e

c
to

r 
in

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 w
it
h

 s
o

m
e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
re

a
l 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ic

tu
re

 i
s
 o

f 
a
 f

ra
g
m

e
n
te

d
 a

rt
s
 o

ff
e

r 
th

a
t 

is
 n

o
t 

s
e

rv
in

g
 a

ll 
s
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 
 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

rt
s
 (

d
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 d

ra
m

a
) 

a
n

d
 m

u
s
ic

 a
re

 r
e
a

l 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 i
n

 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

ff
e

r 
p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 s

tr
o
n

g
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 v
a

ri
e

d
 o

ff
e

r 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
it
h

 
a

m
a
te

u
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
, 
p

ri
v
a

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 

a
rt

s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

le
is

u
re

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
, 

y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
ll 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
. 

D
e
s
p

it
e

 t
h

is
, 

c
le

a
rl
y
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 b
e

in
g
 

re
a

c
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

v
e

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
rt

s
 s

e
c
to

rs
, 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
tr

o
n

g
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
n
e

c
ti
o

n
s
, 
m

a
n

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

p
e

ra
te

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t
h

e
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s
. 

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
e

 v
is

u
a
l 

a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
ra

ft
s

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

t 
a
 l
o

c
a
l 

le
v
e

l.
 V

is
u
a

l 
a

rt
s
 a

re
 a

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 a
t 

B
a

rk
in

g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o
lle

g
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
c
o

n
n
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 A

rt
s
. 

A
t 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
th

e
 g

a
lle

ri
e
s
 a

t 
B

a
rk

in
g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
D

a
g
e

n
h
a

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 a

re
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
b

u
t 
th

is
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 n

e
e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r-
c
o

n
n
e

c
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

v
is

u
a

l 
a

rt
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

ff
e

r.
 

  D
ig

it
a
l 

a
n

d
 m

e
d

ia
 i
s
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
e

 
m

e
d

ia
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 F
o

y
e

r 
a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
a

s
te

rn
 E

d
g
e

 F
ilm

 F
u

n
d

 a
re

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

 i
n

 
th

is
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

 1
4

8
 v

e
n

u
e
s

 o
f 

v
a

ry
in

g
 s

c
a

le
 a

n
d

 s
c
o

p
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

h
e

re
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 o

r 
c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
. 
W

h
ile

 t
h
e

 
d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 a

rt
s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 l
im

it
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

ro
a

d
w

a
y
 t

h
e

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 

a
s
s
e

t,
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 a

rt
s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
, 

V
a

le
n

c
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 E

a
s
tb

u
ry

 M
a
n

o
r 

h
o

s
t 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

w
it
h

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
, 
h

a
lls

, 
le

is
u

re
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

ls
o
 a

d
d

in
g
 t

o
 

th
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o

r 
a
rt

s
, 
b

o
th

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 b
u

ilt
 a

n
d
 

a
d

a
p

te
d
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

. 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 n

e
w

ly
 b

u
ilt

 a
n

d
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
e

d
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 
le

is
u

re
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 a

 r
e
a

l 
a

s
s
e

t 
th

a
t 

c
o
u

ld
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

 
 T

h
e

s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

a
n

c
e

, 
d

ra
m

a
 a

n
d

 m
u
s
ic

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 P
a

rk
 S

c
h
o
o

l;
 n

e
w

 m
e
d

ia
 a

n
d
 d

ra
m

a
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
B

a
rk

in
g
 

A
b

b
e

y
 S

c
h
o

o
l;
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

m
u

s
ic

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
n
e
w

ly
 r

e
b

u
ilt

 J
o

 R
ic

h
a

rd
s
o

n
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 a
tt

a
c
h

e
d

 C
a

s
tl
e

 G
re

e
n

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
o

ri
u
m

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

u
s
ic

, 
d
a

n
c
e
 

d
ra

m
a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
s
p
a

c
e

s
. 

S
y
d

n
e

y
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 a

 m
e

d
ia

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 c

e
n

tr
e
 w

it
h

 d
ig

it
a

l 
fi
lm

 a
n
d

 m
u
s
ic

 e
d

it
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 j
u

s
t 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 c

in
e

m
a
. 

 
 A

 C
re

a
ti

v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 c
e

n
tr

e
d

 o
n

 t
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ld
e

s
t 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 –
 t

h
e

 M
a
lt
h

o
u

s
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 G

ra
n

a
ry

 
b

u
ild

in
g
 –

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

p
a

c
e
 f

o
r 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 n

e
w

 h
o

u
s
in

g
. 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
il t

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 2

5
 p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 5
3
0

 
h

e
c

ta
re

s
 o

f 
G

re
e

n
 B

e
lt

 a
re

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
t 

a
s
s
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 a

lo
n
g
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a

lm
, 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

.  

 T
h
e

 d
ia

g
ra

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

W
O

T
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 t
h

a
t 
fo

llo
w

 s
u

m
m

a
ri
s
e

 t
h
e

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
rt

s
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
  

 

Page 105



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

3
  

 F
ig

u
re

 1
: 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 d

e
li

v
e

ri
n

g
 a

rt
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

 

 

 

      
   

 

B
a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a

m
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

: 
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 
P

a
rk

s
, 

c
u

lt
u

re
, 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

M
u

s
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

B
&

D
 b

a
s

e
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
ra

c
ti

ti
o

n
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

d
a

n
c
e

, 
d

ra
m

a
 t

e
a

c
h

e
rs

, 
fi
lm

m
a

k
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
: 

  
  

  
  

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 6
0

 y
o

u
th

 a
n
d

 
n

o
n

-p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

rt
s
 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

e
e

k
ly

 i
n

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

p
a

c
e

s
. 

 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
: 

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
A

d
u

lt
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 
C

o
lle

g
e

,  
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

rt
s
 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 
b

a
s

e
d

 a
rt

s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s

: 
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
S

tu
d

io
 3

 A
rt

s
, 

A
rc

 T
h
e
a

tr
e
, 

T
h
e

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
, 

G
re

e
n

s
h
o

e
s
, 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 Y
o

u
th

 D
a

n
c
e

 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
rt

s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 

B
&

D
: 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

C
h
a

in
 R

e
a

c
ti
o

n
, 
F

ilm
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
R

o
y
a

l 
B

a
lle

t,
 

B
a

rb
ic

a
n
 C

a
m

p
u

s
, 

G
u

ild
h

a
ll 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
o
f 

M
u
s
ic

, 
C

re
a

te
 

 

A
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 f
o

r 
e

n
jo

y
m

e
n

t,
 

q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 a

n
d

 
le

a
rn

in
g

 
 

Page 106



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

4
  

 F
ig

u
re

 2
: 

F
a
c

il
it

ie
s

 f
o

r 
A

rt
s
 A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

 

 

 

  

 
  

 
  

 

A
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e

 

v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s
 

5
6

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

: 
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 l
a

c
k
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
rt

s
; 

o
th

e
rs

 
w

it
h

 s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

u
ilt

 a
n

d
 

re
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

S
e

v
e

n
 l

e
is

u
re

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

: 
  

fi
v
e

 a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
 t
o

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
h

o
s
t 
d

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 d

ra
m

a
 

c
la

s
s
e

s
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
: 

  
 

2
5

 p
a

rk
s
 –

 N
e
w

 s
p

la
s
h
 

p
a

rk
 a

t 
B

a
rk

in
g
 P

a
rk

 w
it
h

 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
v
e

n
u

e
. 

A
w

a
rd

 w
in

n
in

g
 

p
u

b
lic

 r
e
a

lm
 a

n
d

 
re

n
o

w
n

e
d

 p
u

b
lic

 a
rt

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

S
e

v
e

n
 l

ib
ra

ri
e

s
: 

  
  

  
  

  
  

w
it
h

 1
 m

ill
io

n
 p

lu
s
 v

is
it
s
 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 v

e
n

u
e
s

: 
  
  

 
2

3
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
, 
s
ix

 
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
g
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 1

8
 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 

T
w

o
 h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

: 
E

a
s
tb

u
ry

 M
a

n
o

r 
H

o
u

s
e
 

a
n

d
 V

a
le

n
c
e

 H
o
u

s
e

 
M

u
s
e

u
m

 
 

D
e
d

ic
a

te
d

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 
c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
s

p
a

c
e
s
: 

  
B

ro
a

d
w

a
y
, 

th
e

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 
In

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 Q

u
a

rt
e
r,

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 M

u
s
ic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 e

x
h

ib
it
io

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
  

Page 107



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

5
  

S
W

O
T

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

s
: 

 A
 s

m
a
ll 

c
o
re

 o
f 

a
rt

s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it
h
 r

e
a
l 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 

 S
tr

o
n

g
 m

u
s
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 i
n

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o

ls
 r

e
a
c
h

in
g

 o
v
e
r 

4
,0

0
0
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k
 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

rt
s
 a

 r
e

a
l 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

, 
d
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
- 

d
a

n
c
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
o
d
e
l 
c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
p
lic

a
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e
r 

a
rt

 f
o
rm

s
 

 P
ri

v
a
te

 d
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

ra
m

a
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
ls

o
 s

tr
o
n

g
 

 L
o
n
g

 s
ta

n
d

in
g
 n

o
n

-p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
rt

s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 

 N
e

w
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 d
ig

it
a
l 
m

e
d
ia

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 J

a
c
k
 P

e
tc

h
e

y
 F

o
y
e
r 

 A
 n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ro
a
d

w
a

y
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a
m

 C
o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

rt
s
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 S
c
h
o
o

ls
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
, 

s
tr

o
n

g
 a

rt
s
 p

ro
fi
le

. 

 Y
o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
s
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 a

rt
s
 

 S
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d
 v

is
ib

le
 p

u
b
lic

 a
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 E
a
s
te

rn
 E

d
g
e
 F

ilm
 f

u
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

 t
o

 g
e

t 
in

v
o
lv

e
d

 i
n

 f
ilm

 m
a
k
in

g
 

 H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 

th
e
 a

rt
s
. 

W
e
a
k
n

e
s

s
e
s
: 

 L
o

w
 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n

 a
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 

 F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

 D
is

c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 o

ff
e
r,

 e
v
e
n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

 V
e
ry

 f
e

w
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 L
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

r 

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
 n

o
t 
p

u
n

c
h
in

g
 i
ts

 w
e

ig
h
t 
a
s
 a

 c
o
re

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 D
e
s
p
it
e
 i
ts

 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

tr
a
v
e
l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 f

e
e

ls
 i
s
o
la

te
d
 

c
u
lt
u
ra

lly
 

 L
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

m
a
te

u
r 

a
n

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 P
u
b

lic
 a

rt
 n

o
t 

a
s
 c

o
n
n

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
 i
t 

c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

 B
o
ro

u
g
h
 n

o
t 

c
a

p
tu

ri
n
g
 a

s
 m

a
n

y
 f

ilm
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 d

a
y
s
 a

s
 i
t 

c
o
u
ld

/s
h
o
u

ld
 

 L
im

it
e
d
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

 E
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

 c
a
n
 b

e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e

 

 C
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rt

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
s
n
’t
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
n
n

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
: 

 T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

re
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
n

g
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 M

u
s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
 c

ro
s
s
 a

rt
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
in

g
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
o
ff

e
r 

in
 L

o
n
d
o

n
. 

 

 S
c
h
o
o

ls
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

if
 t

h
e

y
 b

ri
n

g
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
to

 a
rt

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 C
o
n
n

e
c
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
re

 a
g
e

n
d
a
s
 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 f

o
ru

m
 f

o
r 

a
rt

s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

 B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a
m

 C
o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

  

 T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 g
ro

w
in

g
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
th

fu
l 
p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 

 O
u
td

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 e

.g
. 

B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

S
q

u
a
re

, 
A

b
b

e
y
 r

u
in

s
, 

B
a
rk

in
g
 S

p
la

s
h
 P

a
rk

 

 C
re

a
ti
v
e
 P

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 P

la
c
e

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ilo

t 

 C
re

a
ti
v
e
 I

n
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 H

o
u
s
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 P

u
rf

le
e
t 

a
n
d

 w
id

e
r 

c
o

lla
b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 T

h
u
rr

o
c
k
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

T
h

re
a
ts

: 

 E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 f

e
w

e
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

 O
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

 O
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 e

v
e
n
 m

o
re

 a
d
e
p
t 

a
t 
s
e
c
u
ri

n
g
 A

C
E

 a
n

d
 g

ra
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

 K
e

y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 l
e
a

v
e
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 f

o
r 

b
ig

g
e
r 

a
n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

 F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 e

n
g
a
g

e
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

 R
e
d
u
c
e

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 b
u
d

g
e
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

u
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n

ts
 t

e
a
m

 i
n
 

2
0
1
4

. 

 E
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

v
e
n
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 D

a
g

e
n
h
a
m

 T
o
w

n
 

S
h
o

w
, 

C
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
M

u
s
ic

 c
o

n
c
e
rt

, 
S

t.
 G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 D
a

y
, 

a
n
d

 E
a
s
t 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 

M
e
la

 

 L
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 B

ro
a
d

w
a

y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

c
u

lt
u
ra

l 
a
s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
e
 o

f 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 c

u
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

 
 

Page 108



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

6
  

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

8
 

 U
n
lik

e
 o

th
e

r 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

rs
e
e

 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 a
rt

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

. 
A

n
 e

a
rl
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 a
t 

a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
 

 C
e
n

tr
a
l 
to

 t
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 n
e

tw
o

rk
. 

H
o

w
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
b

e
lo

w
: 

                 S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

. 
In

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

 i
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
p
la

c
e

 t
o
 i
n

it
ia

te
 a

 B
a
rk

in
g

 
a

n
d

 D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 t
h

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

 t
h
a

t 
w

ill
 o

v
e

rs
e
e

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

It
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
n

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
, 
th

e
re

b
y
 a

llo
w

in
g
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

to
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

k
e
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

 
 

It
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
ill

 m
e

e
t 

th
re

e
 t

im
e

s
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a

r 
a
n

d
 

it
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 t

h
a

t 
is

 o
p

e
n

 t
o
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 
in

te
re

s
te

d
 l
o

c
a

l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

, 
a

n
d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
c
o

re
 v

a
lu

e
s
, 

a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 A
 t

a
s
k
 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
is

e
d

 
fo

rm
a
t 
fo

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 g

a
th

e
ri
n

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 d

a
ta

 c
a

n
 b

e
 s

h
a

re
d

 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 a

n
d

 f
u

ll 
a

n
d

 r
o
b

u
s
t 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

.  
 

 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

D
a
g

e
n
h
a
m

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
A

rt
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

D
a
g

e
n
h
a
m

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
u
lt
u
re

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

C
re

a
ti
v
e
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

G
ro

u
p
 

C
re

a
ti
v
e
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

P
la

c
e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

 

S
k
ill

s
, 

J
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

S
a
fe

r 
&

 S
tr

o
n
g

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

 

Page 109



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

7
  

T
h
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

o
a

rd
, 

th
e

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 Q

u
a

rt
e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
g
ro

u
p
, 

th
e

 C
u
lt
u

ra
l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
u

lt
u

re
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 

T
h
e

 C
re

a
ti

v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 P
la

c
e

s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

o
a

rd
 i
s
 a

 r
e
c
e

n
tl
y
 

fo
rm

e
d

 c
o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 (

A
 N

e
w

 D
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
, 

S
tu

d
io

 3
 A

rt
s
, 

A
rc

 t
h
e

a
tr

e
 a

n
d

 
C

o
lle

c
ti
v
e

 V
o

ic
e

),
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 A
rt

s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

fu
n

d
e
d

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

T
h
e

 C
re

a
ti

v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

S
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 m

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
. 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p

 a
re

 t
o

: 

 
m

a
x
im

is
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

w
n

e
rs

 (
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 o

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

) 
in

 t
h
e

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 I
n
d
u

s
tr

y
 Q

u
a

rt
e
r;

 

 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 n
e

w
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 Q

u
a

rt
e
r;

 a
n
d

  

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
. 
 

T
h
e

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o

lle
g
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 

fo
u

r 
n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
o

s
e

 r
e
m

it
 i
s
 c

o
n
n

e
c
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 c
e

le
b

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
lif

e
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
: 

A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
B

ri
ti
s
h

 F
ilm

 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
, 

E
n

g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e

 
L

o
tt
e

ry
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 o

n
e

 o
f 

o
n

ly
 t

h
re

e
 s

u
c
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
lly

.

 

 T
h
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
a
c
h

 o
f 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

o
 

th
a

t 
m

o
re

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 b

e
tt
e

r 
a
b

le
 t

o
 

n
a

v
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
o
ff

e
r;

 h
a

v
in

g
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
a

k
in

g
 

p
ri
d

e
 i
n

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 l
iv

e
 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 a
rt

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
U

n
lik

e
 o

th
e

r 
e
le

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

r 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 l
ik

e
 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

, 
a

rt
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
d

if
fe

re
n
t 

d
iv

is
io

n
s
. 

T
h
is

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 w

e
ll 

a
rt

ic
u
la

te
d

 o
r 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

.  
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

ri
n

g
 c

o
h

e
re

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 g
re

a
te

r 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 t
o

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

rt
s
, 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a
n

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
. 

It
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
h

a
re

d
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 o

f 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

c
u
lt
u

ra
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 

o
f 

th
e

 a
rt

s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
t 

w
o

rk
s
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 m

a
n

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 c

iv
ic

 
b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
h

a
t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
.  

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
ro

s
s
-d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 
B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

D
a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 c
u

lt
u

re
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

d
 o

f 
o
ff

ic
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 i
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
. 
A

s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 t
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 w

ill
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 
w

a
y
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
a
n

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
u

n
d
u

e
 b

u
re

a
u

c
ra

c
y
. 

 
 

Page 110



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

8
  

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 
9
 

 In
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

lly
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

e
d

 t
im

e
s
, 

it
 i
s
 v

it
a

l 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

tr
o
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

m
a

k
e
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
u

in
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
it
 h

a
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o
p

le
. 

B
o

th
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

m
e

th
o

d
s
:  

 T
a
k

in
g

 t
h

e
 t

e
m

p
e

ra
tu

re
 -

 a
n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
g
a

th
e

ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 S

a
fe

r 
a

n
d
 S

tr
o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
le

c
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 T
ru

s
t,

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 b

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

k
ill

s
, 

J
o

b
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
b

o
a

rd
. 

 T
a
k

in
g

 p
a

rt
 –

 t
h
e

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 P
la

c
e
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 m

e
a
s
u

re
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

rt
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r  
- 

w
e

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
V

S
 t

o
 g

a
th

e
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 e

n
o

rm
o

u
s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 i
t 
m

a
k
e

s
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
. 

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

 –
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
rt

is
ts

 w
ill

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

 A
rt

s
 A

u
d

it
 –

 i
n
 2

0
1

6
 a

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h
 A

rt
s
 A

u
d

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
, 

w
h

ic
h
 w

ill
 

s
h

o
w

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
to

r 
h
a

s
 c

h
a
n

g
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 S
k

il
ls

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t  
–

 w
e

 w
ill

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
C

re
a

ti
v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 Q

u
a

rt
e
r 

a
n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
, 

w
o

rk
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 g
e

tt
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
to

 j
o

b
s
. 

  
 

  
 

M
o

lt
e
n

 F
e
s
ti

v
a
l 

Page 111



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

9
  

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y

 
1
0

 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 p
la

n
 i

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

rt
s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

A
s
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
n

te
x
t 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

, 
B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 h
a

s
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
. 

It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n
is

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
e

q
u

a
l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
o
n

, 
a
n
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
re

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
e

th
n

ic
it
y
, 

a
g
e

, 
d

is
a
b

ili
ty

, 
fa

it
h
 o

r 
g
e

n
d
e

r,
 t
o

 t
a
k
e

 p
a

rt
 a

s
 a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 m
e

m
b
e

rs
 a

n
d

/o
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 i
n
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
: 

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

 c
u
lt
u

ra
l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 
th

a
t 
p

ro
m

o
te

 m
u
tu

a
l 
u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
to

 w
o

rk
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

c
to

r 
o

r 
to

 h
ig

h
e

r 
e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 m
e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h
 

 
m

o
re

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

a
n

d
 p

re
-s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
rt

s
. 

 
e

v
e

ry
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

e
 v

is
it
 t

o
 V

a
le

n
c
e
 

H
o
u

s
e

 M
u
s
e

u
m

 o
r 

E
a

s
tb

u
ry

 M
a
n

o
r 

H
o
u

s
e

, 
o

n
e
 v

is
it
 t

o
 a

 l
o
c
a

l 
lib

ra
ry

, 
a

n
d

 
o

n
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
, 
m

u
s
ic

 o
r 

d
a

n
c
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
 

F
o

re
s
t 

–
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
o

lt
e
n

 F
e
s
ti

v
a
l 
2
0
1

2
 

 

Page 112



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

0
  

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

 
1
1

 
 A

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

im
in

g
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
a
rt

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

th
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

il
l 
in

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

s
e
tt

in
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 I
t 

w
il
l 
a
ls

o
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 
c
o

m
p

e
ll
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 b
id

s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
il
it

i e
s
. 

 H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

m
u

s
t 

b
e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 d
if

fi
c
u

lt
 t

im
e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 r

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
 w

il
l 
re

d
u

c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
if

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h

is
 s

ta
rk

 r
e
a
li
ty

 h
a
s
 d

ir
e
c
tl

y
 s

h
a

p
e
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 i
t 

id
e
n

ti
fi

e
s
. 

 A
 c

o
rn

e
rs

to
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

le
s
s
 m

o
n
e

y
, 

o
r 

to
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
m

o
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

e
x
p

e
n
d

it
u

re
. 

 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 
o

th
e

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a
l,
 s

u
b

-
re

g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
.  

 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

s
tr

e
a

m
s
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

 t
h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
 

 A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 n

o
ta

b
le

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 t
ra

c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 b

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
T

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 G
ra

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 (

A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
L

o
tt
e

ry
 f

u
n
d

in
g
) 

is
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 l
o

w
. 

In
 2

0
1
0

 -
1

1
 o

n
ly

 t
h

re
e

 G
ra

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 a

w
a

rd
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d

e
 t
o

 B
a

rk
in

g
 

a
n

d
 D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 o
u

t 
o
f 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

4
0

2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
s
 a

 
w

h
o

le
. 

 W
it
h

 s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
d
e

g
re

e
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 G

ra
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 A
rt

s
, 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

L
o
tt

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

tr
u
s
ts

, 
fo

u
n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
. 

 B
id

d
in

g
 f

o
r,

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a
n

d
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

re
 a

ls
o

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
a
n
g
e

 o
f 

m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
m

o
d

e
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
s
e

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

, 
p

ri
v
a

te
 o

r 
tr

u
s
t 

s
e

c
to

rs
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 c
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
 o

f 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

re
le

a
s
e

 f
u

n
d

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
rt

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h
e
s
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

lly
 

c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

e
d

 t
i m

e
s
. 

 
  

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 B

ro
a
d

w
a
y
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
 

Page 113



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

1
  

 W
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
th

is
 m

e
a
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 l
iv

e
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a

m
?

 
1
2

 

 A
n
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 m
o
re

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 s

e
e
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
. 

 
 T

h
is

 a
rt

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

it
s
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

s
a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 

T
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

rt
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 i
n
 

tu
rn

 i
n
fo

rm
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
e
m

. 
   P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
: 

 

 

1
. 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 p

ro
s

p
e
ri

ty
 –

 n
u

rt
u

ri
n

g
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
a

rt
s
, 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 s
e

c
to

r 
 

 

2
. 

S
k

il
ls

, 
c

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 t
a
le

n
t 

–
 e

n
s
u

ri
n
g
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

, 
g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 f
u

lf
il 

th
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
 

 

3
. 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

 b
e

in
g

 –
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
  

 
4

. 
P

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 –

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 a
 p

la
c
e

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

e
e

l 
a

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
 

  

5
. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 c

o
ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 –

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

tr
o
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
, 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
c
a

s
in

g
  

 

   
 

Page 114



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

2
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 O

n
e
: 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 p

ro
s
p
e
ri
ty

  
1
3

 
W

e
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

a
n

d
 c

re
a
ti

v
e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

W
e
 w

il
l:

 

 

1
. 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 I
n
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 Q

u
a

rt
e
r 

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
w

n
e

rs
 (

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
in

g
 o

r 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

) 
a
n

d
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 n
e

w
 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e

 Q
u
a

rt
e
r.

 

 

 

2
. 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 C

re
a

ti
v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n

d
. 

 T
h

e
 F

u
n
d

 i
s
 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 
g
ro

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 

c
re

a
ti
n

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
, 

w
o

rk
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

 f
e

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

3
. 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
s
 a

 f
ilm

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fi
lm

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
. 

 

4
. 

p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
u
n

d
ra

is
in

g
 s

k
ill

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

. 

 

5
. 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 e
a

s
t 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 
c
re

a
ti
v
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

 i
n
to

 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 s
e

e
k
 t
o

 d
iv

e
rs

if
y
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 

fo
rc

e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

ta
k
e

 
u

p
 o

f 
a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

id
 i
n

te
rn

s
h

ip
s
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
. 

 

F
il

m
in

g
 o

f 
“
B

u
b

b
li

n
g

 U
n

d
e
r”

 

Page 115



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

3
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

w
o

: 
S

k
ill

s
, 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 F

u
tu

re
 T

a
le

n
t 

 
1
4

 
W

e
 w

il
l 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

u
p

s
, 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 a
n

d
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 f

u
lf

il
 t

h
e
ir

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

W
e
 w

il
l:

 

 

1
. 

a
im

 f
o

r 
e
v
e

ry
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 o
n
e

 v
is

it
 t

o
 

V
a

le
n

c
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 M
u
s
e
u
m

 o
r 

E
a

s
tb

u
ry

 M
a
n

o
r 

H
o
u

s
e

, 
o

n
e
 v

is
it
 t

o
 a

 l
o
c
a

l 
lib

ra
ry

, 
a

n
d

 o
n
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
, 
m

u
s
ic

 o
r 

d
a
n

c
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

 

2
. 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

, 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

  
p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

re
a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
s
e

c
to

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
c
h
o

o
l 

a
n

d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e
n

h
a
m

 C
o

lle
g
e

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

le
v
e

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 

 

3
. 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 t

h
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 a
rt

s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

y
 g

e
tt

in
g
 m

o
re

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 A

rt
s
 M

a
rk

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
o
re

 o
f 

o
u

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

rt
s
 A

w
a

rd
. 

 

4
. 

a
im

 t
o

 g
e

t 
1
0

0
%

 o
f 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 a
p

p
o

in
t 

a
 G

o
v
e

rn
o

r 
w

it
h

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u

re
. 

 

5
. 

w
id

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

o
u

r 
k
e

y
 c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
a

s
s
e

ts
, 

lik
e

 t
h
e

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
, 

w
it
h

 i
ts

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a

m
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
s
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 k

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

rt
s
 e

n
te

rt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

u
s
e

u
m

s
, 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 m

u
s
ic

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

s
o

 t
h

a
t 
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

rt
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 

 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 M

u
s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 

Page 116



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

4
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 T

h
re

e
: 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 

1
5

 
W

e
 w

il
l 

u
s
e
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 a
d

o
p

t 
h

e
a
lt

h
y
 l
if

e
 s

ty
le

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir

 w
e
ll
 b

e
in

g
. 

W
e
 w

il
l:

 

 

1
. 

s
ig

n
 p

o
s
t 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 t
o
 a

rt
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 t

re
a
tm

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
a

n
 ‘
a

rt
s
 o

n
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l’ 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

. 

 

 

2
. 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 d

a
n

c
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

 

3
. 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 r

e
c
ru

it
, 
tr

a
in

 a
n
d

 r
e
ta

in
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 i
n

 a
rt

s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

 

4
. 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
rt

s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

fo
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

 

5
. 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
rt

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

it
h

 p
re

-s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

th
e

ir
 m

o
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

in
k
in

g
, 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
it
e

ra
c
y
 s

k
ill

s
. 

 

“
S

p
o

rt
in

g
 L

e
g

e
n

d
s
”
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

c
u

lp
tu

re
 F

a
c
to

ry
 

Page 117



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

5
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 F

o
u

r:
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

1
6

 
W

e
 w

il
l 

u
s
e
 t

h
e
 a

rt
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 B

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

a
g

e
n

h
a
m

 a
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll
 o

f 
o

u
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

e
e
l 

a
 p

a
rt

 o
f.

 

W
e
 w

il
l:

 

 

1
. 

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 C

re
a
ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 P
la

c
e

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 g

e
t 

m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 u

n
d
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
. 

 

 

2
. 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 y

e
a

r 
ro

u
n

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
m

o
te

 m
u
tu

a
l 
u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p
e

c
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 

3
. 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
‘L

e
t’
s
 G

e
t 

R
e
a

d
in

g
’ 
F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
to

 h
e

lp
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
’ 
lit

e
ra

c
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
, 

p
ro

m
o

te
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 w
ri

ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
rs

. 

 

4
. 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
 f

o
u

r 
y
e

a
r 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

ro
u
n
d

 t
h
e

 c
e
n

te
n

a
ry

 o
f 
W

o
rl
d
 

W
a
r 

O
n
e

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
 t

h
is

 t
o

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h

e
 c

e
n
te

n
a

ry
 

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rl
d

 f
a
m

o
u

s
 B

e
c
o

n
tr

e
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
. 

 

 

5
. 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e

 A
g
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
, 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 a
rt

s
 f
o

r 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

 

S
h

o
w

ti
m

e
 F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

Page 118



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

6
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 F

iv
e
: 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 
1
7

 
W

e
 w

il
l 

c
re

a
te

 s
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

, 
c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
w

c
a
s
in

g
. 

W
e
 w

il
l:

 

 

1
. 

c
re

a
te

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 
a

rt
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h

a
m

 A
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 t
o

 o
v
e

rs
e
e

 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

lo
s
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
rt

s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 G

re
a

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

. 

 

 

2
. 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 b
y
 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 a

n
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a
te

 d
ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

n
u

a
lly

. 

 

3
. 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 f
u

tu
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

ro
a

d
w

a
y
 t

h
e
a

tr
e
 a

s
 t

h
e

 h
u

b
 f
o

r 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

rt
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
B

a
rk

in
g
 &

 
D

a
g
e

n
h

a
m

 C
o

lle
g
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
ir
 s

k
ill

s
, 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

. 

 

4
. 

p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
u
n

d
ra

is
in

g
 s

k
ill

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

rt
s
 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 D
a

g
e

n
h
a
m

 
a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
s
 a

 f
ilm

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fi
lm

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
. 

 

5
. 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
n

 a
u
d

it
 o

f 
a
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

 2
0

1
6

 t
o

 s
e
e

 w
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

M
o

lt
e
n

 F
e
s
ti

v
a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

Page 119



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

7
  

           

P
ro

d
u

ce
d

 b
y 

C
u

lt
u

re
 &

 S
p

o
rt

 D
iv

is
io

n
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
ar

ki
n

g
 &

 D
ag

en
h

am
  

Ju
ly

 2
01

3  

C
re

at
iv

e 
B

ar
ki

n
g

 a
n

d
 D

ag
en

h
am

  
F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 P

au
l H

og
an

, D
iv

is
io

na
l D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
ul

tu
re

 &
 S

po
rt

 
pa

ul
.h

og
an

@
lb

bd
.g

ov
.u

k   

Page 120



 

CABINET 
 

23 July 2013 
 

Title: Children’s Social Care Review 2012/13 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
 

Open Report  For Information 
 

Wards Affected:  All 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Report Author: Chris Martin, Divisional Director 
Complex Needs and Social Care 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 227 2233   
E-mail: Chris.Martin@lbbd.gov.uk 

Accountable Divisional Director: Chris Martin, Divisional Director Complex Needs and 
Social Care 
 

Accountable Corporate Director: Helen Jenner, Corporate Director, Children’s Services 
 

Summary:  
 
This report provides Cabinet with a review of significant operational service developments 
and inspections over the 2012/13 financial year within the Complex Needs and Social 
Care Division within Children’s Services.  The report provides a high level summary of 
action taken in response to local demand pressures and the Council’s growing children 
aged under 5 demographic.  
 
The report illustrates that at a time of fiscal challenge and increasing demand, the work of 
the Division continues to be strong including some areas of ‘best ever’ performance.  
 
Section 3 of the report provides details of the work of the Barking and Dagenham 
Safeguarding Children Board and areas of service improvement including the introduction 
of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).  The MASH will be based in Barking and 
will include the police service, health partners, housing, youth offending service and 
probation, education and social care and it is anticipated that it will be fully operational by 
the early autumn 2013. 
 
The report also provides more specific details regarding the Council’s looked after 
children’s population, including some key areas of performance which has resulted in a 
period of increased stability.  The report also discusses pressures and priorities for the 
future. 
 
In particular, the report shares with Councillors the increased focus upon a) the timeliness 
of the adoption process and b) the outcome of the Family Justice Review which requires a 
change of practice for both local government and the judiciary if challenging targets 
regarding the duration of proceedings are to be complied with. 
 
Corporate Parenting arrangements and improvements have been embedded and the 
report describes our current corporate parenting arrangements as well as the roles of 
elected members with assigned portfolio leads, within our corporate parenting 
responsibilities.   

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 121



 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Cabinet is asked to note: 
 
1. The service improvements contained within this review report and action taken in 

response to local demand pressures. 
 

2. The improvements to local corporate parenting arrangements and in particular the 
requirement of all officers and Councillors to continue to contribute to the Council’s 
statutory requirements, as a corporate parent, with regards to the Borough’s looked 
after children. 
 

Reason(s) 
 

• Cabinet is well aware of the demographic trend within the Borough and the impact of 
this trend in such universal settings as school provision and community health settings. 
An increasing population both numerically and in terms of diversity brings with it a 
challenge for our more specialist services, particularly at a time of increasing financial 
austerity.  
 

• Cabinet will be aware of the 2012 Safeguarding and Looked After Children Inspections 
findings and the Council’s requirement to strengthen corporate parenting arrangements 
throughout the Council. 

 

 
1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 The Complex Needs and Social Care Division comprises of three integrated 

service areas each with a Group Manager lead, namely:   
 

• Assessment and Care Management Service, 

• Looked After Children Service, and  

• Disabled Children and Special Educational Needs Service.  
 
1.2 The Division has operational responsibility for all Child Protection and Looked 

After Children services.  More recently, responsibility has included Special 
Educational Needs (SEN) services in response to the government’s Children & 
Families Bill and in particular the need for local authorities to plan and implement a 
more integrated assessment and support process for families who care for 
children with disabilities.  

 
1.3 The Division is committed to: 
 

• Earlier intervention and prevention through our own Prevention Service and 
via close operational relationships with colleagues providing targeted and 
universal support. 

• Reducing the numbers of children in care. 

• Minimising the duration of Child Protection Plans. 

• Strong means of engagement with young people and their families so that 
they can ‘shape’ future services. 

 
  

Page 122



 

2. Safeguarding 
 
 Demand 
 
2.1 Councillors are aware through previous briefings that our local social work service 

has experienced some very real increases in demand in recent months.  The 
OFSTED Safeguarding and Looked After Children Inspection of June 2012 
reported that caseloads were high but manageable.  However, increases in 
demand at the end of 2012 persisted into 2013 and this increase in activity 
required additional resources to ensure risks were more manageable. 

2.2 This increase in activity is best represented through some of the data.   
 

• January 2013. 
 The service received 823 contacts (as opposed to 555 in December 2012) which 

equates to a 48% increase.  Of these contacts, 238 progressed to a referral (116 
in December 2012) which corresponds to a 116% increase.  In January 33 
children were brought into care, compared to a monthly average of 16.  
 

• February 2013 
 This was also a busy month with 698 contacts, 223 of which progressed to 

referral.  In February 13 children were brought into care, 10 of which were as a 
consequence of Police Protection Orders.  
 

• March 2013  
March was a busier than average month with 680 contacts, 248 of which resulted 
in a referral being made.  In March, 15 children were brought into care.  The 
increase in demand has also been experienced in April.  A total of 661 contacts 
made with the service resulting in 136 referrals.  The slight reduction in referrals 
was obviously welcomed by the service, but this may have been as a 
consequence of the two week Easter Holiday break.  However, whilst referrals 
may have been down, there were 19 children received into care during the month, 
greater than the monthly average. 

 
2.3 This increase in referral activity has created pressures within our Triage and 

Assessment Service and has also impacted upon caseloads within our longer-term 
Care Management Teams.  The increase in activity and caseloads is also 
illustrated by the number of more detailed core assessments completed within the 
service (the majority within the Triage and Assessment Team).  At the end of 
March 2012, 568 core assessments had been undertaken.  By the end of March 
2013, some 1,144 core assessments had been completed, almost exactly double 
the number completed in the previous year.  This increase in activity is also 
illustrated in the number of Section 47 Child Protection investigations initiated 
across the year; 706 for the year 2012/13 compared to 506 for the previous year.  

 
2.4 The majority of referrals relate to younger children aged 0 – 5 and this reflects the 

rapid demographic change within the Borough as well as the pressures 
experienced in more universal settings such as schools, primary health care 
services etc.  There is also a change in the ethnicity of children requiring support 
which again is a reflection of the demographic change within the Borough.  In the 
main, the predominant child protection issues the service is currently managing 
relate to the impact upon children where domestic violence is a factor within the 

Page 123



 

household and where there are concerns of physical abuse linked to chastisement 
and the provision of boundaries and ‘consequences’ for children. 

 
2.5. Consequently the service has continued to experience high demand and this 

increase in activity appears to be more of a trend than a ‘blip’.  Additional 
resources have been agreed to assist with the increase in workload within the 
Assessment and Care Management teams and progress has been monitored via 
our ‘Caseloads Action Plan’, which is reviewed by a senior management group on 
a fortnightly basis.  This has greatly assisted the Assessment and Care 
Management Teams and caseloads are now more manageable and in the majority 
below our target maximum of 20 cases per social worker.  However, demand has 
not abated within the Triage and Assessment Service and managers will continue 
to monitor closely the demand within this crucial service area. 

 
2.6 The high demand for social work within the Division has impacted upon the ability 

to retain staff and the service has rapidly moved from a position of relatively low 
numbers of locum staff to a large increase to cover vacant posts as well as those 
recently created to manage high demand.  We have spent a great deal of time 
working with  Adecco, the Council’s agency and temporary staff recruitment 
contractor, to raise the profile of the organisation and to ensure a proactive 
approach to locum recruitment.  Team managers meet with Adecco on a regular 
basis to ensure prompt recruitment.  However, this has been a challenge and it 
continues to be difficult to recruit a) quality staff and b) staff sufficiently 
experienced to work within the Borough’s current pressures.  Direct recruitment 
has continued to be difficult and the Borough has experienced a change in the 
often fluctuating ‘social work market’ within London.  Approximately a year ago the 
Borough was able to recruit experienced and quality staff, but current recruitment 
is more difficult and whilst there is a pool of newly qualified staff there are obvious 
limitations as to how many such social workers it is sensible to recruit within any 
service, especially a service such as in Barking and Dagenham where we are 
experiencing unprecedented levels of demand.  A schedule of recruitment drives 
have been planned across the year with a view to the recruitment of a) valued 
locum staff currently working within the division and b) experienced staff to assist 
with the current pressures. 

 
3. Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 
 

3.1 Over the past year plans have been put in place for our own local multi agency 
safeguarding hub (MASH).  In future the MASH will greatly enhance our abilities to 
safeguard the welfare of children in the Borough in a timely fashion, based upon a 
multi agency approach.  The approach has been particularly well regarded in 
Devon (where the first MASH was implemented) and has been strongly endorsed 
by OFSTED and ‘The Munro Review of Child Protection’.  The development of a 
local MASH has been encouraged across London and the service has contributed 
to the London-wide steering group charged with MASH implementation across the 
capital.  

 
3.2  Essentially the MASH will consider all concerns raised by partner agencies on a 

multi agency basis.  Referrals will be received by the MASH and existing 
information from each agency will be collated to better inform more timely decision 
making.  This approach will ensure that:- 

 

Page 124



 

• Low level repeat concerns can be identified 

• Concerns will not be ‘masked’ by volume or bureaucratic processes between 
agencies 

• Enable effective interventions at the earliest opportunity 

• One route in, and one decision making process, ensures a consistency and 
standardised approach to risk assessment 

 
3.3 The creation of the MASH ensures that interventions can be timely via the         

application of information sharing agreements. 

 

3.4 The MASH will be located at Roycraft House, Barking, and will include the police 
service, health partners, housing, youth offending service and probation, education 
and social care colleagues who are all key partners in the development of the 
MASH and have all contributed to the multi agency steering group in preparation 
for implementation.  With the high levels of domestic violence experienced within 
the Borough we are also considering how best such specialist knowledge could 
also be incorporated within the final MASH model. 

 
3.5  With the physical premises at Roycraft House now completed partners have 

begun to identify staff from their agencies to operate from the MASH and these 
colleagues will join the MASH incrementally over the course of the summer with a 
view to the MASH being fully operational by the early autumn.   

 
3.6 A project plan and timeline is in place to ensure structure and ‘pace’ around the 

delivery of the local MASH and the multi-agency steering group will continue to 
meet and work upon the identified work-streams and will also provide initial 
governance for the MASH.  A governance structure is being put into place to 
ensure that the MASH reports into the Barking and Dagenham Local Safeguarding 
Children Board.  

 
4. Care Proceedings Pilot 
 
4.1 The increase in social work activity has also resulted in an increase in the number 

of children for whom the local authority is seeking care orders to secure their 
longer-term safety and stability.  At any one time Barking and Dagenham has 
approximately 90 cases within proceedings and many of these cases involve large 
sibling groups.  Consequently the amount of social work time consumed by a) 
preparing for and b) attending Court is considerable, especially in a local authority 
such as ours with an increasing under 5’s demographic.  Current demand 
pressures have coincided with the conclusions of the Family Justice Review and a 
renewed maximum timetable of 26 weeks for the completion of all care 
proceedings.  Consequently the Council has agreed to participate in a sub regional 
partnership of the 5 North East London local authorities linked to Stratford Family 
Proceedings Court aimed at supporting this transformation of the current process.  

 
4.2 The Care Proceedings Pilot aims to promote good decision making in the Court 

and reduce unnecessary delay for children undergoing care proceedings.  
Evidence from the Family Justice Review and from local analysis indicates that 
care and supervision cases are taking longer to conclude.  The search for certainty 
and the recognition of the enormity of the decision being made in care 
proceedings has led to a position where a wealth of evidence is heard in Court. In 
some cases however, there has been a lack of urgency and bureaucratic reasons 

Page 125



 

for delay.  Routine cases can take almost a year to be concluded and such delay 
can impact negatively on children, as well as being financially costly for all parties. 

 
4.3 Working together with the judiciary, the Court services, (CAFCASS) and other key 

stakeholders, the Tri-borough local authorities (Hammersmith and Fulham, 
Kensington and Chelsea, and Westminster) started a pilot project whose aim was 
to minimise unnecessary delay.  The Care Proceedings Pilot commenced on 
1April 2012 for an initial 12 month period, during which approximately 100 cases 
would have been heard.  An early indication from the Tri Borough pilot has been 
that a number of significant factors need to be in place to maximise the impact of 
the project: 

 

• The identification of a Court Case Manager, working directly with social 
workers, managers and the court itself. The aim of this post is to considerably 
improve the quality of social work assessments and statements presented to 
court as well practical, ‘trouble shooting’ assistance in relation to the 
proceedings timetable.  

• Both the Inner London Family Proceedings Court and the Principal Registry of 
the Family Division have begun to work to provide judicial continuity in as many 
cases as possible.  Magistrates and Judges have discussed the pilot and will be 
working to implement tighter case management of timescales for the child from 
the Court. Judicial consistency will obviously have beneficial impact upon 
timescales 

• CAFCASS have made a commitment to provide timely and proportionate 
involvement from Guardians with cases being allocated from the first hearing. 

• The Courts have agreed to a ‘greater pragmatism’ around the number and 
length of expert witness reports and will apply greater to significance to the 
reports provided by the social workers.  Greater significance will also be placed 
upon the evidence provided during the first hearing and consequently the need 
for high quality evidence to be provided by the social worker, supported by the 
Court Case Manager, will be crucial.    

• The pilot will create a feedback and learning loop throughout the life of the pilot, 
by monitoring and tracking cases and examining process, costs and outcomes 
for children.  We will hold quarterly post case reviews in which all stakeholders 
will engage in a systems analysis and critical reflection about cases which have 
completed proceedings. 

 
4.4 The project team and Barking and Dagenham officers will evaluate the success of 

the pilot in meeting the objectives and provide a cost benefit analysis which will be 
summarised in a final report at the end of the pilot period.  It is likely that we will 
have a good indication by the end of 2013 about how effective the pilot has been 
in reducing unnecessary delay and therefore sustainability planning will take place 
at that time. 

 
4.5 In Barking and Dagenham officers have identified a manager within the Council to 

operate as the Court Case Manager and LBBD is ahead of our neighbouring 
boroughs in this respect.  Whilst it is ‘early days’ in terms of the project itself we 
are already seeing a positive impact being made with the appointment of our own 
social work operational manager in this post.   

 
  

Page 126



 

5. Barking and Dagenham Safeguarding Board 
 
5.1 The Barking and Dagenham Safeguarding Board produced its 7th Annual Report 

covering activity for the year 2012/13.  The report discusses the outcomes of the 
Safeguarding and Looked After Children inspection of June 2012 and the 
subsequent judgements, ‘good’ for safeguarding and ‘adequate’ for children in 
care.  The report also discusses the changing strategic landscape within the 
Council and the implementation of the Boroughs Health and Wellbeing Board and 
its connection to the Local Safeguarding Board’s responsibility to provide strategic 
leadership for the safeguarding of children in the Borough. In particular, the 
Safeguarding Board report discusses the changes introduced with the passing of 
the Health & Social Care Bill and the role of the local Clinical Commissioning 
Group, commissioning local health services for LBBD children.  The local Clinical 
Commissioning Group as well as the National Commissioning Board (NHS 
London) are both new partners to the Barking and Dagenham Safeguarding 
Board. 

 
5.2 Child protection guidance has been issued in the form of ‘Working Together 2013’ 

and the Safeguarding Board has a taken a lead role in its implementation.  The 
Authority’s ‘Quality Assurance Strategy’ has recognised the requirement to 
scrutinise this area of activity (the quality of local ‘early help’ services will form part 
of future Ofsted inspections) and will form part of the Safeguarding Board’s remit 
in future as the ‘child’s journey’ through the local child protection system will be an 
increasingly significant area of future inspection regimes. 

 
5.3 The Safeguarding Board’s Annual Report continues to comment on the pressures 

experienced by all services as a consequence of the significant demographic 
growth in the children under 5 population, an issue which is also compounded by 
national welfare reforms.  The national profile of the sexual exploitation of children 
missing / missing from care remains a particular priority for the Board and is an 
issue of heightened vigilance for all partners. 

 
5.4 Priorities for 2013/14 include:- 
 

• Embedding the guidance within ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children 
2013’ 

 

• The local roll-out of an e-common assessment framework (E-CAF) tool 
 

• Progressing the ‘Troubled Families’ agenda 
 

• Embedding the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 
 

• Strengthening joint working between Adult and Children’s Services 
 

•  Embed Quality Assurance through learning and development from the ‘front 
line’ services through to the Barking and Dagenham Safeguarding Board.   
 

5.5 The Board’s full report can be accessed via the link http://www.bardag-
lscb.co.uk/professionals/Documents/BDSCB%20Annual%20Report%202012-
2013%20FINAL.pdf. 

 

Page 127



 

 
6. Children in Care Numbers 
 
6.1 The number of children in care fluctuated over the past 12 months, peaking at 438 

August 2012, but this lower than last year’s peak of 442 which occurred twice over 
the course of 2011/12.  The end of year figure indicated a slight reduction in 
numbers to 420, a net decrease of 7 compared to the end of year figure of 427 in 
March 2012.  

 

2011/2012 2012/2013 

Number of Children In Care 427 420 

Number in Residential Care 29 22 

Number in LBBD Foster Care 242 248 

:of which in Borough 110 113 

:of which out of Borough 132 135 

Number in Agency Foster Care 87 81 

:of which in Borough 15 10 

:of which out Borough 72 71 

% of all CIC in Foster Care Placements 81.0% 81.7% 

Number of Private Fostering Arrangements 10 7 

 
6.2 The profile across the year is illustrated in the diagram below.  Growth in CiC 

numbers peak in August 2012 and then steadily falls, rising sharply in January 
2013, which corresponds with a period of peak demand. 

 

 
 
6.3 This indicates strong and improving performance across several areas of the 

service, namely: 
 

• Improved gate keeping of services and care provision and better 'management 
grip’ of process. 

 

405

410

415

420

425

430

435

440

Number of Children In Care by month 

during 2012.13

Page 128



 

• The introduction of our Access to Resources Team and the commissioning of a 
range of ‘edge of care’ options to prevent care episodes and also placement 
breakdown. 

 

• A more flexible use of our highly skilled foster carers to provide care but to also 
assist and support families where appropriate. 

 

• The alignment of our in-house Prevention Service alongside the Access to 
Resources Team.  This has meant that ‘in-house’ early intervention and 
prevention options can be quickly mobilised to provide support and solutions to 
families via the Crisis Intervention, Restorative Justice and Family Group 
Conferencing specialists available within the team. 

 

• A change of culture amongst the social worker workforce, rather than seeking 
‘placements’ the Access to Resources Team is now more frequently 
approached by practitioners with a range of family needs and strengths upon 
which a prevention package can be built.  This is a much improved position 
from ‘placements’ being requested.  

 
6.4 It is worth mentioning that this performance needs to be considered in a context of 

a rapidly increasing local demographic, experienced as a pressure in community 
health settings and primary school places.  Consequently there has also been an 
increase in demand upon social care services within the Borough but this demand 
has been managed and stabilised (in terms of care provision) through the 
implementation of the above initiatives. 

 
7. CiC Profile 
 
7.1 The profile of the CiC population remained reasonably static.  A 2% increase in 

children under 10 years old in care, a 2% reduction in 10 years+ when compared 
to 2011/12.  Although slight this shift is illustrative of the local demographic 
position and also reflects our robust stance and interventions regarding the 
safeguarding of young vulnerable children within the Borough.   

 
7.2 By ethnicity, compared to March 2012, populations remained reasonably stable 

other than a 4% reduction in white UK children being cared for by the Council. We 
have also noticed the beginnings of what we may see as a continuing trend of 
Eastern European families and particularly Lithuanian families, featuring in our 
care statistics. 

 
7.3 Operational pressures have included an increase in young Black African children 

entering care via Police Protection Orders.  The service continues to work closely 
with the Police Service regarding this issue (both ‘uniform’ and Child Abuse 
Investigation Team elements of the Metropolitan Police).  A successful bid was 
also achieved for ‘invest to save funds’ to resource a strategy to more pro-actively 
address this pressure in the Borough.  

 
7.4 The approach has 3 elements; 

 

• Engage with and commission a specialist provider to work proactively with 
families whose children have been subject to police powers of protection and to 

Page 129



 

provide, through an ‘educative process’ alternative methods to provide 
boundaries and consequences for the children. 
 

• Provide a training programme to targeted and identified universal providers so 
as to provide such interventions via more pro-active early intervention work 

 

• To work closely with the local relevant faith and community groups and to 
provide support on a more ‘anticipatory’ basis and pro-actively prevent incidents 
where physical chastisement has been over used by families. 

 
7.5 Children experiencing long standing chronic neglect and requiring care 

proceedings and subsequent placements as a consequence of escalation, still 
feature within our care population.  However, an awareness of this factor has 
contributed to a greater expectation that universal and targeted partners will 
support such families through the early planning and mobilisation of help and 
support through the CAF and Family CAF process. 

 
7.6 The performance of the Barking and Dagenham Fostering Service has made a 

huge contribution to some key areas of performance with regards to our looked 
after children population.  At March 2013 the service had recruited 160 fostering 
households, compared to 139 in March 2012.  Those 160 households were able to 
offer 266 placements to Barking and Dagenham children, compared to 225 at 
March 2012.  This is a net increase of 41 placements in the year, far in excess of 
the team target of a net increase of 20 carers for the year.  The team’s 
performance is in direct contrast to that of neighbouring boroughs who continue to 
struggle to recruit new, quality carers. 

 
8. Placement type 
 
8.1 2012/13 showed a growth overall in use of foster care. 329 young people in care 

were cared for within in foster care placements but an increasing number of these 
placements have been with the Borough’s foster carers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

200

210

220

230

240

250

260

270

Number of in house placements by month 

during 2012.13

Page 130



 

 

  
 
8.2 Use of Independent Fostering Agency (IFA) placements reduced slightly also over 

the year, 81 placements at March 2013 compared to 87 in March 2012.  IFA 
placements frequently come with a cost premium so this reduction in usage has 
also had a positive impact upon the placements budget.  The fostering team are 
also recruiting carers who have previously fostered for such IFA’s.  With the 
availability of local government finance contracting and children’s placements 
being historically a high and volatile area of spend for any council, placing 
authorities have begun to reduce their usage of high cost IFA placements.  This 
has resulted in carers, who have not received placements from their IFA’s, 
approaching the Borough to become local authority foster carers.  Here again this 
is a phenomena not experienced by our neighbouring authorities and is connected 
to the positive high profile of the team.   

 

  
 

125

130

135

140

145

150

155

160

165

Number of in-house foster carers by month 

during 2012.13

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Number of children placed with Agency 

Foster Carers by month during 2012.13

Page 131



 

8.3 The Barking and Dagenham Pitstop Project (the LBBD specialist Multi-dimensional 
Treatment Foster Care (MTFC) scheme) at end of year cared for 9 young people.  
All these young people would require high cost residential placements if the 
Pitstop scheme where not be available and consequently the team continue to 
provide a high quality and highly valued service.  It has been a particularly 
successful year for the team.  Over the past few months a number of children have 
completed the programme with their carers.  Ordinarily at this point young people 
would then move on to an alternative family and more permanent long-term care 
arrangement. However, this year has seen a cohort of children for whom their 
attachments to their carers are so strong that all parties have made the decision to 
continue their existing placements.  This is a hugely significant decision for these 
children and is a true measure of the success of the programme; the Pitstop 
carers in question have turned around the lives of these most troubled and 
damaged children and have prevented a potential pathway into institutional care, 
with all the associated poor outcomes young people subsequently experience.  
This move presents a challenge to the project as new ‘replacement’ carers need to 
be identified and trained, but it is of course a significant success story.  

 
8.4 Pitstop also celebrated its accreditation this year via the national MTFC support 

team and the university research team based in Oregon USA.  This is a hugely 
significant achievement for the team.  Not only are they the first accredited 
programme for 7 to 11 year olds nationally, they are the first in Europe.  The 
service is immensely proud of the team, their hard work and their commitment to 
young people and we can truly say that in Barking and Dagenham we have 
services that are amongst the best in Europe.  The team’s success can also be 
gauged by the number of enquiries received from other local authorities regarding 
placement availability.  Until more recently such a move has not been possible but 
at time of fiscal reduction the team are considering whether financial sustainability 
can be secured through the ‘trading’ of possibly two Pitstop placements, 
established specifically to ‘sell’. 

 
8.5 Performance regarding the approval and availability of adopters also showed 

increased performance over the year.  In total 39 adopters were approved in 
2011/12, compared to 26 in 2010/11.  

 
8.6 Usage of residential care also decreased over the year from 37 high cost 

placements to 29 at March 2012.  These high cost placements continue to be 
monitored on a monthly basis with Children’s Services Lead Member and the chair 
of the Members Corporate Parenting Group.  

 
8.7 The table below offers some information regarding placement proximity to the 

Borough.  Whilst an increasing percentage of CiC are cared for by Borough carers, 
not all foster families reside within the Borough itself.  This is largely an issue of 
housing stock; the Borough has a very large ‘council housing stock’ which does 
not lend itself to surplus bedrooms and sufficient space in general to be available 
to make fostering an option for prospective families, hence the need to recruit 
carers from beyond the borough boundaries.  However, as the table illustrates, 
‘out of borough placements’ are in the main with neighbouring boroughs or 
authorities within a short distance of B&D itself, ensuring that contact with 
professionals is easily maintained and that some services provided within the 
Borough are still accessed by young people who do not strictly reside with us.  Our 
Participation and Engagement Team is a strong example of such work in action, 

Page 132



 

working hard to maintain contact and engagement with young people wherever 
their placement settings may be.  The Service is particularly aware of the 
pressures experienced by schools in Kent due to the large numbers of CiC placed 
in the county by London authorities in particular. Whilst our numbers of CiC placed 
in Kent are relatively low we have chosen to recruit a dedicated Advisory Teacher 
for such young people and for this teacher to be based in Kent and work closely 
with the schools providing education for LBBD CiC placed in the county. 

 

Local Authority No. of YP's Placed 

LBBD 150 

Havering 93 

Redbridge 53 

Essex 29 

Kent 19 

Placed for Adoption 13 

Thurrock 11 

South end on Sea 7 

Tower Hamlets 5 

Birmingham 4 

Waltham Forest 4 

Bromley 3 

Hampshire 3 

Medway 3 

Newham 3 

Surrey 3 

Enfield 2 

Hammersmith and Fulham 2 

Lewisham 2 

Suffolk 2 

Croydon 1 

East Sussex 1 

Hackney 1 

Haringey 1 

Liverpool 1 

North Lincolnshire 1 

Norfolk 1 

West Sussex 1 

Wrexham (Wales) 1 
Total 420 

 
9. Adoption Performance 
 

9.1 Previous reports to elected members have shared the strong performance of the 
Barking and Dagenham adoption team and in particular the inspection findings of 
2012 which judged the service to be ‘good’ overall and ‘outstanding’ for 
safeguarding.  Councillors will also be aware that the coalition government have 
raised the profile of adoption services nationally and have considered the 
performance of both local authority and independent adoption agencies. 

 
9.2 In bringing ‘rigour’ to the performance of adoption agencies the Department for 

Education have, on a 6 monthly basis, published ‘adoption scorecards’ as a 

Page 133



 

measure of each local authority’s adoption performance.  The scorecards measure 
a) the average time taken between a child entering care and moving into its 
adoptive family and b) the average time taken from when the authority receives a 
Court Order agreeing to a child being adopted and the child is matched with an 
appropriate adopter.  At present Barking and Dagenham’s performance is outside 
of the target timescale for the former performance measure but within the target 
for the latter. 

 
9.3 There are several issues to consider here which contribute to performance. 
 
9.3.1 Barking and Dagenham has at any one time approximately 85 to 90 cases within 

the Court arena and the average length of proceedings is approximately 50 weeks.  
The reasons for this are varied (social work caseloads and case complexity, the 
insistence of a range of expert witness statements required by the courts, the 
exploration of extended family late in proceedings etc) but with the implementation 
of the Family Justice Review, all proceedings are subject to the target of 26 weeks 
for completion.  This is a target for all parties including the Courts.  Greater 
compliance will thus contribute to improved adoption timescale performance and 
we envisage the role of our Court Case Manager (as discussed above) to be 
highly influential in the improvement in this performance area.   

 
9.3.2 The children for whom adoption is the preferred permanency plan are increasingly 

complex in nature within Barking & Dagenham.   The Borough also has a higher 
number of sibling groups for whom we are seeking adopters.  These added 
intricacies make for challenging family finding and matching.  However, our 
adoption ‘breakdown rate’ is very low, especially when compared to comparator 
boroughs which suggest that the team takes the time to make the right decisions 
for children.  Consequently this child centred approach may at times take the 
service performance outside that which is suggested by the Department for 
Education. 
 

9.4 To assist with these challenges the Department for Education has provided all 
local authorities with financial assistance in the form of a one year grant, an 
amount of which is specifically ring-fenced to improve ‘adopter recruitment 
performance’.  The Barking and Dagenham Adoption Service have discussed a 
range of actions to target improved adopter recruitment. 

 
9.5 The service shall also be exploring the use of this grant to provide a ‘diagnostic’; 

essentially a review completed by an external agency (such the British Agency for 
Adoption and Fostering – BAAF) to provide an objective view of current practices 
within the adoption service and some analysis and recommendations as to how 
the service can be improved.     

  
10. Members Corporate Parenting Board (MCPB) 
 

10.1 The Borough’s corporate parenting arrangements were identified in the 
Safeguarding and Looked After Children’s inspection of June 2012 as an area that 
needed strengthening and whilst there was recognition within the inspection of 
action taken, the impact of the MCPB was still to be seen. 

 

Page 134



 

10.2 Following on from a workshop in April 2012, the panel itself was revised, new 
Terms of Reference agreed and the Corporate Parenting Strategy and Action Plan 
were reviewed and refreshed. 

 
10.3 Since April of last year the panel has met regularly on a bi-monthly basis and has 

been chaired by Councillor Letchford, who is also the  Chair of the Children’s’ 
Services Select Committee.  Councillor White, Portfolio Holder for Children’s 
Services, has also attended regularly as have partners from health, social care, 
leisure services, education and the corporate management team.  The Council’s 
Rights and Participation Team have continued to attend and support the 
Borough’s Children in Care Council (Skittlz) at the MCPB meetings. 

 
10.4 The meetings themselves have focussed on a range of standard agenda items 

(including health, education and social care performance) as well as ‘thematic’ 
discussions which have been generated by young people themselves.  In 
particular, the MCPB has focussed upon young people in care’s ability to access 
leisure facilities (both within and beyond the Borough ) and the connection to the 
range of associated potential health benefits, as well as the performance of our 
Leaving Care Service and their ability to support young care leavers accessing 
suitable education, employment or training options.  

 
10.5 The Participation Champions group has also continued to meet on a bi-monthly 

basis as a sub group of the Corporate Parenting Group.  This group comprises of 
young people and frontline social work practitioners and has been focussed 
around simple, pragmatic changes to practice aimed at making improvements to 
looked after children’s lives.  The group has discussed simple ways for foster 
carers to compile life story books with young people, implemented a range of ways 
that young people can contribute to their looked after reviews and has shared with 
young people the responsibilities foster carers now have through ‘delegated 
authority’.  The Participations Champions group itself continues to be a vibrant and 
stimulating sub group of the Corporate Parenting Board and is valued by young 
people and professionals alike. 

 
10.6 The Children in Care Outcomes group has also continued to meet on a quarterly 

basis to provide rigorous, cross agency challenge with regards to various areas of 
performance linked to improving outcomes for looked after children.  The group is 
data and target driven and provides an opportunity for all partners to debate 
performance as well as agree strategies to tackle areas of improvement.  

 
11. Social Care Transformation Programme   
 

11.1 As discussed above, the Children’s Complex Needs and Social Care Division have 
been working with a range of challenges to service provision over the past 12 
months.  These challenges have presented in a range of forms; a series of 
external inspections conducted over the past 18 months; legislative and policy 
change at a national and local level; a challenging financial landscape set in stark 
contrast to a child population growing rapidly in both number and complexity of 
need.  Consequently the Directorate Management Team has begun to consider 
how we need to transform current service deliver in order to maintain a high quality 
and supportive service to the most vulnerable children within the Borough.  The 
programme is ambitious but necessary as we believe current operational models 

Page 135



 

are not sustainable at a time of increasing demand and complexity against 
financial contraction. 

 
11.2 A number of strands of work have been developed as a result.  As these work 

streams have commenced it has become apparent that careful coordination is 
required to ensure that all planned, and ongoing, strands of work take sufficient 
heed of potentially dependent and impacting parallel developments.  

 
11.3 To this end it was agreed to implement formal programme management 

arrangements.  These arrangements are now under the banner of the Children’s 
Social Care Transformation (CSCT) Programme. 

 
11.3.1 The purpose of this programme is to deliver the desired objectives of the CSCT 

Programme.  In broad terms, this is the development and implementation of an 
operating model for Children’s Social Care (CSC) which is both financially 
sustainable and provides the best possible outcomes for the most vulnerable 
children, young people and their families in Barking and Dagenham.  

 
11.3.2. The programme will build on the ‘business as usual’ improvements that have 

already been made by the service, and will have a focus on responding to the 
more immediate concerns in the short-term, with medium to long-term strands of 
work focussing on ensuring future sustainability.  

 
11.3.3 The programme will be adopting a ‘whole system’ approach in the belief that all 

services provided to families are inextricably linked and therefore interdependent. 
The project will also factor in consultation and engagement points with staff, 
partners and families. 

 
11.4 The programme has a number of objectives with associated Project Groups, all of 

whom have project groups and leads.  The objectives are:- 
 

• Implement the changes required by the new Working Together to Safeguard 
Children guidance. 
 

• Address the pressures in the Assessments and Care management Teams. 
 

• Ensure services at Tier 2 are considered in light of changes at Tier 3, to ensure 
alignment and the smooth transition between the two. 

 

• Ensure that the Assessment and Care Management Services are redesigned 
to deliver service objectives whilst ensuring future sustainability. 
 

• Implementation of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 
 

• Implementation and / or redesign of key IT systems to support operational 
service delivery. 
 

• Ensure that Looked After Children services are redesigned to deliver service 
objectives whilst ensuring future sustainability.  

 
11.5 A Programme manager has been assigned to facilitate and support the progress 

of this transformation programme and governance will be provided via programme 

Page 136



 

board comprising of the divisional management team.  The Programme Board will 
be chaired by the Programme Sponsor, the Children’s Services Corporate 
Director.  The Divisional Director for Complex Needs and Social Care will operate 
as Project Lead for this programme. 

 
12. Consultation 
 
12.1 This report has been widely circulated and comments where received have been 

included. 
 
13. Financial Implications 
 

Compiled by Dawn Calvert, Finance Group Manager 
 
13.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.   
 
13.2 The Social Care and Complex Needs budget for 2013/14 is £29.291m.  As at May 

2013 the service is reporting a balanced budget for 2013/14.  However, this 
position is masking £4m of management actions, a number of which are one-off 
and will not continue into 2014/15.   

 
13.3 The change from LACSEG (Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant) to 

Education Support Grant, together with the changes to the funding of statutory 
services to two year olds from General Fund to the Dedicated Schools Grant have 
released £2.7m of ongoing funding to invest in social care demand pressures.  
Grant income of £604,000 is available in 2013/14 to manage pressures but, at 
present, there is no indication this will continue into 2014/15.   

 
13.4 The Targeted Support Division is forecasting an under spend in 2013/14 of 

£1.060m but this is largely as a result of the early achievement of approved 
savings for 2014/15 which means this is unlikely to continue into 2014/15.  Finally, 
a drawdown of £0.754m will be required from the Children’s Services Reserve to 
achieve a balanced budget position for 2013/14. 

 
14. Legal Implications  
 

Compiled by: Lindsey Marks, Principal Solicitor 
 
14.1 The responsibility of corporate parenting applies to the Local Authority as a whole 

and not just the departments directly responsible delivering services to children 
and young persons. 

 
14.2 The Children Act 2004 and statutory guidance specifies that the Cabinet Member 

for Children Services has the lead political role in respect of looked after children 
and young people contributing to and being satisfied that the Local Authority has 
high standards of corporate parenting.  

 
14.3 Since the 1 September 2012 the Adoption Panel no longer makes 

recommendations to the Agency Denison Maker as to whether or not a child 
should be placed for adoption save in the case of a relinquished baby.  

 
  

Page 137



 

15. Other Implications 
 
15.1 Staffing Issues - There are no specific staffing issues contained within this report.  

However, increased demand pressures in the past six months have required the 
agreement of additional staffing to manage this demand.  Whilst this additional 
support has greatly assisted, demand has not abated.  Further divisional and 
directorate consideration needs to be given to the level of future staffing as a 
consequence of the Social Care Transformation programme as discussed above. 

  
15.2 Customer Impact - The report highlights the areas of service improvement, as 

well as the areas where performance continues to be addressed.  Children and 
their families will continue to experience a positive response to their social care 
needs.  In particular the strengthened role of the Members Corporate Parenting 
Board has provided more rigorous oversight and scrutiny with regards to the 
outcomes for the Borough’s looked after children population. 

  
15.3 Safeguarding Children - The report also highlights the strength of the local 

safeguarding children board and the contribution of the partnership to the 
safeguarding of local children.  Services are determined to continually improve but 
such aspirations are an ever increasing challenge within a local context of growing 
demand and fiscal austerity. 

  
15.4 Crime and Disorder Issues - The MASH element includes Police and Probation 

colleagues and is a route whereby early identification of sexual exploitation, gang 
membership and other crime and disorder issues may be identified and is 
therefore seen as a positive support process for reducing crime and disorder. 

 
 The new LASPO legal arrangements for young people on remand will have an 

impact on Children’s Social Care capacity, and whilst this is funded from central 
government, this is a new development and therefore may need a review within 
the next year or so in order to measure the capacity impact. 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report 
 

• Children & Families Bill, Department for Education, June 2013 

• Family Justice Review, Department for Education, November 2011 

• Health & Social Care Bill, Department of Health, January 2011. 

• ‘Working Together to safeguard Children, Department for Education, April 2013’,  
 
 
List of Appendices: None 
 

Page 138



CABINET 
 

23 July 2013 
 

Title: Community Safety Partnership Annual Report 2012-13 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Crime, Justice and Communities 

 
Open Report For Information 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Report Author:  
Glynis Rogers, Divisional Director of Community 
Safety and Public Protection 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2827 
E-mail: glynis.rogers@lbbd.gov.uk 
  

Accountable Divisional Director: Glynis Rogers, Divisional Director of Community 
Safety and Public Protection 
 

Accountable Director: Anne Bristow, Corporate Director of Adult and Community 
Services 
 

Summary 
 
The attached report is the final draft of the Barking and Dagenham Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) End of Year Report 2012-13, which is intended for reference by 
residents. This report outlines the work done across the CSP to tackle crime and disorder 
in the Borough. The Annual Report 2012-13 sets out the achievements of the CSP against 
its strategic priorities: 
 

(a) Anti-Social Behaviour 
(b) Serious Youth Violence 
(c) Serious Acquisitive Crime 
(d) Substance Misuse 

 
This report provides, for information, a broad overview of performance against these 
objectives and sets out the priorities moving forward into 2013-2014.  
 

Recommendation 
 
Cabinet is recommended to note the Barking and Dagenham Community Safety 
Partnership Annual Report 2012-13. 
 

Reason 
 
Barking and Dagenham Council committed in its Community Strategy to ‘reducing crime 
and the fear of crime.’ The End of Year Report 2012-13 outlines for residents the 
Partnership’s work to reduce crime, and by doing so combats fear of crime. 
 

 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 139



1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) were set up as statutory bodies under 

Sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 
 

1.2 The Council, Police, NHS, Fire Brigade, and Probation Service, together with 
voluntary and community sector organisations, work together to develop and 
implement strategies to protect the local community from crime and to help people 
feel safe. They co-ordinate local approaches to deal with issues including anti-social 
behaviour, drug or alcohol misuse, and re-offending. 
 

1.3 The Partnership meets regularly to review progress against the targets it sets at the 
beginning of the year. 
 

1.4 It is good practice for CSPs to give a short summary to the community of the work 
they have carried out to reduce crime and disorder. 
 

1.5 In 2012-13, the Barking and Dagenham CSP aimed to create: 
 

‘A safer borough where the problems of antisocial behaviour have been 
tackled and all young people have a positive role to play in the 
community.’ 

 
2. CSP Priorities: Performance Outcomes 2012-13 

 
2.1 The CSP Annual Report 2012-13 details the strategic priorities and outlines progress 

in each area. 
 

2.2 The CSP’s four priorities for work in 2012-13 were: 
(a) Anti-Social Behaviour 
(b) Serious Youth Violence 
(c) Serious Acquisitive Crime 
(d) Substance Misuse 

 
2.3 The report sets out progress against its priorities.  Members are asked to note that at 

the end of 2012-13: 
 

(a) Anti-Social Behaviour 
The number of calls to the Council’s ASB Team fell by 18.3%. 
 

(b) Serious Youth Violence 
Serious youth violence fell by 39%, and the number of First Time Entrants 
to the Youth Justice System fell by 53.8%. The total number of incidents of 
violence with injury has fallen by 14%. 
 

(c) Serious Acquisitive Crime 
Theft of motor vehicles has decreased by 27%, and personal robbery has 
fallen by 34%. Residential burglary, however, has increased by 7%, and 
continues to be an area that requires focussed work. 
 

(d) Drugs and Alcohol 
The number of people successfully completing a Drugs Rehabilitation 

Page 140



Requirement rose from 63% in the previous year to 71%, and the number of 
people successfully completing an Alcohol Treatment Requirement has 
risen from 18 to 20 people. The number of alcohol-attributable recorded 
crimes per 1,000 population has fallen from 13.9 to 12.98.  

 
Total recorded crime decreased by 8.4% (a greater reduction than the London 
average decrease of 5%). 
 

2.4 These four priorities remain the focus areas for 2013-14. The Community Safety 
Partnership will produce a similar report in May 2014 to outline the achievements in 
the current financial year.  
 

2.5 The Community Safety Partnership will produce a similar report in 2014 to outline the 
achievements in the current year. 
 

3. Options Appraisal  
 
3.1 The Annual Report is before Cabinet for information and for any comments Cabinet 

may wish to make. This report is intended for use by the community. 
 

4. Consultation  
 
4.1 The report has been taken to the CSP in the meeting on 11 June 2013.  The Board 

agreed pages one to five and eight, and requested that additional pages 
highlighting the work of the Voluntary Sector be included.  These have been added 
at pages six and seven. 

 
5. Financial Implications 

 
Completed by:  Dawn Calvert, Group Manager, Adults’ & Children’s Finance 
 

5.1 There are no recommendations within this report that have financial implications.  
 

6. Legal Implications  
 
Completed by:  Fiona Taylor, Divisional Director, Legal & Democratic Services 
 

6.1 The Council has a statutory duty to work in partnership to reduce and prevent crime 
and anti-social behaviour, placed upon it by Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 
1998.  That Act and subsequent legislation also places requirements on the Council 
to account to the public, in part through the Community Safety Partnership, for the 
discharge of this duty.  Whilst it is not a statutory duty to complete the annual report, 
it is one relatively straightforward way in which the Council and the Partnership 
inform the public of the actions they have taken to reduce crime and the fear of 
crime. 

  
7. Other Implications 

 
7.1 Risk Management - There is currently no legal obligation upon the Community 

Safety Partnership to publish an Annual Report. However, it is considered best 
practice and is a means of assuring the wider partnership that progress is being 
made against the strategic action plan.  

Page 141



 
7.2 Staffing Issues - The achievements within the Annual Report were delivered within 

existing Council and Partnership resources. 
 

7.3 Customer Impact – The work of the partnership aims to address the needs of the 
most vulnerable community members.  The publication of the report goes some way 
to reassuring the community that their safety is of importance to the Council and its 
partners. The report’s visual accessibility has been assessed and approved by 
LBBD’s Adult Social Care Group Manager Intensive Support. 

 
7.4 Safeguarding Children – Young people are most likely to be victims of violent crime 

on our streets and are often perpetrators of this particular crime.  The work of the 
partnership seeks to safeguard children, particularly through the work of the Youth 
Offending Service and ASB Team. 

 
7.5 Health Issues – Crime and disorder adversely impact on the health and well-being of 

the community. Equally, the misuse of drugs and alcohol has adverse impacts on 
both the individual and the community at large. By working together, and in line with 
the priorities of the Health and Well-Being Strategy 2013-16, the Partnership seeks to 
mitigate the impact of crime and disorder on the health and well-being of the 
community. 

 
7.6 Crime and Disorder Issues - S17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires local 

authorities to integrate consideration of the impact on crime and disorder of any 
decision, policy, activity or strategy that it performs. The authority is required to 
ensure that there is no negative impact on crime and disorder of any such decisions. 
While an Annual Report is not currently a statutory requirement, it can be considered 
best practice, as it will increase confidence in the Partnership: there are no negative 
impacts arising from this document. 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• Strategic Assessment 2012 

• Metropolitan Police BIU statistical returns 
 
List of appendices: 
 

Appendix 1: Community Safety Partnership Annual Report 2012-13 
 

Page 142



Total Crime Stats 

     19,186 

18,825 

17,236 

2010-2011 2011-2012 2012- 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Barking and Dagenham 

Community Safety Partnership 

Annual Report  

2012-2013 

Foreword: Cllr. Alexander, Cabinet Member for 
Crime, Justice and Communities   
 
Crime and disorder concerns every one of us. That’s why there are so many 
organisations, across all sectors, working to tackle the criminal activity that can 
make people’s lives a misery and make the Borough a safer place where people 
treat each other fairly and respectfully. At the Barking and Dagenham Community 
Safety Partnership, we aim to make sure that the different work that all these 
organisations do is as co-ordinated and effective as it can be. Every year, we look 
at all the data on crime and disorder across the Borough and agree priorities for 
focussed work. As the lead Councillor for crime, justice, and communities, it is my 
job to provide democratic oversight of the Partnership and to report back to you on 
our work. 
 
 

10% 

Last year, crime in Barking and Dagenham, fell by just over 8% - that’s 
over 1,500 fewer crimes. In this document, you’ll find the highlights of 
the work we’ve been doing in these areas, as well as the fantastic 
work you have been doing as a community to ensure that criminals 
know that Barking and Dagenham is not a place that is soft on crime. 
 
2012 was a year unlike any other – I don’t think anyone will forget the 
thrill of the Olympics or the excitement of the Jubilee – but as the cuts 
get worse, we know that the coming years will present lots of different 
challenges. By continuing to work together, I am confident that we will 
continue to find ways to make this Borough an even better place to 
live and work. 

 

As you can see from the diagram below, we’ve had tremendous results: 

1,900 fewer crimes in the last two years! 

Crime has fallen more than 

than 

over the last 2 years. 

In 2012-13, we selected four areas for focussed work that we believed would reduce 

crime and increase public safety: 

Anti-Social Behaviour Youth Violence  Acquisitive Crime Drugs and Alcohol 

H 

Page 143



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As Chair of Barking and Dagenham’s Community and Police Engagement 
Group, I am a member of the Community Safety Partnership. This year, I was 
elected to Chair the Partnership’s Anti-Social Behaviour Group. I have a 
strong sense of how important it is to residents of this Borough that we are 
clamping down on anti-social behaviour (ASB) and that we are taking 
measures to prevent it from happening in the first place. Because of that, we 
agreed to put together a clear strategy for reducing ASB that is tailored to the 
needs of our community. We know there have been delays from the Home 
Office on the direction we are supposed to take, but the message that I get 
from you is that this is too urgent an issue that can cause too much misery 
for us to hold back on. Over the year, we have successfully delivered this 
strategy, and we are now beginning to see levels of ASB come down. Now 
that the Queen’s Speech has outlined the focus of the new ASB, Crime, and 
Policing Bill, we will be delivering a new ASB strategy for the next few years 
to ensure that this great progress continues. 
 

AsAs C
GrGrou
elelecte
stststrong
clclclampi
mememeas
agagagreed
neneneed
OfOfOffice
frfrfrfromomom
fofofofofor us
stststststrarate
ththththatat t
PoPoPoPoPolici
tototototo ens

Anti-Social Behaviour
  

School of Hard Knocks  
 
School of Hard Knocks is a charity that the Council, the 
Police, and the Job Centre commissioned to run a 16-
day rugby course for adults. The idea is that attendees 
are taught how to improve their health and to learn 
discipline on the rugby pitch, with a view to reducing 
crime and unemployment. The programme was 
extremely successful. Physical fitness and body shape 
noticeably improved during the course, with one 
participant fulfilling his lifelong ambition of reducing his 
BMI to the level required by the Royal Marines, and a 
number of attendees were able to find full-time work 
after it completed. Those who did not find work 
immediately report that they are more confident and 
have better prospects for finding full-time employment. 
This is a sterling example of the kind of voluntary work 
that the Partnership supports, and we are currently 
looking into how we can ensure that this project, and 
others like it, are continued through these hard times. 
 
 
 
 

We’re making progress: 
 

Tenant-Funded Estates Police 
Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Behaviour which caused or was 
likely to cause harassment, alarm, 
or distress. 

 

 
 

86% of people 
reporting ASB 

were satisfied with 
the way their 

complaint was 
dealt with 

 

 

A Message from our Anti-Social Behaviour Lead  
 
 

7,171 

 

 
 Number of calls to police 

reporting anti-social 

behaviour: 

(1,718 fewer calls than last year) 

 

Last year, the Council and the Police agreed to set 
up a Police team to specifically target the Borough’s 
housing estates. The team is made up of 20 Police 
Officers, and is funded by tenants and a grant from 
the Mayor’s Office. They respond directly to issues 
raised by tenants and Councillors. As well as 
reducing crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB), their 
aim is to develop relationships with those who live 
and work on the estates, with a view to improving the 
lives of our residents in the long-term. Clocking in 
hundreds of hours of patrolling time and hundreds of 
arrests, the team have had a fantastic impact, and 
made a great dent in the levels of ASB in our 
Borough. The Team has also taken a lead in 
developing our cadets; under their guidance it is no 
surprise that one of our cadets was shortlisted for 
MPS Cadet of the Year! 
 

Page 144



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

i 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work on Gangs  
 

Last year, Barking and Dagenham was selected for 
targeted ‘ending gang and youth violence’ work. This 
involved a small amount of funding and a review of the 
work we do to reduce gang violence by experts. The 
reviewers had lots of great things to say about our 
work: it is focussed, appropriate, and proportionate, 
and has made effective use of the funding we were 
given to pay for activity from the voluntary sector. In 
particular, our Youth Offending Service was praised for 
its work on parenting, and the Partnership was 
commended for its work with colleges and schools.   
 
 

Boot Camp is a new programme being tested out by 
our Youth Offending Service. The idea is that offenders 
are forced, as part of their Order, to face an intense 26 
day slog at a boot camp led by ex-military personnel in 
the freezing hills of Dartmoor (far from Wi-Fi or phone 
signal!). Certainly not a treat for poor behaviour, the 
Camp consists of one-to-one behavioural therapy 
sessions, and group work to challenge young offenders 
and teach them how to change their behaviour. Every 
offender is forced to do a range of chores, and to 
prepare their own meals every day. This makes sure 
that they were instilled with a sense of routine and 
structure. 
 

Initial feedback from case managers and teachers has 
been highly positive. All have reported a marked 
difference in the behaviour of attendees of the Boot 
Camp since their return. Even better, every young 
person to complete Boot Camp has said that they are 
very glad to have taken part and feel that it has made a 
lasting difference to them. This work is highly 
innovative and we will be updating you on its outcomes 
in the long-term. 
 

Fall in violence where the 

victim is aged 1-19  

Update from the Youth  
Offending Service  
 
Following on from the glowing inspection result of our 
Youth Offending Service (YOS), we have now agreed to 
merge our service with the YOS in Havering. Barking and 
Dagenham shares its court with Havering, so our young 
offenders are largely brought before the same set of 
magistrates, and the Probation Service already works 
across the two Boroughs, so we are confident that 
merging will bring us greater flexibility, and reduce the 
cost of management without affecting any front-line 
posts. This will improve how we address youth violence 
as a partnership across our region of London. 

Youth Violence  
 
 
 

Any offence of violence or 
weapon-related crime, 
where the perpetrator 
or victim is aged 1-19. 

In the last year, the number of Police Cadets in the 
Borough has risen by 50% (to 120). This is largely 
thanks to the work our tenant-funded Estates Police 
Team has done to engage with young people. Cadets 
have been providing valuable assistance across the 
Borough, assisting in covert test purchases of alcohol 
and cigarettes and at crime prevention roadshows, 
and providing a visible presence at events. 

39% 58% 

Fall in First Time 

Entrants aged 10-17 

We’re making progress: 
 

since last year. since last year. 

 Fall in crime and robbery 

involving youth as victims  

52% 

since last year. 

 

Barking and Dagenham Cadets 

 

g

Page 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(287 fewer than last year)  (295 fewer than last year)  

We’re making progress: 
 

Visit the Council’s Burglary 
Roadshows and Find Out how 
to Safeguard your Home 

Barking and Dagenham Council has been holding 
regular burglary roadshows in various locations 
across the Borough to help people learn how they 
can avoid being the victim of burglary. Working with 
the Police, the Council hopes to help residents to 
keep themselves and their property safe. This has 
been effective – we have observed a 36% fall in the 
number of bogus callers over the past year – and the 
Partnership will continue to support these events as 
long as residential burglary continues to be an area 
of concern for us. At the roadshows, you can meet 
the Council’s Neighbourhood Crime Reduction Team, 
and sometimes even our Cadets, and receive 
personal safety advice, learn about crime prevention 
techniques, pick up a property marking kit, door 
handle alarms, window alarms, personal alarms, lift, 
lock and remove stickers, and a variety of other 
safety devices (while stocks last and based on 
individual requirements).  

Acquisitive Crime
  
 

  
Any offence that can be described 
as burglary, theft, or robbery. 

 
 

Burglary Campaigns 
Over the past year, it’s become 
clearer that there is a real problem 
with burglary in North-East London. 
This summer, the Partnership will be 
launching an extensive campaign to 
raise awareness of this issue – by 
keeping your eyes open and 
reporting anything suspicious you 
could help to prevent a burglary 
before it’s even taken place! This will  
 
 

 
 

include focussed work on bogus callers who are trying to 
scam our residents – just remember: your bank or the 
Police will never ask for your PIN or bank card! 
 

Update from our Parks Police  
 

Our Parks Police have been moving from strength to 
strength. This year, they made 50 arrests! For their 
fantastic year of work, the team received a 
commendation from Cllr. Tony Ramsay. The Parks 
Police will be continuing this work, make sure to say 
hello if you see them, they are the really fit looking 
Officers on bicycles! 
 

Commissioner Hogan-Howe commended 
two of our Police Officers for their brilliant 
work this year: 
 

Best Detective of the year - DI Darren 
Richards, for Robbery Reduction and 
Detection. 
 

Best Police Staff member - Jo Deacon, for 
setting up the Fresh Wharf Custody site, and 
for income generation. 
 

Congratulations to both, and keep up the 
good work! 
 

Police Commissioner’s 
Excellence Awards 
 
 

5% 

Residential Burglary 

(125 more than last year)  

We clearly have a problem here and we are doing work 

to fix it  

Theft of Motor Vehicles: 

27% 

1894 

 

5% 

Number of Crime Theft: 

Page 146



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The London User Forum is an organisation that 
works to improve treatment for substance misusers 
across our city through service user involvement, and 
Barking and Dagenham had the privilege of hosting it 
for the first time in April 2013. The event drew 
approximately 90 people from all over London and 
Kent, who all shared new ideas and discussed better 
ways of ensuring that former substance misusers can 
be supported to become independent citizens again. 
This was a great chance for us to showcase the 
incredible work that some of our service users have 
done in recovery to change their ways, and there was  
 

Alcohol Awareness Week 
National Alcohol Awareness week took place between 19 and 23 November 2012, and the theme for this event 

was ‘It’s time to talk about drinking’. During the week people were encouraged to take time to time to listen and 
talk about the health risks, social problems and stigmas associated with drinking. A variety of events and 
awareness sessions took place across the Borough, which included engaging with residents, local businesses 
and a variety of frontline staff. Key successes included our Counterfeit Alcohol Stand at ASDA in Barking and an 
information and advice training event for staff from across the Partnership at the BLC. 
 

61 

vehicles 

seized 

297  

arrests 

35  

seizures of 

counterfeit 

alcohol 

Operation Condor 
  

Operation Condor was a 48-hour initiative 
across the city between the Police, Transport 
for London, and the Council’s Trading 
Standards Team that cracked down on all 
aspects of licensing that can affect community 
safety. Pubs, clubs, unlicensed minicabs, 
benefit fraud, and illegal sale of knives were 
just some of the areas that the immense 
operation covered. Across the city, 297 arrests 
were made and 61 vehicles were seized. In this 
Borough alone, there were 35 seizures of 
counterfeit alcohol. Complementing this 
enforcement was a range of awareness-raising 
activity in secondary schools and on the 
streets, which will ensure that our streets 
remain safer as a result of this work. 
 

We’re making progress: 
 

 

Rise in offenders successfully 
completing treatment for alcohol 

misuse: 

11% 

1894 

 

Number of alcohol seizures by 
our Parks Police: 

  

13% 

Rise in offenders successfully 
completing treatment for drug 

misuse: 

This is an 82% increase 
on last year! 

 

Drugs and Alcohol 
 

 

Challenging Inappropriate Licensing Applications  

As a Partnership, we are able to challenge licensing applications that we deem inappropriate under the 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder Act, and we have done this with notable success in the past year. We were 
able to use a licence review to use evidence obtained during Operation Condor to demonstrate that a shop was 
not effectively protecting children from harm, and to revoke its licence to sell alcohol. This sends a strong 
message to businesses in the area that Barking and Dagenham will not stand for commercial practices that 
compromise the safety of our community. 

 

Misuse of substances can 
drive crime and disorder. 

We know that drugs and alcohol are a driver for much of 
the violence and anti-social behaviour that occurs in our 
Borough. While we have made good progress this year, 
we still have much work to do, and in the coming years 
we will be working even more closely with our partners 

in Public Health to tackle these issues.  

 a short award ceremony for 30 former substance misusers. One of the attendees told us: ‘this conference  
 proves I’m on the right track in my recovery. I’m going to become a volunteer now’. 
 

Domestic Violence 
Substance misuse is often the driver 
behind domestic violence. The 
Partnership is committed to ensuring 
that this does not go unaddressed, and 
you may have seen the poster campaign 
that we have been running throughout 
the Borough making clear where you 
can go if you are  
 
 

2, and the ththememe e e fofofor r r ththththisisisis e e evevevent 

o take time to time to listen and 

have been running throughout 
ugh makingngng c clear where you 
you are 

worried. As the 
campaign 
enters its next 
phase, you will 
find information 
booklets  
available at 
various  
locations. 

 

London User Forum  

Page 147



 

   

Voluntary Sector Showcase 
 
 
In July 2011, a presentation was given to the 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) on the 
development of a Third Sector Strategy. It was 
agreed that the CSP should aim to build and further 
develop an environment which would encourage a 
thriving voluntary sector. 
 
In May 2012, the Community Safety Partnership 
invited a variety of voluntary organisations involved 
in reducing crime and disorder and fostering 
community cohesion in the Borough and asked them 
to take part in some interviews.  The CSP wanted to 
know how they could help local organisations to 
achieve their aims of building a safer and stronger 
community in Barking and Dagenham.  The 
interviews were made into a short film called the 
‘Voluntary Sector Showcase’ and the film was shown 
to the CSP at their June 2012 meeting.   

 

Eleven different organisations from across the 
Borough took part in the filming.  Five issues and 
recommendations emerged again and again from 
the interviews. Organisations wanted: more 
networking opportunities; the CSP to publicise ‘Good 
News’ from the voluntary sector on a regular basis; 
regular communications on the CSP’s activity to the 
voluntary sector; improvement in training and 
support and wanted to know how Public Sector cuts 
would affect the voluntary sector. 
 

The interviews were a great opportunity for the 
organisations to tell the CSP what they do in the 
Borough and how the CSP can help them to make 
the Borough safer and stronger. The CSP will 
continue to build and develop their work with the 
voluntary sector over the coming years. 
 

The 11 different 

organisations that 

took part in the 

Voluntary Sector 

Showcase  

Air 

Football 

Arc 

Theatre Catch-22 

The 

Daniel 

Project 

Harmony 

Christian 

Centre 

Prison 

Ministry 

KCA 

Drug 

Services 

Kingdom 

Keys 

Volunteer 

Bureau 

Volunteer 

Plus 

Victim 

Support

The overall vision of the Strategy is for  
Barking and Dagenham to be: 
 

“A place where people respect  
one another and enjoy safe and 
peaceful lives; where there are 
opportunities to meet together 
and look forward to the future, 
and to be a united community 
who will get fair access to 
services” 

Together: A Community 
Cohesion Strategy 
for Barking and Dagenham   
 The Community Cohesion Strategy, “Together”, was 
launched back in October 2012 at the annual Peace 
Awards ceremony. 
 

“Together” lays out the Borough’s commitment to 
community cohesion and to describe clearly the actions 
we are going to take to encourage us to think daily 
about how we treat our neighbours, listen to others and 
come together across our communities to build a better 
Barking and Dagenham together.  
  

The Strategy has an action plan which will be updated 
regularly and Partners throughout the Borough will be 
working to take all of the work forward. For more 
information on the strategy please contact Teresa 
Evans on 020 8227 3478 or Carl Blackburn on 020 
8532 7320. 
 

 

More Highlights from this Year 
 

Page 148



 

-  

Peace Week 
 

The Safer Homes Project is a service delivered by 
Victim Support and commissioned by the Council to 
provide practical solutions to keep victims and witnesses 
safe.   The project offers free security checks and home 
improvements to the properties of anyone living in 
Barking and Dagenham, whether they are a victim of 
crime, concerned about crime in their area or for those 
who feel they are vulnerable or at risk.    As well as 
supplying and fitting a range of security improvements 
free of charge, the Project also provides emotional 
support, assistance and crime prevention advice through 
its network of volunteers at Victim Support.   
 

 

Safer Homes Project 
 

A Sexual Exploitation Sub-Group has been set up to 
reduce the harm caused by sexual exploitation in 
Barking and Dagenham.  The Group first met in 
January 2013 and includes people from across the 
Community Safety Partnership. 
 
The group has been set up in response to an increase 
in sexual violence across London.  This is taken very 
seriously by partners across the Community Safety 
Partnership, and the Group are working to address 
concerns and raise potential issues around sexual 
exploitation by developing and implementing an 
Operation Plan responding to the impact of criminal 
gangs and serious youth violence on women and girls.   
 
The main aims of the Group are to protect and provide 
support to victims of sexual violence, helping them 
move on and preventing recurrence, as well as holding 
perpetrators to account.  The Group wants to achieve a 
measurable reduction in incidence of sexual violence in 
Barking and Dagenham.   

Sexual Exploitation Group 
 

Peace Week in 2012 ran from 16 to 22 September and 
celebrated the work of organisations and individuals 
who promote community cohesion throughout the 
Borough.  Seventeen different events ran throughout 
the week, seeing 1900 people take part.  Events 
included a school choir and poetry competition, a Kickz 
football match at Dagenham & Redbridge Football Club 
and a Peace Flash Mob in Barking Town Centre.  
Feedback from the events was really positive, with 
different age groups and communities coming together 
to take part in fun and engaging activities. 
 

A Peace Awards event was also held to celebrate 
Peace Week on 2 October at the Broadway Theatre to 
recognise the achievements of residents and 
organisations who work hard in their communities to 
bring people together. Nominees were put forward for 
awards such as the The Most Welcoming Neighbour 
Award and the The Young Person Contributing to 
Society Award.  The event was attended by the Mayor, 
the national Leader of the Peace Alliance, and the 
Cabinet Member for Crime, Justice and Communities, 
who presented awards to the winners.  The event was 
attended by 250 people and was really well-received by 
all who attended.   
 

well-received by 

P

Pe
ce
wh
Bo
the 
incl
foot
an
Fe
diff
to

A 
Pe
re
or
br

More Highlights from this Year 
 

1,657 

 

Number of homes visited and 
secured through referrals to 

the Victim Support Safer 
Homes Project  

  

This is 239 more than 
last year!  

 

We’re making progress:
  

 
As well as giving 

practical and emotional 
support and advice at 

home visits, volunteers 
also attended a number 

of the Community 
Safety Roadshow 

events. 
 
 

Page 149



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Saved Dagenham Police Station!  
 

The Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 
held a public consultation meeting at the 
BLC on 4 March, and we were delighted to 
see such a passionate response from you. 
Over 130 people came to discuss planned 
changes to policing, and the Mayor’s 
Office were left in no doubt that Barking 
and Dagenham cares deeply about 
keeping the community safe.  
 

Register for email updates on 
Community Safety issues from the 
Police’s Neighbourhood Link Service at: 
http://www.neighbourhoodlink.met.police.uk/
registration/ 

 

Find out about 
Neighbourhood 
Watch in Barking 
and Dagenham 
at: 
http://www.neighb
ourhoodwatch.net  

 

And the Mayor’s Office certainly heard you: after they proposed to 
close Dagenham Police Station, your strong showing forced them to 
change tack! We are delighted that Dagenham Police Station will be 
remaining open – this will definitely help the whole Partnership. 

Last year was very successful for Barking and 
Dagenham Community Safety Partnership. 
With crime coming down in so many areas, 
we have a lot to be pleased about. But 
ultimately it is you, the public, who are our 
eyes and our ears. Last year, you made 
extremely clear to us what you care about and 
where you think we should be doing better. 
This year, the Mayor’s Office is making 
changes to the way that we hear your views: I 
hope that you will continue to engage so 
brilliantly with the Partnership. 
 

A Message from Anne Bristow 
Chair of the Community Safety Partnership 
 
 

Got involved in 
Neighbourhood 
Policing! 
Attendance at our Safer 
Neighbourhood Team Ward Panels 
has been better than ever this year. 
By attending these meetings and 
making your voice heard, we have 
been able to solve countless 
problems and ensure that the 
Partnership’s priorities reflect your 
own. To find out more, visit: 
http://content.met.police.uk/Borough
/Barking.  

The Mayor’s Office agreed in its Policing and Crime Plan to reform the 
way in which Community Safety Partnerships engage with the 
community. As such, in October 2013 Barking and Dagenham 
Community and Police Engagement Group will become Barking and 
Dagenham Safer Neighbourhood Board (SNB). The SNB will be a 
public meeting that will scrutinise the work of the Police and ensure 
that the Partnership is delivering the Mayor’s priorities. Ward Panels 
will continue to run, and will feed into the SNB. We look forward to 
seeing you there! 
 

How to Get Involved in the Future 

Young People Affected by Crime 
The Youth Offending Service has been doing lots of work 
with young people who are victims of crime.  We know from 
research that those who are victims of low level crime and 
issues such as bullying in their early years are more 
susceptible to displaying these kind of behaviours as they 
reach teenage years.  With colleagues in Children’s Service 
and the Metropolitan Police the YOS have been Young 
People Affected by Crime (YPAC), which is a weekly 
activities club that supports young victims of crime or who 
are otherwise vulnerable.  This has had great feedback, and 
we will be launching it formally in the coming year. 
 

What You’ve Done this Year 
 

Page 150



CABINET 
 

23 July 2013 
 

Title: Disposal of Former Mayesbrook Nursing Home, Bevan Avenue, Barking 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

Open report, with an exempt appendix 
(Appendix 2) 
 

For Decision  
 

Wards Affected: Eastbury Ward, 
Mayesbrook Ward 
 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Author: Adam Wright, Estate 
Surveyor 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 5952 
E-mail: adam.wright@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

Accountable Divisional Director: Jonathan Bunt, Divisional Director - Finance 
 

Accountable Director: Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 
 

Summary 
 
The Council has a freehold interest in the former Mayesbrook residential care home site.  
Due to changing circumstances this is no longer used and there are no other potential 
operational uses for the site. 
 
Cabinet approved the sale of the site on the open market in January 2013, and this report 
covers the outcome of the process agreed at that meeting.   
 
Initial bids were received in May 2013 and the bidders were invited to submit final offers 
based on specific criteria. 
 
This report presents details of the bids received and seeks Cabinet approval to the 
disposal of the site. 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
(i) Approve the disposal of the Council’s freehold interest in the former Mayesbrook 

Nursing Home site, Bevan Avenue, shown edged red on the plan at Appendix 1, to 
the preferred bidder identified in Appendix 2, on the terms set out in the report.  

 

Reason(s) 
 
Cabinet have previously instructed for terms to be negotiated for the disposal of this 
property.  This report is presented at Cabinet setting out offers received so that Cabinet 
can select a purchaser of the property. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 151



1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 The Council is the owner of the former Mayesbrook residential care home, Bevan 

Avenue, shown on the plan at Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
1.2 The property was used as a residential care home for the elderly, which ceased at 

the property in September 2007. The Council has been unable to find a use for the 
property, and it has remained vacant and surplus to operational requirements from 
the aforementioned date. 

 
1.3 Following a site visit with the Cabinet Portfolio holders, it was expressed that the 

Council’s freehold interest in the property should be disposed of and that Cabinet 
authorisation to do so should be sought.  

 
1.4 By Minute 83 (22 January 2013),, it was agreed that the property should be 

disposed of with its existing planning consent and to be considered suitable for 
residential development.   

 
1.5 Cabinet agreed to dispose of the property to obtain either a capital receipt, or the 

provision of housing units with no capital receipt.  An alternative option of continuing 
to own the property was not selected by Cabinet. 

 
2. Proposal and Issues  
 
2.1 Following the marketing by Property Services, a number of bids to purchase the 

property were received in May 2013. The bidders were subsequently invited to 
submit final offers in line with the following specific criteria for the housing mix of the 
site: 

 

• The development scheme is to be 100% private development, with no affordable 
housing provision. 

 

• The scheme to be made up entirely of houses, with no flats. 
 

• The houses should be a minimum of 3-bedrooms preferably with garage or 
suitable car parking space; no houses should be less than 3 bedrooms in size. 

 
2.2 A summary of the final bids received is presented at Appendix 2 to this report - as 

this appendix contains commercially confidential information it is included in the 
exempt section of the agenda, under the provisions of paragraph 3 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
3. Options Appraisal  
 
3.1 Members were presented with an options appraisal in the 22 January Cabinet 

report regarding the marketing of the site.   
 
3.2 In respect of the options for the disposal, Appendix 2 sets out the details of the bids 

for the Cabinet to consider. 
 
  

Page 152



4. Consultation  
 
4.1 Full consultation has taken part in respect of the previous report presented at 

Cabinet on 22nd January 2013.  Financial and Legal implications have been 
reviewed during the consultation of this follow-up report. 

 
5. Financial Implications  
 
 Implications completed by Martin Henwood, Deputy Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 Disposal of the property will create a capital receipt towards the current capital 

programme, and remove the associated current revenue costs.  Additional capital 
receipts will enable the Council to reduce its level borrowing and related charges 
i.e. interest on borrowing. 

 
5.2 Disposal costs, including the marketing strategy, will be included in the final 

business case options appraisal preceding an agreed sale.  Disposal costs of up to 
4% can be charged against the capital receipt. 

 
5.3 The financial aspect of the options appraisal could be more complicated within the 

new local government finance framework, which took effect in April (2013).  As well 
as the price offered by the bidder, allowance has to be taken for the New Homes 
Bonus generated.  This does not change the preferred bidder in this case.   

 
5.4 It has been assumed that payments to the GLA relating for the Community 

Infrastructure Levy (£20 per sq m) and the impact of Council Tax are neutral i.e. do 
not have an impact on the bids ranking and would be used to fund services to the 
homes proportionately.   

 
5.5 A similar assumption has been made for any S106 receipts as these are subject to 

negotiation and the starting point, the number of units to be built, is very similar in 
both options.  Therefore any difference would not make a material difference to the 
comparison of bids. 

 
5.6 The analysis of the formal offers made is shown in Appendix 2.  Of the compliant 

bids received, offer 1 is the most financially advantageous to the Council though it 
does not fully meet the criteria in paragraph 2.1 due to the inclusion of two 2 
bedroom coach houses.   

 
6. Legal Implications  
 

Implications completed by Evonne Obasuyi, Senior Lawyer 
 
6.1 The report is seeking approval for the disposal of the property.  The Council is 

required to obtain best consideration in the disposal of its assets. 
 
6.2 The Council has the power to enter into the proposed transaction but must do so in 

compliance with law and the Council’s acquisition and land disposal rules. 

6.3 The Council’s disposal powers are contained in section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 also provides local 
authorities with a general power of competence. 

Page 153



6.4 The Legal Practice should be consulted for advice as to how the land should be 
disposed of and assistance with the preparation and completion of the necessary 
legal agreements. 

 
7. Other Implications 
 
7.1 Contractual Issues - The transaction is a disposal of property. 
 
7.2 Crime and Disorder Issues - Vacant properties are considered vulnerable to 

vandalism, and illegal occupation. 
 
7.3 Property / Asset Issues - The Council has the option to dispose of the property by 

way of sale of the freehold, and the costs of ownership will cease on disposal. 
 
7.4 Planning Issues – Plans have been provided for Offer 1 and 2 schemes. Both 

schemes surpass the Council’s 40% family housing target and provide one for one 
car parking. However it is clear even on the basis of the limited information provided 
that refinements to both schemes, particularly the Offer 2 scheme, are needed in 
order for them to comply with local planning policies.  It is not possible to provide 
comment on the Offer 3 and 4 schemes as plans where not provided. 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report:  
 

• Cabinet report January 2013 entitled “Disposal of Former Mayesbrook Nursing Home, 
Bevan Avenue, Barking”. 

 
 
List of appendices: 
 

• Appendix 1 - Location Plan 

• Appendix 2 - Summary of bids (exempt information) 
 

Page 154



Appendix 1 

 

 

 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 14

Page 157

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2013
	4 Budget Monitoring 2013/14 - April to May 2013
	Budget Monitoring - App. A (General Fund Expenditure)
	Budget Monitoring - App. B (Savings Targets)
	Budget Monitoring - App. C (HRA Expenditure)
	Budget Monitoring - App. D (Capital Programme)

	5 Future Management Arrangements for the Library Service
	6 A Library Strategy for Barking and Dagenham
	Library Strategy Report - App. 1 (Strategy Summary)
	Library Strategy Report - App. 2 (Draft Strategy)

	7 "Creative Barking and Dagenham": An Arts Strategy for the Borough 2013-16
	Arts Strategy Report - App. 1 (Strategy Summary)
	Arts Strategy Report - App. 2 (Draft Arts Strategy)

	8 Children's Social Care Review 2012/13
	9 Community Safety Partnership Annual Report 2012-13
	CSP End of Year Report - App. 1

	10 Disposal of Former Mayesbrook Nursing Home, Bevan Avenue, Barking
	Disposal of Mayesbrook Care Home Report - App. 1 (Site Plan)

	14 Disposal of Former Mayesbrook Nursing Home, Bevan Avenue, Barking - Appendix 2

